S g=a el 1) =

** AMENDED AGENDA**

THOMAS TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609
September 9, 2019
7:00 p.m.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda

A. Approve the August 5, 2019 Regular Board Minutes.

B. Approve the August 23, 2019 Special Board Minutes.

C. Approve the Expenditures.

D. Accept the resignation of Dana Stemple as an after-hours, part-time custodian.

E. . Approve the creation of a second part-time receptionist position.

Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments
It is requested that you state your name and address for the record.

Public Hearing

A. Receive comments pertaining to the amendments to the sewer rates and ready to serve
charges for the next five years.

Unfinished Business

A. None.

New Business

A. Accept the Audit for the 2018/19 fiscal years.

B. Approve Resolution 19-16 to adjust the sewer rates and ready to serve costs for the next
five years.

C Approve Resolution 19-17 to amend the Fee Schedule (Schedule F) for 2019/2020 to
include the new sewer rates.

D. Approve the Capital Improvement Plan and Five Year Financial Forecast for 2019/20

through 2024/25.

Approve a short-term transfer in the amount of $25,000 to the Downtown Development

Authority.

Approve the purchase of eight Taser Conducted Electrical Weapons.

Award the contract for painting the exterior of Fire Station 2 to A & A Painting in the

amount of $7,830.00.

Approve the purchase of ten (10) Zoll Plus Automatic External Defibrillators (AED’s)

from BioMedical Solutions in the amount of $8,975.00.

Approve the purchase of a copy machine for the Public Safety Building in the amount

of $3,688.00 from Boss Business Solutions.

J. Approve Text Amendment 19-G-01, prohibiting the ignition, discharge and use of
consumer fireworks during prescribed hours of each day; to prescribe penalties and to
provide for the public health, safety and general welfare.

(1

—

Thomas Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to any individuals with disabilitics who plan to attend this public meeting.
Persons interested in such services need to contact the Thomas Township Manager's offices at 249 N. Miller Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609, by phone at
989-781-0150, or by fax at 989-781-0290 at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting. In the case that advanced notice for accommodations is not
possible, every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate the disabled.



Page 2
September 9, 2019
Regular Board Meeting Agenda

K. Award the 2019 Municipal Parking Area Sealcoating Project to Yeager Asphalt in an
amount not to exceed $30,184.70.

L. Approve the rezoning of parcel 28-12-3-26-3002-000 from B-4 and R-1 to B-3.

M. Award the contract to demolish 7329 Gratiot Road to Mead & Sons Contracting Inc. in
the amount of $7,800.00 and the asbestos survey to AKT Peerless in the amount of

$975.00.
N. Approve the recommended contract to install a new metal roof for the pavilion at
Roberts Park.
0. Approve the recommended contractor to pave approximately 410 linear feet of trail at
Roberts Park.
P. Approve proposed Consumers Energy easement for electrical service to 6660 Gratiot
Road.
10.  Reports
A. Supervisor  D. Manager H. Fire Dept.
B. Clerk )2 Community Development . Police Dept
C. Treasurer I DPW J. Parks & Recreation
G Finance K. Board Members
11.  Executive Session
None
12.  Adjournment

Thomas Township
Board of Trustee Meeting
Citizen Comment Instructions

Any citizen may address the Thomas Township Board of Trustees at item #6, which is
the Citizen Comment Section of the Board Meeting.

Supervisor Weise will ask if there is anyone who would like to address the Board. If
there are multiple people, he will invite you to speak when it is your turn.

You will be asked to stand and state your name and address for the records.

You may then address your issue to the Board Members. In the interest of time, all
citizens are requested to limit their address to three minutes.



AGENDA
THOMAS TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609
September 9. 2019
7:00 p.m.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda

A. Approve the August 5, 2019 Regular Board Minutes.
B Approve the August 23, 2019 Special Board Minutes.
C Approve the Expenditures.

D. Accept the resignation of Dana Stemple as an after-hours, part-time custodian.
E

C

ARl o

Approve the creation of a second part-time receptionist position.
ommunications-Petitions-Citizen Comments

It is requested that you state your name and address for the record.
7 Public Hearing

A. Receive comments pertaining to the amendments to the sewer rates and ready to serve
charges for the next five years.
8. Unfinished Business
A. None.
9. New Business
A. Accept the Audit for the 2018/19 fiscal years.
B. Approve Resolution 19-16 to adjust the sewer rates and ready to serve costs for the next
five years.

C Approve Resolution 19-17 to amend the Fee Schedule (Schedule F) for 2019/2020 to
include the new sewer rates.

D. Approve the Capital Improvement Plan and Five Year Financial Forecast for 2019/20

through 2024/25.

Approve a short-term transfer in the amount of $25,000 to the Downtown Development

Authority.

Approve the purchase of eight Taser Conducted Electrical Weapons.

Award the contract for painting the exterior of Fire Station 2 to A & A Painting in the

amount of $7,830.00.

Approve the purchase of ten (10) Zoll Plus Automatic External Defibrillators (AED’s)

from BioMedical Solutions in the amount of $8,975.00.

Approve the purchase of a copy machine for the Public Safety Building in the amount

of $3,688.00 from Boss Business Solutions.

I Approve Text Amendment 19-G-01, prohibiting the ignition, discharge and use of
consumer fireworks during prescribed hours of each day; to prescribe penalties and to
provide for the public health, safety and general welfare.

(s

= Q™

e

Thomas Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to any individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this public meeting.
Persons interested in such services need to contact the Thomas Township Manager's offices at 249 N. Miller Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609, by phone at
989-781-0150, or by fax at 989-781-0290 at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting. In the case that advanced notice for accommodations is not
possible, every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate the disabled.



Page 2

September 9, 2019
Regular Board Meeting Agenda

K. Award the 2019 Municipal Parking Area Sealcoating Project to Yeager Asphalt in an
amount not to exceed $30,184.70.

L. Approve the rezoning of parcel 28-12-3-26-3002-000 from B-4 and R-1 to B-3.

M. Award the contract to demolish 7329 Gratiot Road to Mead & Sons Contracting Inc. in
the amount of $7,800.00 and the asbestos survey to AKT Peerless in the amount of
$975.00.

N. Approve the recommended contract to install a new metal roof for the pavilion at
Roberts Park.

0. Approve the recommended contractor to pave approximately 410 linear feet of trail at
Roberts Park.

10.  Reports

A. Supervisor  D. Manager H. Fire Dept.

B. Clerk E. Community Development L. Police Dept

C- Treasurer F. DPW J. Parks & Recreation

G Finance K. Board Members

(U,
p—

Executive Session

None

12.  Adjournment

Thomas Township
Board of Trustee Meeting
Citizen Comment Instructions

Any citizen may address the Thomas Township Board of Trustees at item #6, which is
the Citizen Comment Section of the Board Meeting.

Supervisor Weise will ask if there is anyone who would like to address the Board. If
there are multiple people, he will invite you to speak when it is your turn.

You will be asked to stand and state your name and address for the records.

You may then address your issue to the Board Members. In the interest of time, all
citizens are requested to limit their address to three minutes.



(8]

S adB ol o

THOMAS TOWNSHIP
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609
August 5, 2019
7:00 o’clock p.m.

The Regular Board Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Supervisor Weise.

PRESENT: Weise, Brosofski, Weber, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan and DeLine
ABSENT: None

ALSO PRESENT: Township Manager, Russ Taylor; Finance Director, Deidre Frollo;
DPW Assistant Director, Trevor Schultz; Parks and Recreation Director, John Corriveau;
Director of Community Development, Dan Sika; Police Chief, Al Fong; Fire Chief, Mike
Cousins; Deputy Clerk, Darci Seamon; Township Attorney, Otto Brandt and 3 interested
parties.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Motion was made by Brosofski, seconded by Thayer to approve the agenda as presented.
Motion carried unanimously.

AGENDA
THOMAS TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609

August 5, 2019

7:00 p.m.

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda

Consent Agenda

A. Approve the July 8, 2019 Regular Board Minutes.

B. Approval of the Expenditures.

C. Promote Tyler Sutherlund, Assistant Parks Director, from probationary to regular full-time
employee.

D. Reappoint Terry Rock to the Compensation Commission for the term of 09/30/2019 to
09/30/2024.

E. Approve hiring Jenna Stevenson as part-time Fire Secretary.

Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments
It is requested that you state your name and address for the record.
Public Hearing
A. None.
Unfinished Business
A. None.
New Business
A. Approve the Michigan Public Safety Communications System Member Subscriber Agreement.



Thomas Township Board Mccting August 2019

Page 2 of 4
B. Approve the application to have Owen’s Cemetery considered for inclusion on the National
Register of Historic Places.
C. Approve Resolution 19-18 to authorize Consumers Energy Company to make changes in the
lighting services as provided in the Standard Lighting Contract.
D. Approve the size of the property to be impacted by the Nature Preserve grant application.
E. Approve five year warranty and additional lawn restoration work for the recently constructed
North Thomas Road sidewalk.
F. Approve water agreement with the City of Saginaw in the form of a memorandum of
understanding to support continued development within the Great Lakes Tech Park.
10. Reports
A. Supervisor D. Manager H. Fire Dept.
B. Clerk E. Community Development 1. Police Dept.
C. Treasurer F. DPW J. Parks & Recreation
G. Finance K. Board Members
11. Executive Session
None
12. Adjournment
5. It was moved by Weber, seconded by Sommers to approve the consent agenda as

presented. Motion carried unanimously.
A. Approval of Township Board minutes from the regular meeting 07/08/2019.

B. Expenditures consisting of:
Clearing Fund $6,060.32
General Fund 257,895.74
Public Safety-Fire Department 24,376.74
Fire Apparatus 1,230.70
Public Safety-Police Department 34,443.64
Public Safety-Drug Law Enforcement 0.00
Downtown Development Authority 514.19
Road Revolving Fund 0.00
Sewer Fund 58,974.36
Water Fund 262,988.19
Municipal Refuse 66,937.57
Tax 783,723.12

C. Approved the promotion of Tyler Sutherlund, Assistant Parks Director, from

probationary to regular full-time employee.

D. Approved the re-appointment of Terry Rock to the Compensation Commission for

the term of 09/30/2109 to 09/30/2024.

| 2 Approved the hiring of Jenna Stevenson as part-time Public Safety (Fire)

Secretary.
6. Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments

A. Diane Meyers of 8020 Geddes Road requested a light or camera be installed for

safety reasons due to vehicles not stopping at the sign on the corner of Miller and

Geddes.
7. Public Hearing
A. None.
8. Unfinished Business
A. None.
9. New Business
A. It was moved by DeLine, seconded by Sommers to approve the Michigan Public

Safety Communications System Member Subscriber Agreement. Motion carried
unanimously.



Thomas Township Board Meeting August 2019

Page 3 of 4

Roll Call:

Ayes: Monahan, DeLine, Weber, Weise, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers
Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

B. It was moved by Sommers seconded by Brosofski to approve the application to
have Owen’s Cemetery considered for inclusion on the National Register of
Historic Places. Motion carried unanimously.

C. It was moved by Thayer seconded by DeLine to approve Resolution 19-18 to
authorize Consumers Energy Company to make changes in the lighting services
as provided in the Standard Lighting Contract.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Weber, Weise, Brosofski, Thayer
Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

D. It was moved by Weber seconded by Monahan to approve the size of the property
to be impacted by the Nature Preserve grant application. Motion carried
unanimously.

E. It was moved by Sommers seconded by Monahan to approve a five year warranty
and additional lawn restoration work for the recently constructed North Thomas
Road sidewalk. Motion carried unanimously.

F. It was moved by Weber and seconded by Thayer to approve a water agreement

10.

with the City of Saginaw in the form of a memorandum of understanding to
support continued development within the Great Lakes Tech Park with the
following contingency: legal counsel and the Manager’s approval of the wording
and revenue sharing amount. Motion carried unanimously.

Report of Officers and Staff:

mm Uowp

=

Supervisor’s Report — None.

Clerk’s Report — None.

Treasurer’s Report — None.

Manager’s Report — The Manager reported that seal coating projects started this
week.

Receive and file Community Development Reports.

Receive and file the DPW Report. Assistant Director Schultz reported that the
lead and copper results from the water sampling have not yet been received.
Receive and file the Finance Department Report.

Receive and file the Fire Department Report. Chief Cousins reported that the ice
cream with a fire fighter event went over well with 200 cones being purchased
with Fire Fighter Association funds. The majority of these funds come from a
donation of one hours pay from each participating fire fighter. Chief Cousins also
stated that the Fire Department would be receiving one Automatic External
Defibrillator (AED) from the Pulse 3 Foundation.

Receive and file the Police Department Report.

Receive and file the Parks and Recreation Report. Director Corriveau reported
that track had been added to the train along with a switch to allow the train to
back in to each side of the depot at night. Ruff Around Roberts Park has been
rescheduled for August 17, 2019 with a movie to follow.

Board Member Reports — None.



Thomas Township Board Meeting August 2019

Page 4 of 4
11. Executive Session:
A. None

12. It was moved by Brosofski, seconded by Monahan to adjourn the meeting at 7:31 p.m.
Motion carried unanimously.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk

Dated



on = [0 1D =

6.

THOMAS TOWNSHIP
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609
August 23, 2019
4:00 o’clock p.m.

The Special Board Meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Supervisor Weise.
PRESENT: Weise, Weber, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers and DeLine.

ABSENT: Monahan

ALSO PRESENT:  Township Manager, Russ Taylor and Deputy Clerk, Darci Seamon.
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

Motion was made by Brosofski, seconded by Sommers to approve the agenda as
presented. Motion carried unanimously.

THOMAS TOWNSHIP SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609
August 23, 2019
4 P.M.
Call to Order
Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Agenda
Consent Agenda
A. None
Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments

It is requested that you state your name and address for the record.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

Public Hearing

A. None

Unfinished Business

A. None

New Business

A. Approve the addendum to the Water Services Contract with the City of Saginaw.
Executive Session

A. None

Adjournment

Consent Agenda

A. None

Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments:
A. None.

Public Hearing

A. None.

Old Business



10.

11.

A. None

New Business:

A. It was moved by Weber, support by Brosofski to approve the addendum to the
Water Services Contract with the City of Saginaw. Motion carried unanimously.

Executive Session:

A. None

It was moved by Sommers seconded by DeLine to adjourn the meeting at

4:09 p.m. Motion carried unanimously.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk

Dated



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

e MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

e PERSON SUBMITTING:

e AGENDA TOPIC: Approval of Expenditures

e EXPLANATION OF TOPIC FOR BOARD MEMBERS:

Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director

The Appropriations Act passed in March Appropriated total funds for the 2019/2020
fiscal year for operating the budgets of the various finds. Monthly the board needs to
approve the total expenditures in each fund for the month.

In addition to the fund expenditures listed in the motion, Library Fund expenditures
were $7,520.11. Township Board approval is not required for Library expenditures.
Payroll expenditures are not required to be included in this motion.

e MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:
Invoice approval list by fund
Cash balances report

e POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION:
Approval/not approve expenditures

o SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION:
Motion by , supported by

Clearing Fund usssimimissmiasssaimsipssss
General Fund... cussmssssesssmassavsenmssmimmsmssstims
Public Safety - Fire Department.............ccccevuvennnn.
Fire Apparatus .......cccceveeiciiiinnnnnnn.
Public Safety - Police Department .......................
Public Safety - Drug Law Enforcement ................
Downtown Development Authority............. ........
Road Revolving Fund...........ccoveriieieniiincceecnens
Sewer FUNd ........ocaussasmmesmmssinvamsamsiioisg

sasbsssnnsans

As shown on checks #60787-60920

2,910.16
326,365.61
12,023.91
0.00
18,508.32
0.00
80,512.11
0.00
149,525.92
378,203.16
64,882.90
415,524.16

to approve the
expenditures totaling $1,448,456.25 with individual fund totals as follows:



89809 9% "1 61/L2/80 T1/0T1-02/60-2000 HONYINSHI HITVAH THIHS dANTd SSOUD ANId  /9¥YSIA WJIHL IMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-LSZ-TOT
ON TSSY LGz 3dea

65°2¢ ‘ INTHIAYdEA IONYNII-VYAINSYHII £GZ 3deq I .B30L
€0609 0S5°%9L'8 61/L2/80 0EvE 6T0Z JIWHAS - TIO¥ XYL ASYHIL AINNOD MUNIOVS NOILWIVdTId TTI0Y XYl 000°0£8-£52-T0T
90609 28181 6T/LZ/80 TSG2ZS Z TIAAT - FAONYNIINIYW M TYANNY YSHYS SHDIAIES TYNOISSHIOIA 000" LT8-£52-T0T
79809 00°G6FZ 6T/L2/80 9€TTZ OdMA - TYMANTY dTHSIAINAW 0Z0Z/6T10T 0380 1d¥ SHNA 3 dIHSYIIWIR 000" %708-£52-T0T
78809 9T 1€ 61/L2/80 6T0C YAAWALIES a3a¥/XELITIGYSIA/AAIT HAZT TYNOLLYN NOSIAVW ¥SIA WMEL SNOT HONVENSNI 00€°9TL-£GZ-T0T
82809 T6°8GT 6T/L2/80 T0E£C0%2000SIY HATHAYd 6¢T0Z YAGNALIAS TYINAd YITHd AINVEINSNI TYLNAQ 00Z"9TL-£SZ-T0T
78809 €9°LTT 6T/L2/80 6T0C YAGWALIAS a3av/XIITIEVSIA/TAIT HATT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW /9¥SIA WIAL I¥OHS/NOISIA 00T "9TL-ESZ-TOT
63809 €1°22 6T/L2/80 T/0T-CZ/60-£000 NOISIA/HIIVAH TATHS HNTI SSOYD =NTd /9¥SIA WMHI I¥OHS/NOISIA 00T°9TL-£S2-T0T
82809 86°8T 61/L2/80 T/0T-CZ/60-2000 AONVINSNI HITYEH THAIHS dNTd SSO¥D =NTd  /9YSId WIHL IH0HS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-€CZ-T0T
63809 98°2TIv ‘T 6T/L2/80 T/0T-CZ/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYAH TATHS dNT1d SSO¥D =n1d FONVEASNI HITYIH 000°9TL-€G2-T0T
ININIMVIEd FONVHIA-YTINSYAIL £62 3dsq

€6 0T¥ MIATO GTZ 3deQ Zod Teaog
9060¢% Z8°187 61/L2/80 16628 Z THAET - AONYNALNIVW 9EM TYONNY YSHYS SINIWNATIOV AONENHLNIYR J00°9€6-GTZ-T0T
73809 96" €T 61/L2/80 6102 UAGWALAAS a3AY¥/ALITIIEYSIA/AATT TATT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW ¥SIA WMEIL ONOT FOINVEASNI J0E£°9TL-STZ-T0T
8.80¢% ET 7F= 61/L2/80 T0£5072000S14d HATATId 610¢ EAIWASAHS TYINAQ ¥ITIA TONVIASNI TYINAQ J0Z°9TL-GT2Z-T0T
7380¢ 29°€G 6T/L2/80 6107 ¥IHWALIHS a3a¥/AIZTIGY¥SIA/AATT HITT TYNOILYN NOSIAVW /9¥SIA WHEI IMOHS/NOISIA D01 9TL-GTIZ-T10T
8980¢ 0% " LI 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-2000 HONVIASNI HITVHIH THIHS IOTd SSO¥D ANTd /9YSIAd WMAL IHOHS/NOISIA JO0T"9TL-GTZ-T0T
MEITO 612 3dea

¥6°201°C AATLVILS ININAY-dAOYNYN Z,LT 3deq I0d Te3of
90602 87181 61/L2/80 TGG2CS Z THAHT - HONYNALNIVW 93M TYANNY YSHYS SHOIAYAS TYNOISSHAOUA 000" LT8-ZLT-TOT
78809 86 %C 6T1/L2/80 6T0C QAGWAIITS a®a¥/ALITIAYSIA/AAITT FI-T TYNOILUN NOSIAYW VSIA WIHL ONOT HINVYNSNI 00€°91L-2LT-T0T
8809 ET" 79T 6T/L2/80 TOEG0PZ000STIY WATHAYd 6107 QTINALITS TYINEA YITHA AONVINSNI TYLINHQ 00Z°9TL-ZLI-TOT
78809 0L 6L 61/L2/80 610C YEIWIIIHS asa¥/ALTTISYSIA/AATT HAZT TYNOILYN NOSIAVW /HYSIAd WHAL I9OHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-ZLT-TOT
69809 9% " 12 61/LZ/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 MOISIA/HITYAH TAIHS ANTE SSOWO HANTd /9¥SIAd WJIEL IMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-ZLI-T0T
69809 ST 1G¢’T 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 MOISIA/HITYAH TAIHS ANTE SSO¥D NI TONVEASNI HITYHAH 000°9TL-ZLTI-T0T
TATIVILS INIHAY-¥IDYNYHN ¢,LT 2dsa

0L"6G0°E HAIIVISIOAT-GI¥0d T0T 3deq 104 Te3oL
15309 0L°96G 6T/€1/80 £€686LT AVAHAS 6T-8-L/¥09 ATAL  dNO¥D YAJYASMAN MITA SUDILON TYDAT J00°006-T0T-T0T
58309 00"€eCc’z 61/L2/80 9TT09 THASNAOD ¥OgYT HOS 3 NOSYILLYd dOSYR SHOIAIES TYOET 200°208-T0T-10T
6T309 00°0LE 61/€1/80 6T0Z ISNINY SHOIATAS TUDAT IANVEE OLLO SHOIAYES TYDIT 000°208-T0T-T0T
HATINTISIDAT-AIY0d 10T 3daq

9g-66¢’e 000 3dsg aog TE3OL
70809 z0°12¢2 6T/€1/80 6T3C LSNonNY FONYNALNIVH/ SYI¥dTT 10d9d FWHOH NOILNFIYINOD/SNOILYNOA 0D00°SL9-00D-T0T
00809 00°06¢ 6T1/€1/80 SqYVYZZNg VNIAOL TIVELIOS SNAK £T10C - ANAAFA SITIVA AIAYd 9IA0S ITINQY SHHA ATIO0Ud G9L°0%9-000-T0T
98809 0€°62T'1 61/L2/80 S§02L929 Z# - HOTHIMA dWOD SYE¥YOM  SEIM¥OM TYJIDINAW IW YSNAAWOD SNYWM¥OM OL dNd 0GL"T€Z-000-T0T
81809 Z6°LE 61/L2/80 T0€52%2000S1d WATWAId 6102 YAIWAIAHAS TYINId ¥ITEd IYEH ATIVAIEOEY SINNOJOW GTL 0%70-000-TOT
69809 21 L62C 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYAH TzIHS ANTE SSOYD ANTH TVYAH HTIVAIAOTY SINAODJOY STL°0¥0-000-TOT
L5809 00°00¢ 6T/€T/80 788% YANYATO N 096T - dFIM SNICXON ILOAMLSNOD AHTIVA-IVL SNOILVIOIA QEAM SL0"0%0-000-T0T
LF809 00°02T 6T/€1/80 £88% YATIIN § 06T - JIEM SOOIXON ILINMLSNOD AATIYA-IEL SNOIIVIOIA aIIM SL0 0%0-000-T0T
000 3adsa
aNOd DNIIVMEAJO TREENTD T0T pund

9T°016°C aN(d ONTYVATO 00T PTNd Id24 Te3of

9T 016°C 000 3380 Id>4 TeIOL
62809 06°z¢ 61/L2/80 T/0T-0Z/60-£000 XOISIA/HLTYAH TEZIHS ENTd SSO¥O ANTd ¥d-0D SNI HITYEH AUV¥dIT LTL"TEZ-000-00T
62809 99°LL8"2 6T/L2/80 T/0T-0Z/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYAH TETIHS HATd SSOD dnTd NI-00 NOINA $49/09d OL And 9TL°TE€2~000-00T
000 3daqg
aNQd ONIYVATO 00T pPung
IO3YD Junoury 23ed UD 20TOAUT 0S8 80TOAUT TIOPUSA osod T9 Iaqunpy I9

I1/1 :obeg

MDHED ¥EJYd
JHZITYNINOL

PHdAL ¥DEHD

- dIvd

6102/1€/80 - 6T0Z/T0/80 SILWI LS04
dIHSNMOL SYWOHI Y04 IMOdEd NOILAIIMISIA T9 IDIOANI

dtysumog, sewoy] :4dd
HIAIAC =498
Ad €9:T0 610C/€0/60



78809 €L76L 6T/LZ/80 6T0Z YHINHLAHAS a30q¥/XLITIGVSIA/AITIT HATT TYNOILYN NOSIAYWN /9YSIAd WMHEIL TJOHS/NOISIA 00T "9TL-TLE-TOT
69809 S0°€2 6T1/L2/80 T/0T-0Z2/60-€£000 KOISIA/HLTYEH THIHS HATE SSO¥D dNTd /9YSIAd WIEL IJ0HS/NOISIA 00T ' 9TL-TLE-TOT
89809 61°0T 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-2000 HONVIASNI HITYEH THIHS INTH SSOMD HNTd /9d¥YSId WJIFL IJOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-TLE-TOT
69809 68 %GV ‘T 6T/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 KOISIA/HIIYAH TAIHS dANTd SSOND ENTd HONRINSNI HITYIH 000°9TL~-TLE-TOT
INARJIOTHAHA ALINQWWOD T.LE 3dea

LE FZ8 FOIW ¥¥¥d HOHEL SEMVT IV¥AND Z8Z 3dag Iod Teiol
GL809 £€2°L1T 6T/LZ/80 10950%68650C @4 WYHYYD N TG6E -~ TIId ALITILIN 02 Z9Y¥ANA SYAWASNOD SEILITILN 000°026-282-T0T
1609 FT°L09 61/L2/80 99% ¥ HONYNZINIVK NMYT ILSN9NVY ILONYLSNOD XHATTIVA-INL SHOIAYES QALOVILNOD 000°0T8-282-10T
HEDIW MY¥d HOHEL SEAMYT ILvadd zgz 3daa

Gz 8e6’¢e XEELINED 9.7 3dea@ x04 TBIOL
22809 00°06 6T/€1/80 T6C-6TL0 IATIOL WTIVIMOd - 9 9IAIY N G6€£Z  ALIDS MYIMOMIVS "9°Y TYINAY INANGINOF 00T 0%¥6-9L2-T0T
€809 §2°210°2 6T/E€T/80 6T0Z ATAL /TIOSdOL/SATIIId HOVEL/SYTATNOL IW ONI ILSENO HENOLS HONYNALNIVH/ SSIVdTT 000°0£6-9L2-T0T
62809 620G 6T/€1/80 6T0Z A1AC AJALINID/ SMIYd - INI¥d SWYITIIM-NIMIEHS AONYNHAINIVH/ SYI¥ddd 000°0€6-9L2-T0T
21609 TL°G8E'T 61/L2/80 99% ¥ FONYNEINIVA NMYT LSNONY ILONYISNOD XETTIVA-TIEL SHOIAYES QALOYALNOD 00T 0T8-9LZ-10T
XEEIINAD 9Lz 3daq

Py €08‘9L SANQOYS ® ONIATIING G9Z 3ded JIod Te3IodL
28809 00°00Z'T 61/L2/80 €Z€8 T ONIMIVYd - aNOE INWAJ/HONVINOAMEd  ‘ONIIVAVOXE JANGIVHEO SININAAOSIWI TYLIAYD 000" ¥L6-G92-T0T
T€809 00°8LS’T 6T/€T/80 G9696T IT ASVHd XATdWOD - dMI SYWOHI "ONI dNO¥D ¥HADIdS SINIHIAOMANI TYIIAYD 000" #L6-59Z-T0T
20809 00°006“L9 6T/€T/80 £TE8 'NOISNYAXH I0T ONIM¥Vd dMI SVWOHL  ‘ONIIVAVYOXE YANIIAWEO SINARAAOYANI TYLIdYD 000" 9L6-G92-T0T
TL809 89°02¥ 61/L2/80 T80T6EUVEE 6T1/€T/60-6T/%1/80 - SGZSO-NVD WALSAS SSANISNT SAAVYL SINARITIOY TONYNHLNIVH 000°9€£6-59Z-10T
€1609 00°00T 61/L2/80 TTSZ6%80T @9 ¥dATTIIN N 6%Z - AONYNIINIVA NMY'T NMYTHAHD NAZIONYL AONYNIINIVH/ SIIVdHT 000°0€6-592-10T
70809 00°9s¢ 61/€£1/80 6T0C 1SNoNY HONYNTLNIVH/ SIIVdTI 10dEd FWOH TONVYNALNIVH/ SIIYdTT 000°0£6-5G9Z-10T
68L09 00°00T 6T/€1/80 2GLz INYWAH ¥O0d IVLIGVH - YANNVE FONYHO NOIS LiF9dvd HONYNIINIVH/ SEIvdad 000°0£6-692-T0T
GL809 9z 8% 6T/L2/80 890T88T9ETOC ag IOIIVYD 0LZ8 - TIId ALITILN 00 X9YINA SYINNSNOD SEILITIIN 000°026-592-10T
GL809 99°9¥% 6T/L2/80 L90T88T9€T0T Q¥ TMZINT 10T ~ TII9 XLITILIA 0D X9YANT SYANNSNOD SEILITIIN 000°026-G9¢2-10T
GL809 8T°29 61/L2/80 990T88T9€102 Q¥ IOIIVYD 6069 - TTId XLITILA 0D AOWANT SYANNSNOD SHILITIIN 000°026-592-T0T
SL809 GL"89 61/L2/80 G90T88TI9ETOT Q4 IOILVED €98L - TIId ALITIIN 00 ASYINA SYANNSNOD SHILITILO 000°026-692-T0T
GL809 L9°LZ 6T/L2Z/80 TL00T6CLZTOC L0 ¥ATIIW 6£Z ~ TII9 XAIITILA 0D ADYANEA SYAWASNOD SHILITILA 000°026-592-10T
§.809 LS 06¢€ 61/L2/80 LZ087700650¢C Q@4 JATIIH N 627 - TII9 ALITIIN 00 ASYENA SYAWNNSNOD SAILITILIA 000°026-69Z-T0T
SL809 LO"T68 61/L2/80 S0LZOVPHSS0T Q¥ ¥ITIIN N 6FZ - TIId ALITILIO 00 A9YANA SUANASNOD SEILITIIN 000°02¢6-592-10T
L8L09 I8°LTT 6T/€1/80 8229¢W HOIAYAS ANOHAATIL IAN"E€ZT ENOHAATHL 000°058-5G92-10T
Z1609 LS 8TV 61/LZ/80 999 HONUNIINIVA NMVYT ILSQA9AY ILDOAYLISNOD XHTIYA-IML SHOTIAYES dALOVILNOD 00T'0T8-592-T0T
80609 00°GF 61/L2/80 96T20T ONIAQAYHS INANODOA SIMAIXA JHAMHS SADIAYAS dALOVILNOD 00T 018-S92-T0T
L¥809 00°00T’T 6T/£1/80 T€6¥F 9FW - NYIQHEW ONIMOW ILDAYLSNOD AHTIVA-IVL SEOIAYEAS AALOVILNOD 00T 0T8-692-T0T
60809 20" %06 61/€1/80 F9E06TLO SONITIVH/IDYLSOd NID FDIAYHS WOOd TIVW SADIANIAS TALOTILNOD 00T"0T8-592-T0T
LEBOY 00°G¥P 6T/€T/80 A ZAN 6T/£2/S0 - A¥d NOILVDIAILAVYAE OHOS HOIH AATIVA NUYMS A¥d NOILYOIAILOVIL 009°0%¥L-S92-T0T
11609 89°%9T1 6T/L2/80 9ISV ESS08 SHITAANS HDTAAO AOVINYAQY SHATIVLS SHITAANS SNIIVIAdO 000°0%L-S92-T0T
TT609 25 78 6T/L2/80 0%6L675508 SHITI4NS HADIAAO TOVINYAGY SATAVLS SAITAANS ONIILVIAAO 000°0%L-S92Z-T0T
06809 00°GT9 6T/€T/80 €Z0€EST 50T NHAY - FATYA Q9¥H TUNIILINI dNo¥o HOHEL YOIDIA SHITAANS SNIIVIAIO 000°0%L-59Z-T0T
TZ809 00°69 6T/€T/80 T00-%€£8L800 5019 NWAY - SAITddNS IOIAI0 HADIAAO SSAYIXT INIUd SHITddNS HNILVIHAO 000°0%L-G9Z-T10T
SaNACY¥D 3 9NIATING 9z 3deqg

19°6G2'C ONISSESSY LGZ 3ded Iod Teaol
90609 287181 6T/L2/80 16626 2 TIATT - FAONYNAINIVW €HM TYANNY YSHYS SINHNATIOY HINYNTLNIVH 000°9€6-L52-10T
€L809 0071961 61/L2/80 6G2GZT /80 - Hdd IMOdANS/ONISSHASSY TYNNNY TIYMILIOS ¥3Sd SHADTIANES TYNOISSHIOUA 000" LT8-LGZ-T0T
11609 66°TH 6T/L2/80 9TSHHEGS08 SHITddNS HDTAIO HOYINVYAAY SATIVLS SYITddNS ONILYIEdO 000°0%L-LGZ-TOT
£€809 67 €Y 6T/€1/80 €G€£0926508 SHITddNS HDIAJAO AOYINVAQY SHATAYILS SAITIANS ONIIVIAIO 000" 0%L-LSZ-TOT
78809 78T 61/L2/80 6107 YIINILAAS a3Q¥/ALITIEYSIA/AAIT HITT TYNOILYN NOSIAYWN VSIAd WIEL ONOT TONYINSNI 00€°9TL-LG5Z-T0T
8809 TP 1 6T/L2/80 TOES07Z000SINY WATHEYd 6102 JAAWALIS TYINEd ¥IT3d HONYINSNI TYLNIQ 00Z°9TL-£LSZ-T0T
78809 09°L 61/L2/80 6107 ¥AINILAEAS d3Q¥/ALITIAYVSIA/HTIIT HITT TYNOIIYN NOSIAYW /9¥SIAd WIEI IMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-LGZ-T0T
ONISSHESSY LGz 3adsa
aNAd HONIILVYAIO TYHENIED TOT pund
J09YD Junoury 931ed JUd S0TOoAUT ‘0S89 9DTOoAUT IOPUDA os9Q 19 IaqunN 19

—
I

{
11/2"

:abeg

ADEHD ¥Hd¥d HJXL MOHHD

qLZ I T¥=0r
6T0C/TE/80 - 6T0:

- dIv¥d

/80 SILVA ISOd

dTIHSNMOL SYWOHL 904 I¥0dHa ~OIINII¥ILSIA T9 HOIOANI

drysumar sewoyr :dd
[dIEQ :7x8sn
Wd €971y 6T02/€0/60



657967 ONILSNOD/NOILISINDOY ALITIOWA 9G6L 3dsg@ I ~230%

856809 80° 8L 6T/L2/80 SOID - £€-G.929¢C SYI¥d - IJdIT auSSIOS AITY INIY 909 SINIWAAOYIWI TYLIAYD 0S§G°VL6-9SL-TOT
85809 80 8LI 61/L2/80 SOTD - €-£L9297 SMI¥d - IJAIT ¥0SSIOS HIIE INEY 909 SINAWZAOYAKI TYLIAYD 0SS FL6-9GL-TO0T
95809 €768 6T/€1/80 9%829 YALSIWAA 9070 SNAW - dvd dId9 ¥00d ANOLS IdIM  90¥ SINAWIAOIAKI TYLIAVO 0GS " 7L6-9GL-TOT
T1£809 00168 6T/€1/80 T19696T HI¥d ISN-IITIAM - dMI SYWOHI "ONI dN0Y¥D ¥ADIAS I SYWOHI INAWAAOIAWI dYD 00G " ¥7L6-9GL-TOT
ON¥ISNOD/NOILISINOOY XLITIOVA 96, 3dsg

9%°50Z‘c NOILWILSINIWAY 2S5, -deq Iod Te3ol
F5809 8L LS 61/L2/80 TC0-666L800 M¥Yd FHL NI SONINIAHE - SEAJOTIANA IDIAI0 SSAYAXH INI¥Md ONIHSITINd 3 ONIINIYd 000°T06-2SL-TOT
75809 00°€12Z 6T/L2/80 TC0-ZL6L800 ¥Yd HEHL NI ONINIAT - ALVA HHIL JAVS HOIAI0 S$STIAXH INIdd ONIHSITENd ¥ SNIINIYd 000°T06-2SL-TOT
61809 00°00T 6T/€T/80 6T02 1SNONY SHDIAYAS TYDAT LANYEE OLILO SHOIAYAS TYNOISSAIOEd 000" LT8-ZGL-TOT
12809 86°6C 6T/L2/80 0E676EIVEE T1/92/60-61/L2/80 - ITI0E - VIIDOAM FHISXS SSANISNd SAAVIL SHITd4ANS DONILYIEJO 000°0FPL-2GL-TOT
73809 29°LzZ 61/L2/80 6T0C dAARAIIAS A®AV¥/ALITIGVSIA/HATT =ATT TYNOILUN NOSIAYW VSIA WIHAIL ONOT HONVINSNI 00€°9TL-25L-10T
82809 €T PP 61/L2/80 TO0ES0FZ000STd WNIHAYd €102 JAAWALIAS TYINAA YITHEd HONVEASNI TYLNIQ 20Z°9TL-2GL-T0T
73809 €T L6 61/L2/80 6102 JAIWALJES a3QY¥/ALITIGVSIQ/HATT EAIT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW /9¥SIA WIEI IMOHS/NOISIA J0T 9TL-2GL-T0T
69809 60°GT 61/L2/80 T/0T1-0Z2/60-£000 MOISIA/HITYAH THIHS HNTd SSOYD HNTH /9YSIA WAL LMOHS/NOISTIA J0T°9TL-2GL-T0T
69809 €L7025'T 6T1/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-€£000 NOISIA/HITYIH TAIHS HANTd SSOJID 4ANId FONVEASNI HITYAH J00°9TL-2SL-T0T
NOIIVMISININAY ZG6L 3dea

L6°9LL'S ONILHOIT 1IFILS 8F% 3dsd Iod TB3OL
L6L0Y €L°609°Y 6T/€1/80 €LLTLLO08TOC SIHDIT I¥¥ILS - TTI9 ALITIIN 00 ADYIANA SIANNSNOD SEILITILA D00°026-8%F-TOT
L6109 P2 L9T‘T 6T/€1/80 T96TESHPSO9P0Z Q¥ IHOIT QET 6098%F - TIIE AIITIIN 00 XDYIENA SYHANASNOD SATILITILN D00 026-8%F-T0T
ONIIHOIT ILATILS 8% adeq

8L°C6E'V8 SMTYMAAIS Zpy 3ded Iod Te3iog
L5809 8L Z69 ‘€8 61/€1/80 6T-9%1T NOILOAMINOD ATYMAIS dd SYWOHL N 00 NOILOAYISNOD DIFOoM SINIFNIAOEAWT TYIIAYD 000°¥L6-2F%F-T0T
96L09 00°00L 6T/€1/80 869€609TE6 OHS - OVID - SIHDITIATYLS OIWIDATH XO¥ENT SYARNSNOD SINTWIAOYAWI TYIIAYD 000" 7L6-2F7-T0T
SMTYMIQIS Zib _3deqg

vCT560°2 SEA0D NOIIONMISNOD TZv 3¢ad I0d Te3olL
00609 00°0F 6T/L2/80 Z ‘21 JHAIWALIES ¥MIS - SSYTID NAd DI YAIJVHD XATIVA SVS ONINIVIL 3 NOILYONdd 000°096-T2%-T0T
G609 00°68¢C 6T/€T/80 0T ‘LZ-FZ °1dES NOILVEILSIOHAY HONAJIHANOD TIVA 6T0Z O JANOD STIYIDIILIO TAOD ONINIYIL 3 NOIIVONdH 000°096-T2F-T0T
£6809 LETLL 6T1/€1/80 18852509 TALA TASHAIA/SYD ONI XdaMm TINA TASHEIA 3 SVD 00T 8E€6-TCH-TO0T
90609 287181 6T/L2/80 156628 Z THAAT - AONYNEINIVW 9EM TYANNY YSWYS SINIWNIAYOV HONYNILNIYA 000°9€6-TZF-TOT
TT609 66°0¢€ 6T/L2/80 9TG¥¥£5508 SMIT4dAS HDIAAO IOVLNYAQY SATAVLS SHMITAdNS DNILVIHIO 000°0%L-TZH-T0T
78809 62°€T 61/L2/80 6T0C YAAWILAES A3dY¥/ALITIAVSIA/EAIT ddIT TYNOIIUN NOSIAYW VSId WJIHI HONOT HONVINSNI 00€"9TL-TZH-TOT
8L809 96°2L1 61/L2/80 T0EG0FZ000SIY WOINTId 670 JIIHALIES TYINAA VITAd AONINSII TYINIA 00Z°9TL-T1ZH-T0T
78809 06 8% 61/L2/80 610 9EAWILAES a3ay¥/ALTTIAYSIA/ZAIT HAIT TYNOILYN NOSIAVW /dV¥SIA WIEI I¥0AS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-TZH-TOT
69809 96°1T 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HIIVEH THIHS INTd SSOID ANTI /GYSIA MNHL I¥OHS/NOISIA 00T°9TL-TZH-TOT
82809 062 6T/L2/80 T/0T~-02/60-2000 FONYIASNI HITYAH THIHS INTd SSOJ0 HEATd /dYSIA WIAL LJ04dS/NOISIA 00T "9TL-TZV-TO0T
69809 S 06T'T 6T1/L2/80 T/0T-0Z/60-£000 NOISIA/HITVAH ‘INIHS HATd SSOYD dANTd AONVINSNT HITYHH 000 '9TL-TZH-TOT
S$HJ0D NOILONYISNOD Tzk 3dea

PET66E‘E INARAOTEARA ALINQAWAOD TLE 3380 104 TEIOL
£6809 6L°8T 61/£1/80 18862509 TANd TASAIA/SYD ONI XdM TENL TASIIAd ? SYD 00T"8€6-TLE-TOT
90609 Z8°181 61/LZ/80 16625 2 TIATT - FONYNILNIVW 9EM TYANNY HYSHYS SINTWATIOV HONYNAINIVRH 000°9€6-TLE-TOT
60609 00621 61/L2/80 LPSLET NIW 3Tdd¥ IV SNAZID HHL TONI dnoy¥o ¥¥dIds SHOIAYAS TYNOISSHIOTd 000" LT8-TLE-TOT
61809 00°009°T 6T/€1/80 61902 1SNonvY SHDIAYHES TUOHET IANYYd OLIO SHOIAGES TYOHT 000°Z08-TLE-TOT
11609 9€°80T 61/L2/80 9TSPPESS08 SHITAANS HIIAJIO IOVINYAQY SHATAVLS SHITAdNS DNILVIHAO 000°0FL-TLE-TOT
0609 00°0€ 6T/L2/80 6T0Z ‘3T ISNONY INARAIIOV MTYMAAIS O LTALSIOHAI 0D MUNIOVYS SHITAANS HNIIVIIIO 000" 0% L-TLE-TOT
78809 6%°¢c 61/L2/80 6T0C HHIWALAAS a3d¥/ALITIGVSIA/TAIT FAIT TYNOILUYN NOSIAYW VSIA WIHIL ONOT TONTEASNI 00€°9TL-TLE-TOT
8L809 20°S¥2 61/LZ/80 T0€GI7Z2000STIY WATWAId 6T0C AAIWAIIAS TYINAd YITAd HONVEASHI TYINIQ 00Z°9TL-TLE-TOT
INIFRJOTIAEA XLINAWKOD TLE 3dad
aNAd ONITYYEJO TYMEANED TOT pund
3}09YD AUNOWY a23eqg JUuD SOTOAUT *089( 90T0AUT JIOPUBA osaq T9 IaqunN 19

11/¢€

:abeg

MOHEYD ¥HdVd fHdAL MOEHD - dIVd
JEZITYNANOC

6T0Z/1€/80 - 6102/10/80 SAIYA LS04
dIHSNMOL SVYWOHL Y04 Id0dHd NOIIAIIYLSIA T9 HOIOANI

Q....nﬂmQSOH_ seuwoy, -dJd

HIdTHd -a9sn

Wd £€S5:T0 6T0Z/€0/60



AR A dRYD A¥d GLL 3ded I0d Telol

25809 00°80T 6T/€1/80 6102 ‘Z 1LSnony 61/2/8 - dIMI dAWYD AVAd WIVd TYINNZINAD SSIHEM SAT™IL QTEIA 000" TE8-GLL-TOT
8£809 06726¢ 6T/€1/80 90-02-6T0Z /20/80 % 61/9¢/L0 - SdIMI dWYD A¥Ad Id TOOHOS AHTIVA NYMS SdTdL QIdId 000" TE€8-SLL-TOT
8£809 06°¢£62 6T/€1/80 P0-02-6T0Z2 T/6T/L % 6T/Z1/L - SAT¥L dW¥D A¥A IAd TOOHOS XATIVA NYMS SdT¥I AT3II 000" TE€8-GLL-TOT
92809 257 0L 6T/€1/80 6T0Z X100 SEAITIANS dWYO A¥A/SNOISSEONOD  ANOWHONAS/4NTO S.,WYS SAITAANS ONIIVIEIO 000°0%¥L-SLL-TOT
dW¥D A¥a SLL 3dsa

V6 6¢ SINAAHA TYIOAAS pLL 3deg 104 Te3ol
92809 b6 62 6T/€1/80 6T0Z X1I0r SEITAANS dWYD A¥d/SNOISSEONOD  ANOWHONAS/LNTO S.WYS SAITdANS ONIIVIEIO 000 0% L-FLL-TOT
SINIAY TYIDEAS v.LL 3deq

6£°28EET HONUNILNIVH 3 SNOILVIEdO 0.L 3dsa 1od TePIOL
£6809 8T TLS 6T/€1/80 18852509 TiNd TISHIA/SYD ONI XdM TANT TISAIA 3 S¥YD 00T 8E£6-0LL-TOT
74809 €0°189°¢ 6T/L2/80 89ZL6E-€0 SY¥Yd - YOLOVMI GEZIO - YIVATY 00 INIWAINOE NOLITEYD ASNAIXT FTOIHIA 000°8€6-0LL-TOT
71609 T0°208 61/L2/80 6T0Z 1SNONY SUIYdTE/FONYNILNIVIH SMIOLS JSL AONYNALNIVN/ SSIVdHET 000°0€6-0LL-TOT
€809 127291 6T/€£T/80 6T0Z AInL /TIOSdOL/SHATAGEd HOVES/SYHATINOG IW ONI 1SEA0D INOIS HONYNIINIVR/ SAIVdTI 000°0€6-0LL-TOT
z€£809 00°¥L 6T/€T/80 6567E SY¥VYd - MDOT WOOHUSSYIO ¥IATT IWSMO0T dAANOd S NYIS AONYNALNIVA/ SITYdTT 000 0£6-0LL-TOT
62809 LO°GOT 6T/€1/80 6T0C A100 XGALANED/SMIYd - INI¥d SRYITIIM-NIMMEHS FONYNILNIVH/ SIIVdEd 000" 0£6-0LL-TOT
91809 61°L8 6T/€1/80 6T0Z A1I00 FONYNILNIVW ETOIHZA HS A0 SI¥Vd OIAY YJ¥N HONYNIINIVWN/ SIIVdTT 000°0€6-0LL-TOT
50809 00°02¢ 6T/€1/80 Z09%L-¥ M¥MY¥d SIMAEOY - TING IIATIOL FTAVI¥Od NI LOdS-EHI-NO-ZINNOL AONYNALNIVA/ SIIVdTI 000°0£6-0LL-TOT
70809 PrZeL’T 6T/€1/80 6T0Z ISNONY AONYNALNIYN/ SHIVddT 10ddd FWOH HONUNALNIVH/ S9IVdTT 000 0€6-0LL-TOT
Z6L09 62791 6T/€1/80 6102 ATI0C SY¥MVd - HONYNALNIVH/SYIvVddad FAIHAT JIIEYO HONYNALNIVN/ SIIVdTI 000°0€6-0LL-T0T
5809 16°8¢ 61/L2/80 GZ660T06L902C a4 JIATY S 00L - TIId ALITILA 00 XOYENE SHAWASNOD SHAILITILIO 000°026-0LL-TOT
GL809 8€°GGT 61/L2/80 065507686502 @d JATIIN S GGF - TIId XIITIIN 00 X9¥ANA SUYAWNSNOD SHILITILAO 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
GL809 £1°89 6T/L2/80 9E€ZELPSSHSO0T Q4 AAQET 00% - TTI9 ALITILIO 00 ADWANE SYAWNSNOD SHILITILAO 000°0C6-0LL-TOT
GL809 66°L9L 61/L2/80 GEZELPSSPS0Z TO0d - a9 XAAdT 00 - TII9 ALITIIO 00 ADYINE SYIWASNOD SATLITILN 000°026-0LL-TOT
GL809 €8 61/L2/80 LG8ZSSEHLYOT @d IOILVYD G£S6 — TIId ALITIIN 00 XO¥ANT SYFWNSNOD SATLITILO 000°026-0LL~TOT
GL809 1€°221 61/L2/80 £%5289£9620¢C ad AQQ¥T 00€ - TITd ALITILA 00 ADYANT SYIAWNSNOD SATLITIIN 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
G809 0T LY 6T/L2/80 TT029L0%V£202 LS NOO¥d GGL - TII9 ALITIIN 0D ASYANT SYAWNSNOD SEILITILIA 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
L6L09 16°8€ 6T/€1/80 9ZFEE6TTOTO09 ad ¥ITIIK § S09 - TTIE ALITILN 00 ADYANZT SUTWASNOD SHILITILO 000°026-0LL-TOT
L6L09 €0°LTZ 6T/€T/80 PELTLLO08TOZ DIT T ad XAAAT 00€ - TIId ALITIIN 00 ADYEANI SYIWANSNOD SHILITILO 000°026-0LL-TOT
L6L09 8G 6L 6T/€1/80 LGLTLLO08TOZ DIT FT 1S NOQVWd GGL - TIIE XIITILIN 00 ADYENT SYTWNSNOD SHILITILN 000°026-0LL-TOT
21609 PT°LG6°E 6T/L.2/80 99%¥ AONYNALNIVIKA NMYT LSNONY ILONYISNOD AATIYA-TIYL SHADIAYES JALIVEINOD 000°0T8-0LL-TOT
92809 98°0¢ 6T/€1/80 6T0Z X100 SAITAANS dWYO AVAQ/SNOISSIONOD  ANOWHONAS/ANTD S,HWYS SHITddNS ONILVTIIJO 000 0% L~0LL-TOT
FONUNAINIVA 3 SNOILVIHdO 0L, 3dsg

LE'6 A9EEO¥Y 89, 1dsq Iod TeRIOL
71609 LE"6 6T/L2/80 6102 Isnony SYIVAAY/AONYNHT LN IV STIOLS OSIL SHITAANS HONILY¥IJO 000°0%L-89L-TO0T
XJHEHOYY 89L 3daa

0G°69F TI¥d1J0S IInd¥Y §9¢. 3ded Iod Teaol
65809 00°%8 6T/€T1/80 G-6107 61/L0/80-G2/L0 — TIVAILJIOS SNIAW TATTYA WYITTIIM SHDIAMIES JILIOVIINOD 000°018-S9L-T0T
£2809 00°06GT 6T/€1/80 G-610C 61/L0/80-52/L0 - TIVELIOS SNIARX MYZOd0N L9ag0d SEDIAYES AALOVEINOD 000°0T8-59L-T0T
01809 00799 6T/€T/80 $-6102C 61/L0/80-G2/L0 - TIVILIOS SNAW NOITON MI¥K SHDIAYAS dALOVEINOD 000°0T18-69L-10T
90809 00778 6T/€1/80 S-610¢ 61/L0/80-GZ/L0 - TIYALIOS SNIAW IISMYENW d HJISOr SADIAMES QELOVEINOD 000°0T8-59L-T0T
€6L09 00799 6T/€T/80 G-6T102 61/L0/80-S2/L0 - TIVLIIOS SNARN MY0IA ¥ FAITIVHD SEOIAYIES (HLOVILNOD 000°0T8-G9L-T0T
50609 GL'6 6T/L2/80 L7818 HOIIAMOTS SNAW OF¥ - HIVId AHAOMI TIIW SNILIINY MUNIOVS SHIT4dNS ONILVIIJO 000" 0%L-G9L-T0T
50609 GL'6 61/L2/80 £6L18 HOLIAMOTS OdY - HALV¥Id AHAOWI TIIW SNILLINY MYNIOVS SHITAdNS SNILYIIJO 0007 0%L-G9L-T0T
TI¥dLA0S L10Ad¥ 69, adeq

ST1°26¢C SWYYD0dd WIMS T9. 3ded Iod Te3ol
9£809 617262 6T/€1/80 9LG9§ SAIELS LSAL/+MTY/+Hd/MOOHS STOOd HANIHSNAS AONYNALNIVH/ SIIVdHA 000°0£6-T9L-T0T
SHYI90dd WIMS T19. 2deq
aNQd ONILVIEdO TYVNENED 10T PUund
J09YD 1UNOuy a3ed U 20TOAUT *0S3(Q SOTOAUT IOPUDA ose@g TO ISqUNN 19

y

11/%

:abeg

MOEHD ¥@AYd
qHAZ I TEBINOL
6T0Z/TE/80 - 610

fddAL MDEHD

- dIv¥d

/80 SHIVA 1S0d

dIHSNMOL SVWOHL ¥0d Id0dh. {OILAFINISTIA T9 IDIOANI

Qﬂsmczbb,mmEosB :da
IdIHa :xssn
Wd €G-.u 6T02/€0/60



90609 Z8 181 €T/L2/80 16626 Z TIAAT - FONUNAINIVA 93M TYANNY YSWYS SININATIOV FINVNIINIVK "N0T9E£6-000-G02Z
61809 00°6¢ 61/L2/80 PIPL  NOIIDILOYA T¥IJ NOILOIASN NNNY NYAW0O 9NIdId OIWVHAQ SINIWNITIOY HONYNALNIVH "9€6-000-502
88L09 99°1 6T/€1/80 peocs T ¥ON¥L - .¥ddd INIWIINOE F¥Id OTI0dY SINIHITIOY HONYNIALNIVA wu0'9€6-000-60Z
88L09 99°L0%Z 61/€1/80 vI9€ES ZH - 9IVdEd INIWHAINOE HIId 0T70dY¥ SINIWATIOY HCNYNTINIVH 000°9€£6-000-50¢
8809 99°L0Z E€T/€1/80 TT9€G 7 YAANAL - 9IVdTY INIWAINOE TMId 0T=0dY¥ SINANTTIOVY FCNYNILINIVRH 000°9€£6-000-502
88L09 99°L07 61/€1/80 019€6S T3 - MIVdAY INIWIINOE FHII OTT0dY SINFHITIOV FTNYNALNIYH 000°9€6-000-502
G809 £8°677Z 61/L2/80 00LEZIPILEDT ad E0IA 0.66 - TII9 ALITIIN 0D Z9¥WIANZT SYINASHOD SEATLITIIN 000°026-000-G0¢C
5809 LE9TE 61/L2/80 6LL289€96202 d4d SATAIHS G128 - TIId AIITILA 0D AO¥INE SYTWASNOD SEILITILIN 000°026-000-50Z
G809 9L TLY 61/L2/80 90LZ97P7S5G02 Qd ¥ATIIN N GG€ - TII€ ALITILN 00 ADYENE SYIWASNOD SAILITIIN 000°026-000-502
7809 GT"2E 61/€1/80 /T0/8C-6T/10/50 ad @0Id 0L66 - TTI9 ALITILN YEIVM dML SYWOHI SEILITILIN 000°026-000-502
L6L09 £z 6T/€T1/80 0TZ2S8T9€102 ad NFIIS 6098% - TII9 ALITILO 00 X9¥INE SYIWASHOD SHILITILIN 000°026-000-502
L8LO9 Z8 LTI 6T/€1/80 8ZZ9EY FOIAEAS ENOHATTAL LAN" €21 ANOHAHTHL 000°068-000-502
86L09 £8°80¢ 6T/€T/80 816G0C TYOISAHd HIAOTAWA TTNOILYANDD0 INUYNIAOD STYIDSAHd INIWAOTAWA 000°9£8-000-502
86L09 997656 6T/€1/80 209502 STYDISAHd HEXOTAWE TINOIIVANDIO INVYNIAOD STYIDSAHd INEWAOTINA 000°9£8-000-50¢
86L0¢% 267 L6L 6T/€1/80 TLESOZ STYOISAHd HHAOTIWHE TIWNOIILVANDDO INVNIAOD STYIDSAHd INAWXOTIWA 000°9€8-000-502
Z160¢ €V 9%F 61/L2/80 997¥ TONUNILNIVA NMYT IS090Y IIDNULSNOD AHTIVA-TIIL SEOIANES TEIOVIINOD 001 018-000-50¢
£680¢ L9 GL 61/L2/80 6T6DGTGSOAMD 6T/0€/TT-6T/T10/60 - FSYIYD 3 TIO ANYIWOD HOIVAITE SIIO SEOIAYES TALOWIINOD 00T°0T8-000-50T
8580¢ 9€ 62" 6T/€1/80 ZLOGEILED SEOYYHD/EOYSN/ITLIN NOIILWIOdY¥0D RCIHAX SEDIAIIS QIIOTIINOD 20T 0T8-000-602
8580¢ £8° %< 6T/€1/80 FP9ETSLI60 SEOUYHI/E9YSN/IALIN NOTIIVHOJY0D XCHEX SEDIAYES ATIOVIINOD 20T 0T8-000-50C
1780¢ 06°222 6T/€T/80 F9TS A9Id - INIWISHNIWIEY II 0Ld TYHINTD dMI SYWOHL SAJIANIS AALOVIINOD 207T°0T8-000-502
6T80% 00°0GT 6T/€T/80 6T0Z ISNONY SEOIANAS TyOAT LANYId CLIO SADIAGES TYOIT 200°208-000-502
0£80¢ 00°82 6T/€T/80 ZPIGT HITd - SOSCT LIWTHH ONI FOVHI NOIS SIFOI INN 200" Z¥L-000-502
0€80S 05°€Z% 6T/€1/80 TP1S¢C qIId - SO9CT LIAWTHH ONI FOVWI NOIS SO INA D00°Z¥L-000-50¢
L2809 0z° 12 6T/€T/80 T158¢€ TITd - SINOAINNA SI¥OdS LOTANYS SWHO0A INN 000" 2¥L-000-50¢
02809 90°0¢¥F 6T/€1/80 8TEL6-IS IYId - SWMOJAINA ITALNO ALIAVS XINIOHA SOOI INA D00 Z¥L-000-50C
02809 06" 0% 6T/€1/80 9€ZL6-1IS TId - SWIOJINA IIAINO XIFAVS XINIOHI SINMOAINN 000°Z¥L-000-50¢C
11509 6661 61/L2/80 9TSHFFESSO8 SIITAANS FDOIAIO AOVINVAQY SETAVIS SEITAANS INIIVITIO D00 0¥ L-000-50¢T
76309 00°6€ 61/L2/80 T00-TG6L800 FYId - SAITIANS ADIAIO FOIAIO SSHNIXE INI¥d SHITAANS ONIIVYEO 000°0%L-000-G0Z
06309 00°0€ 6T/€1/80 SL8ZST TITA - SHIIVAY ¥OA dno¥s HOFIL JOLIFEA SEITAANS DNIIVNEIO 000" 0%L-000-502
12309 86°€S 6T/€1/80 T00-09LL800 FIIL - SHITAAAS HDIAI0 IOIAI0 SSHYIXE INIHA SAITAANS DNIIVIAIO 000°0%L-000-502
06L09 $6°7C 6T/€T/80 LGE09ZLTd AMAILVE A¥YET AZT 08€ - SNTd SHIVELIVE SEITAANS DNILVIEAO 000°0%L-000-50¢2
78309 98°6¢ 61/L2/80 6107 HEINILAAS asav/ALITIIYSIA/TAIT HATT TYNOIIYN NOSIAYW ¥SIA MMIL SNOT HONTINSNI 00€°9TL-000-50¢
84309 8€°91¢ 6T/L2/80 T0E£607Z0005TY WOINZdd 6102 YHIGWIIIES TYINId ¥ITIA TONVEASNI TYLNAQ 00Z°9TL-000-502
v8309 0F"€0T 6T/L2/80 6T0Z HIINALATS asa¥/AIITIGYSIA/AATT FIIT TYNOILYN NOSIAVW /9¥SIA WHHIL IMOIS/NOISIA 00T"9TL-000-502Z
69309 6T°G2Z 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HITIVAH TAIHS HANTE SSOYD HNTd  /4¥YSIA WAL I¥OAS/NOISIA 00T°9TL-000-502Z
69309 88°GEE'T 61/L2/80 T/01-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HITIVAH THAIHS HINTIE SSOMD HNTL TONVENSNI HITYIH 000°9TL-000-502
98309 20768171 61/L2/80 S0ZL9Z9 Z# - WNIWTYd dWOD SYEMYOM  SYEM¥OM TYAIDINAW IW VYSNIJWOO SNWWMYIOM O INnd 0GL TE€Z2-000-502
000 3deqg
INIWIY¥dAd AMIA-ALAAYS OITdNd G0 pund

19°69¢‘92¢ aNnd SNIIVIAd0 TYdENID T0T Puni 104 Telol

GL"72C’60T INC-YEASNVEL G66 3dad Iod TRIOL
£%809 GZ°£92'69 6T/€T1/80 020Z/6102 ADITOd - ¥AASNVIL YAINYAO IST JYS OITHNE dML SYWOHL g0IT0d - ALEAYS 0ITdnd L0Z 666-566-T0T
zZ%809 0S T9L‘EP 6T/€1/80 3Z202-6102 FYTA - YHISNYEI 9AIGVAD IST JV¥S OITdNE dMI SVHOHL qIId - ALFEIYS OITdnd S0 666-G66-T0T
INO-YTISNWVIL G66 3daq

787 66% NIVEL 94, 3deQ 04 TB3IOL
£5809 [fehale; 6T/€1/80 18862509 TENd TISHIA/SYD ONI XEM THAd TASIIA ® SYD 00T 8€6-9LL-T0T
L0609 €6°91¢ 61/L2/80 ZFETEZO0TO SMAYd - NIVYL - ¥OSSTYAN0D ¥IY¥ OF 3 EMVEE DIAILNIIOS HONYNAINIYH/ SYIVdRT 000°0€6-9LL-TOT
62809 0G6°0T 61/51/80 510Z X100 XIIIANED/SMI¥d - INIVd SHYITIIM-NIMIZHS TONYNIINIVH/ SIIVATA 000°0£6-9LL-T0T
91809 GZ° 8¢ 61/£1/80 5T0Z A100 HONUNZINIVH TIOIHHA HE J0 SI¥vd OILNY ¥dAYN HONVNKALNIVH/ SEIVdTd 000°0£6-9LL-TOT
1809 66708 6T/51/80 988¢€8 AONYNZINIVA NIVIL - TIELS Y<KOD SY0IVOI¥EVd MW HONVNIINIYR/SYIVdTT 000" 0E£6-9LL-T0T
NIVEI 9L 3ded
aNnd SNILVIAJO TvYENED T0T Pund
JO2YD JUNOWY 931ed UD S50TOAUT 089 S0TOAUT IOPUSA ossg TH IoCquNN T9

11/6 :abeg

MDHHD dHdv¥d
JEZITENINOL

PAdXIL MDEHD

~ dIvd

6T0Z/TE/80 - 6T02/T0/80 SILYA ISOd
dIHSNMOL SYWOHL ¥O0d ILI0dHd NOIINIIYISIA TS HADIOANI

dTysumo] sewoyl :9d
H4dIHEa :assn

Wd €5:T0 6T0C/€0/60



GL809 997 LT 61/L2/80 TL00T6ZLZTIOC 1D ¥ETIIN 6€Z - TIId ALITILN 00 X9WANA SHAWASNOD SATLITILO 000°026-000-8%2
06809 00°818°Z 61/L2/80 90LZT O WSIYOYIHL/TYMANTY DM TYIONAWWOD ¥ HONVEASNI HAGWAW AN TIGVIT TVNEANID FONVINSNI 000°0T6-000-8%2
adaq
K3taoyany auswdoToasg UMOIUMOQ mmm pung

2€°806°8T FOITOd-ALIIVS DITENd L0Z PUnd Iod Te3of]

ze°805°8T 000 3dsq z0d TE3OL
02609 6L°2C 6T/LZ/80 ONINIVEI OYL - 6T-71-8 - INAWASUNGWIHAT NOSYHNIS T¥MHAHS ONINIVIL 3 NOILYONdd 000°096-000-L02
82809 99°68 6T/€T/80 ONINIVEIL OSYT - 6T-L0-80 - INIWISYNIWIHAT NOSYHNIS I¥IHAHS ONINIVYL 3 NOIIVONAH 000°096-000-L02
£49809 6E°7EB'T 6T/€T/80 188492509 TINd TISAIA/SYD ONI XAM TANd THSAIA 3 SY9 00T *8£6-000-L02
56809 70" 069 6T/L2/80 G997¢ FOITOd - JIVAEY ATOTHAA IOV ¥ FMIL ANYT M0IND ISNHAXH ATOIHAA 000°8€6-000-L02
9%809 06°LE 6T/E£T/80 6T0C X1Ar SEHSYM HTOIHEA ONI dIddL ASNHAXH FATOTHAA 000°8£6-000-L02
66L09 9L 6L 6T/€1/80 6T0Z A1Ar TOITOd - FONYNAINIVA ATOIHAA OLOY § TAGAONLIS HTYA ASNAIKT ATIIHIA 000°8£6-000-.02
90609 287181 6T1/L2/80 16628 Z TIAIT - FONYNAINIVHN 9aM TYANNY YSHYS SINAWNATIOV TONYNALNIYN 000°9€6-000-L02
6L809 00°GLT 61/L.2/80 pIpL  NOIZDIIOMd HYIA NOILODAJSNI TYANNY NYAWNOD SNIAId DIWYNAQ SINANATIOY AONYNALNIVH 000°9€6-000-L0¢
GE809 0% " LE 6T/E€T/80 TT060¥%T SAITIANS ONILITIAAO SEINYAROD ILIWHNS HONYNHINIVH/ SIIVIHT 000" 0£6-000-L02
GL809 LETITE 6T/L2/80 6LL289€96202 ¥a SATIIHS G128 -~ TII9 AIITILN 00 AODYHANA SUAWASNOD SHAILITILIN 000°026-000-L02
L8L09 Z8°LTT 6T/€1/80 8229¢¥ HDIAYIES UNOHAETIL IFAN"€2ZT ANOHAATHL 000°068-000-L02Z
86L09 00°20T 6T/E€1/80 179602 TYDISAHd TAXOTAWH TYNOIIYANDD0 LNYNAAOD STYIDSAHd ILNAWAOTIWE 000°9€8-000-L02
21609 [ARA 61/L2/80 99%¥% FONYNAINIVW NMYT IS0ONY IIONYLSNOD AHATIVA-TIL SHOTAYAS QALOTILNOD 00T°018-000-L0C
£6809 L9°GL 61/L2/80 6T60GTSGIAMD 6T/0€/TT1-6T/T0/60 - FSYAYD ® TIO ANYAWOD HOIVAZTH SIILO SADIAYES AHLOTILNOD 00T°0T8-000-L0C
86809 LETSTT 6T/€T/80 ZLO6E9LEQ SHOMYHD/ADY SO/ IHLAW NOIIWIOLE0D XO¥EX SHOTAMAS JALOVILNOD 00T 0T8-000-L0C
85809 78 vET 6T/€1/80 F9ETSLI60 SEOYVHD/ADYSN/ITLIH NOILVIOJE0D XOdHX SEDIA¥AS JALOVIINOD 00T 018-000-L0¢C
17809 00°L92 6T/€T/80 LIS AOITOd - SINIWISINGWIAY II Nd TYVIENID dMI SYWOHL SHITAMAS JALOTIINOD 00T'018-000-L0Z
G8809 00°68¢C 6T/LZ/80 91109 TISNAOD JO9Y¥T HOS 3 NOSUALIVA JNSYH SHOTANES TYOHT 000°Z08-000-L3C
61809 00°06T'T 6T/€T/80 6102 LSNONY SEDIAAS TYOHAT LANY¥E OLLO SHEDIAMES TYDHT 000°208-000-L02
26809 05°62 61/L2/80 ?0700L FOITOd - SWIOAINN ANYAWOO WMOJAINN AAN SN0 TN 0007 2Z¥L-000-LDC
L2809 00°GLT 6T/€T/80 80€£8¢ ADITOd - SWIOAINN SIM0dS LOTANYS SO INN 000 Z¥L-000-L97C
L2809 00°LZ 6T/€1/80 L6Z8E ADITCOd - SWIOAINN SIMOdS LOTANYS SIMOA TN 000°2¥L-000-L02
81809 06" TLY 6T/€1/80 dr0v00L ADITOd - SWIOAINA ANYAWOD WMOJAINO HAN SIIOA INN 000°Z¥L-000-L0C
11609 L8°8F 61/1.2/80 9TGPFESS08 SHITAdNS ADIAIO IOYINYAQY SHATIVLS SEITAdNS ONILYIEAO 000°0%L-000-L0C
80809 00°0%S 6T/ET/80 L69G2Z¢ ADITOd — SHOAIJHINOW  SEIDOTONHOAL OOTHAIT SHITAANS HNIIVIAIO 0007 0%L-000-L0C
78809 087 LET 6T/L2/80 6107 YEIWIALIIS a3A¥/AIITIEYSIA/HEATT HJIT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW VSId WIEL DNOT HONVEASNI 00€°9TL-000-L02
8.809 90°%50°T 6T/L2/80 T0ES0Y2000STY WNTAAYd 6102 YAIHALIAS TYINAQ ¥ITId AONTINSNI TYILNAQ 00Z°9TL-000-L0Z
78809 TT°6SY 61/L2/80 610 JIIWNIALIES a3aY¥/ALITIEYSIA/AAIT HATT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW /9¥SIA W¥AL INMOHS/NOISIA 00T°9TL-000-L0Z
69809 €8°6TT 6T/L2/80 T/0T-0Z/60-£000 KOISIA/HITYHH TEIHS HNTd SSOYD ANTd /d¥SIA WAL I¥MOHS/NOISIA 00T°9TL-000-L0C
89809 6T° 0V 61/L2/80 T/01-02/60-2000 IONVINSNI HITYEH THIHS HNTE $SOYD H0Td  /9YSIA WIAL IMOHS/NOISTA 00T°9TL-000-LDZ
69809 vz 880’8 6T/L2/80 T1/0T-02/60-€£000 NOISTIA/HITYAH TEIHS HNTd SSOID ANTd AONVINSNI HITYHAH 000°9TL-000-L0¢C
98809 G9T9LY T 61/LZ/80 602929 Z# - WNINEYd dWOD SYMM¥OM  SYI¥YOM TVAIDINAW IN VYSNAJWOD SNYIDIMOM OL dnd 0GL"T€Z-000-L0C
000 3dada
IDITOd-AIFAYS DITdNd L0Z Pund

16°€20°2T INIRIEVAHd FEId-ALIIVS OITdNd G0Z PUnd Iod TR30L

T6°€20’CT 000 3daa 104 Te3l0L
88809 00° 006 61/L2/80 TI AON - € LJdES TOA - WOUd YHANOASHEY ISUId TYDIMEW O TYOIAIWN NYOIHOIWAIN ONINIVIL 3 NOILYONdX 000°096-000-50C
71809 00°00L 6T/€T/80 16€ SSYT0 YANWAS SINIAALS IWNE O TYIICHN NYDIHOIWAIW ONINIVIL 3 NOILVYONAA 000°096-000-50¢2
£59809 8L 967 6T/€T/80 18862609 THNd TESEIA/SYD ONI XdM THINA TISEIA 3 SVD 00T 8£6-000-90¢
87809 987 VL 6T/€T/80 966€2 FIIL - HONUNHINIVA HTOIHEA 9D IDIAYAS OLNY AAANL ASNHIXH ATOTHAA 000°'8£6-000-502
91809 [ANEAS 6T/€£T/80 6T0Z A1I0L AONYNAINIVN HTIOIHIA HS JO0 SI¥Vd OLOY YdYN ASNHEAXE FTOIHIA 000°8£6-000-50C
21809 00°20T 6T/€1/80 19-CERSTL FITA - TIIL FATYA ONIMVAT 3 SHIVS HMIL JOHITHIW ASNAIXH ATOIHAA 000°8£6-000~502
88L09 00°%0T 6T/€£T/80 90LES O¥EId €6, MTNYI - ¥IVAHY INAWAINOI HdId OTIOdY ASNAAXA ATOIHAA 0007 8£6-000-50C
000 3dada
INFRIMVAEA FTITI-ATIAAYS DITdNd S0Z Pund
097D JUNOUY a3ed UD 90TOAUT ' *0s9g 90TO0AUT IOPUDA os9g 19 IaqunN 9

TN

I1/9°

:abeg

ADEHD dHAVd ‘HAXL FOIHD

qIzr1¥™="00oL0
6T0Z/TE€/80 - 610

- dIvd

/80 SHIVA 1804
dIHSNMOL SYWOHI ¥Od I¥MOdd. NOILNEIMISIA T9 HOIOANI

Qﬂsmczbh/mmﬁogﬁ H = (¢

1drya -assn

Wd €510 6T10Z/€0/50



S0°0E” T NOILIWMISINIWAY 9¢£G 1dsg I ~2307

91609 0G°L0. 6T/1.2/80 6102 YAdJOH - TYMANTY dTHood9WAN JAd INIWNOYIANAT YHIYM SEAd 3 JIHSIIININ 000'708-9£5-066§
€3809 00°0LT 6T/L2/80 FSOFP69T00L dOH - TUYMANAY JIHSMAAWAN 0Z0Z/6T107 SIHOM MEIVM NV IYIAWNY SENd 3 dIHSYHINIR 000°%08-9€5-065
€£809 LY 96 6T/£1/80 £G£0926608 SHITddNS HEIILAC AOYINZAQY SATAVIS OIAI0 SAITIANS OHNIIVIHIO 000°SPL-9€5-06G
16L09 0G° €L 6T/E1/80 §5098€¥VYEE Mdd - WGEGZ - VIHOOAM HISAS SSANISNG SAAVYd 0I4Jd0 SAITIANS ONIIVIHIO 000°SHL-9£5-066G
11609 LE"0€ 6T1/L2/80 9IGPPESSO8 SHITAANS ADTAIC IOVINIAQY SHATIVLS SAITIANS SNILVMIIO 000" 0%L-9€£5-06§
12809 06" LTT 6T/€1/80 TC0-LT6L800 Mdd - SEIT4ANS HAOTAAC  HOIAAO SSHAMAXA LN-Ud SHITAdNS 9NILVIHAIO 000" 0%L-9€£G6-066G
73809 8L°1zC 61/L2/80 610 YHINAIJIS a3Qq¥/ALITIEYSIA/AATT FAIT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW VSIAd WITIL DNOT HONVINSNI 00€°9TL-9€G6-066
81809 GO"ELT 6T/L2/80 T0£S0%¥2000S1d HOATWAYd €-0C YAIHALIES TYINAd YITEA AONVINSNI TYINAd 00Z79TL-9€5-066G
73809 197 0L 61/L2/80 610C JAIWAILJIS as3av¥/ALITIGVSIA/TATIT HAIT TYNOILYN NOSIAVW /9¥SId WJEL IMCHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-9€S-065
69809 LG"5T 61/L2/80 T/01-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYAH THAIHS ANTd SSOND ANTd /d¥SIA WEMFEL IWOHS/NOISIA J0T"9TL-9€6-06G
69809 0L TSS’T 6T/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYAH THAIHS ANTd SSO¥D @NTd HONVMASNI HITVIH J00°9TL-9€G5-06G
NOTIIVMISININAY 9¢G 3ded

6E°6GT 000 3deg zod Te3OL
98809 96°ZG% 6T/L2/80 G02ZL929 Z# - WNINAEd dWOD SMANYOM  SUEMMOM IYdIDINAW IWN ¥SNAJWOD SNYIMYOM OL dNd 0GL"1€2-000-065
ZL809 €79 6T/L2/80 6T0Z/0€/L0 6£8800-CO¥D :INNODDY ¥Od ANAJATY €0 XEH YANIZId FTIVAVd SINNODOY 000°202-000-065
000 3daqa
aNnd ¥IMIS 06G Pung

TT°025°L aNQd X¥¥d9IT TLC Fund Iod Telog

T1°02S°L 000 adsg 04 T®1OL
81609 8G"GGE 61/L2/80 6102 1SN9NY MALIYHD/SAD/9A0IAW NOIZNA LIAEYD HMIAATIM FONYNALNIVA/ SIIYdTd 000°0£6-000-TLZ
99809 00°0%Z 61/L2/80 610 A1I00 AIIEIT - HONYNAINIVH MMYT  JIONYNAINZYW NMYT 934 AONYNALNIVA/ SETIYdTT 000°0£6-000-TLT
GL809 98" T8¢ 61/L2/80 8LL289€9620C ¥d SATAIHS L0Z8 — TIId ALITILA 00 XOWANT SYAWASNOD SHILITILA 000°026-000-TLC
87609 86° %6 6T/L2/80 6102 ISN9NY YAINYHD/SAD/HACTAN NOINA IIdTdd FIIIATIIM INOHAATAL 000°0G68-000-TLZ
59809 86°61¢C 6T/LZ/80 <ZETBO0LLETBLE8E AOIAAS INOHJITHL 131¥ ANOHAETHL 000°068-000-TLZ
6£809 0% "pee 6T/€1/80 /8Z/0T-6T/LT/LO XA¥4dIT - NOILATYOSdNs SMAN MYNIODVS FTHL STYOIA0I¥Ed 000°0€L-000-TLZ
10809 €0°9€¢ 6T/€1/80 /TE€/L0-6T/10/80 AIYPIdIT - NOILAIEOSdAS Y¥ANIYYd YIAHW LIOWIHAd STYOIA0TUAd 000 0€L-000-TLZ
L6809 08" L8€ 6T1/L2/80 1508 $M00d TYASIA/0IANY SMCOd qAYOlTd SM00d TYN3IA/OIANY 002" 8ZL-000-TLZ
18809 V0 cze 61/L2/80 6708 S¥00d OMINJIYAT TOYONFAD/ATYD SYO0d 1TAaY 00T°8ZL-000-TLZ
L9809 GG 6%C’T 6T/L2/80 808 $4009 1-NAY¥/NITIATIHD ¥OTAYL 3 YAV s)0od  110dY¥ 00T"82L-000-TLCZ
L9809 0€°22¢€ 6T1/L2/80 8%08 $4009 I-NAY/NAIATIHD ¥OTAYL 3 ¥AMVd SMO0d SNTIATIHD 000°82L-000-TLC
76809 L6°CT6L 61/L2/80 T00-058L800 AIYIAIT - €4ITddNS FDIAI0 FDIAAO $SAYAXE INIId SAITdANS FDIJAO 000°L2L-000-TLZ
76809 11°¢22C 61/L2/80 T00-9L%L800 XI49IT ~ SAITAdNS FDIAA0 FADILAIO $SAYAXH INI¥d SHITddNS FDIAIO 000°L2L-000-TLZ
G1609 S E¥8G 61/L2/80 Z608 AAYIdIT - ALITIEYSIA SgENg WONO XLITIGYSIA 00S§°9TL-000-TLZ
8.809 Z6°LE 61/L2/80 T0€S0%2000SId ROTHAYd 61027 YHAIWALIES TYINAQ YI1THd AONVINSHI HITVAH 000°9TL-000-TLZ
69809 G0 8€ES 61/L2/80 T/01-02/60-£000 NMOISIA/HLTYAH TAIHS ANTE SSO¥D HNTI AONVINSHI HITVHH 000°9TL-000-TLZ
000 3daqQ
aNQd X¥V9EIT TLZ pund

T1°215°08 3TIOUINY JusudoTaAsg UMO3UMOQ 8FZ PUNI IO TRIOL

T1°215708 000 adsg zoa TE3OL
65809 GL"800°T 6T/71/80 TYNIA INAHAYd LSTYEINI/ANOY ASYHO SANOY LSHIYHALNT (0T $66-000-8%Z
6¢809 00°000°GL 6T/%1/80 TYNIA INIWNAYd LSHMALNI/ANOD ASYHD IHOTTIAAELS - TYdIONIHd 005" 166-000-8%2
£6809 98 TEV ‘T 6T/L2/80 1979 CIFW A0 INOYMA - IHOITLEAYIS ¥IVAAY  "ONI  OIMIDETH AAdHET HAONVNALNIVR/ S9IVdTd 000°0€6-000-8%2
GL809 9z 8% 61/L.2/80 890T88T9ET0Z Q9 IOIIVYND 0LZ8 - TTI9 XIITIIN CO ADMENA SHAWNSNOD SHILITILA 000" 0Z6-000-8%C
GL809 99°¢¥ 61/L2/80 L90T8B8TIYETOZ a@d @MZI0T TO0T - TII9 ALITILN CO AOWANE SYAWASNOID SHILITILIN €00°026-000-8%¢C
SL809 LT°29 61/L2/80 990T88T9ETOC Q¥ IOIIVYD 6069 - TII9 ALITIIN CO ADYANE SYAWASNDID SHILITILA C00°026-000-8%Z
GL809 GL"89 61/L2/80 G90T88T9ETOZ g9 IOTIVYD £98L — TTI9 ALITILA CO X9WEANE SYAWNASNOD SHILITILA €00°026-000-8¥FC
3dea
\AMHHOQM.QG PC@EQOHOPOD umMmciumMmog MWN rung
3}02YDH 1UNoWY 21ed JUD 3DTOAUT "0S3( 9DTOAUT IOpUDA DsaQ 19 IoqumN 9

Tt/L iobeq

MDOHEAD dEdV¥d
AdZ ITYNINOL

fHdAL MDHIHD

- dIv¥d

610C/T€/80 ~ 6T0Z/T0/80 $AI¥YI LSOd
JdIHSNMOL SYWOHL ¥Od ILd0dd¥ NOILNITALSIA 1D dDIOANI

drtysumo] sewoyy :49d
HIdIHa :xesn

Ad €S:T0 6T10C/€0/60



8Y°9€9 971 EONVNAINIVH 3 SNOIIWMEAO 0%§ 3dsg o4 Tejol

68809 00°GL 61/L2/80 LGT6T9T - MONMI dW0d TYIAOM AFHO 66 - MOL OJIAYHS ¥EMOEEM S dMIW ASNAIXA TTOIHHAA 000°8€£6-0%5-0665
£5809 L9°260°T 6T/€£1/80 18862509 TINd TASAIA/ SYD ONI XdM ASNAIXE ATOIHAA 000°8£6-0%5-065
S¥809 00°86% 61/€£1/80 PrIv8T Mdd - FAONYNALNIVA TTIOIHIA LSIMHIMON FIIL NIILIOL ASNAAXH FTOIHIA 000°8£6-0F5-066
S%809 Ly €2 61/€1/80 €PIVS8T MAd - FONYNACNIVH TTOIHFA ISIMHIMON F¥IL NALIOL ASNHIXA FTOTHIA 000" 8£6-075-066G
91809 S8°€T 6T/€1/80 6T0Z ATAC AONYNASNIVW ATOIHAA HS 40 SIMYd OLOY YAYN ASNAIXA FTOIHIA 000°8£6-075-065
90609 187181 6T/L2/80 16626 Z TAAIT — FAONYNIAINIVW €FM TYONNY VSHYS SINANTIIOVY FONYNILNIVH 000°9€6-075-065
61609 96°26 6T/L2/80 96868 Mdd - Aq¥IE/¥939dd LJIHS ULS TIYMAIYH TIHITHOM AONYNILINIVH/ S9IVATS 000 0€£6-0%5-06G
1609 €676 61/L2/80 6102 L1SNoNY SYIVATE/HONYNI LN IV SAVOLS OSL AONYNALNIV/ SIIVdTI 000" 0£6-055-06G
£T609 00°0¢ 6T1/LZ/80 6£926%80T (¥ YATIIW N SSE - HONUNIINIVA NMVT NMYTWAIHD NAFZIONIL HONYNILNIVH/ S9IVdTd 000" 0£6-075-065
€1609 00°52 61/L2/80 89GZ6%80T  MI¥d ALINAWHOD - HONUNTINIVA NMUT NMYTHAHD NATIONIL AONYNALNIVN/ STV T 000" 0£6-075-06S
£1609 00°0¢ 61/L2/80 GGhZ6780T IO ¥ATTIIN T6Z - AONYNAINIVA NMYT NMYTHEHD NATIONML HONYNALNIYW/ SIIVdTT 000" 0€6-0PS-066
£T1609 0G6°LE 6T/L2/80 8LECEVS0T YA SATHIHS GIZ8 - HADNEYNALNIVIN NMVY'T NMYTWHHD NAHIONHEIL HONVNALNIV/ SIIVdAT 000°0£6-07S-069
01609 GL"€ 6T/L2/80 Z699¢ Mdd - SAEM IWSMOOT dAANOd S NVIS HONUNILNIVH/ SIIVdTT 000" 0£5-075-06G
96809 00°0TH 6T/L2/80 €9T-6T180 NOILVLS IJIT ¥ SHAGHAD/MANYATO  ALIDS MYIMOMIVS "d°d AONYNIINIVI/ SEIYdTT 000" 0£5-075-06S
67809 T6°G1T°2 6T/€1/80 026%96 Mdd - SAITAANS FAONUYNILNIVW Mo0gINTAYSA FONYNALNIYH/ SYIVdTd 000°0£5-0¥5-06S
€809 LLTT9 6T/E£T1/80 6102 X100 /TI0SdOL/SHATE9dd HOVAL/SYHATIN0Od INW ONI 1LSEN0 FANOLS HONYNHAINIVH/ SYIVdad 000°0£6-075-06G
91809 Ly 1 6T/€1/80 6102 A10a0 HONYNIINIVN ATOIHAA HS A0 SI¥¥d OLOY ¥AVN TONYNALNIYH/ SYIVITT 0C0°0E6-0FS-06S
70809 99°8ZF 6T/€T/80 6102 ISNO0Y AONYNALNI YA/ SYIYdET 10d3d HWOH HONYNAINIVA/ S¥I¥dTd 000" 0£6-075-06S
£0809 GZ'0T 6T/€T/80 610 ATAD Mdd - FONUYNAINIVN/SUIVAHIY VINIY 3 INAWdINOA 93H HONYNALNIVH/ SUI¥dad 000" 0€6-075-065
T0609 81°868'2Z1 61/1.2/80 0FT00Sd ¥WID ANZ - AFd INIWIVAYL YALYMALSYM SNMOL YAIMVHD MYNIDVS SHAA LNAWLYIYL IOYMIS 000°226-0%5-065
61809 0" 62 61/L2/80 8020Z882910% a9 JEAIY N £2€2 - TTId ALITIIN 00 A9WANT SMAWNSNOD SAILITILO 0C0°0Z6-075-066G
5L809 S 98¢ 61/L.2/80 911208%86T0C IS ANITAAYW 89.L - TII9 ALITILO 00 ADYANT SYIWASNOD SATLITILA 0C0°0Z6-075-065
5L809 70°988 6T/L2/80 7SOPL8TGZ0Z 0 aQF JANYATO N GO0GT - T7TI9 ALITILA 00 A9YINT SYTWASNOD SAILITILIN 0C0°026-0%5-06S
GL809 88 FET 61/L2/80 €1L98980%£0C @4 SYWOHIL N 00Z€ - TIId ALITIIN 00 X9¥ANT SHANNSNOD SHILITILA 000" 0¢6-075-06G
5L809 88°%C 61/L2/80 GZTIVLSG9GH0T Q¥ YANYATO N G0GT - TTId ALITILN 00 ADYANE SYFWASNOD SHILITILAO 0007 0Z26-0%5-066
GL809 vE 8% 61/L2/80 S0L667660G502 @4 SYWOHI N 0€G6¥ - TIId ALITILA 00 ASYENA SYAWNSNOD SHILITILA 000°026-0%5-065
G809 z20°08 6T/L2/80 SLTOS¥006502 a4 9¥ATY N F6€ - TTI9 ALITILO 00 ADYANT SYARNSNOD SHILITILO 000°0Z6-0%5-065
GL809 S0° 2% 6T/L2/80 ZOTLBIVERO0T a9 ¥EATY N 826T - TIId XIITILIN 00 A9¥ANA SYAWNSNOD SAILITILINO 000°026-0%5-065
GL809 88768 61/L2/80 ZIL%7064890Z ¥MA QIIGIANNHL SSLT - TII9 ALITIIN 0D A9¥ENA SYTWNSNOD SHILITILN 000 026-0%5-065
SL.809 GG FLY 6T/L2/80 6L1L289€96202 ¥d SATHAIHS G128 - TII9 ALITILN 00 ADYANA SYTWNSNOD SHILITILO 000°026-0%5-06G
G809 0%°62C 61/L2/80 LYEOTOTEOR0Z @4 dFTIIN 99T - T1Id ALITILIN 00 ASYANT SYTWNSNOD SHILITILO 000°026-0%5-06S
G809 L7 91T 61/L2/80 0GZE£99GL9E€0Z WA ¥ALSADNOTO & §ZT - TII9 ALITILA 00 ADYANT SYTWNSNOD SHILITILAO 000°0Z26-075-065G
GL809 6T7°9¢ 6T/L2/80 GZ6299G/9€0Z NIAYD ANYIHOIH 00€6 - TTI9 ALITILA 00 A99ANH SHYFARASNOD SATLITILO 000°026-07S-065
G809 0v"LL 61/L2/80 9660L9L67E€0Z TSd# a9 WYHYID N G8 - TII9 ALITILO 00 XOYEANE SHAWASNOD SATLITILIN 000°026-0¥5-065
GL809 9L"€TT 61/L.2/80 G660L9L67E0Z ¥d MMY¥LS @ 02 - TII9 ALITILN 00 AOYANT SYARNSNOD SATLITILIN 000°026-0%5-065
GL809 0% "G¢ 61/L2/80 T6E£6L9TVTE0T Qd YANYETO § G2 - TII9 ALITILA 0D X99ANT SHAWNSNOD SATLITILN 000°026-0%5-066G
SL809 9¢€°06 6T/LZ/80 Z8029L0%VE20T a4 WYHYED § b6FT - TII9 ALITIIN 00 X99ANH SYARNSNOD SATLITILIN 000°026-0%5-066G
SL809 vZoLE 61/L2/80 ZG9088T19€T102 a9 YEEOM NYA 098 - TII9 ALITILIO 00 X9YEANA SHAWNSNOD SATLITILIA 000°026-0%5-065
SL809 €9°198'T 61/L2/80 §G80FLL0920T @4 TAGAQILS 0969 - TIId ALITIIAN 0D AOWEANT SHAWNSNOD SHILITILO 000°0Z6-0%5-06S
L8109 8 LIT 6T/€1/80 8229¢€¥ ADIAYES ANOHAETHL IAN €ZT ANOHdATAL 000" 068-0%G-06G
1£809 G2 956’6 6T/€1/80 98€L6T V1AM 8# NOILVILS dWNd - dML SYWOHL *ONI dno¥o ¥EDIdS SADIAYEAS TYNOISSHIOEd 000" LT8-07S-065
Z1609 vhove 61/L2/80 99% ¥ AONYNIINIVN NMYT LSNONY ILOMMISNOD XATIVA-I¥L SHDIAYAS JHLOVILNOD 000°0T8-075-065
0%809 00°62 6T/€1/80 65GTS M3d - SIEOJINA FTIOLS UVEM MIOM HHIL SO TNO 000" ZhL-075-065
19809 06°LTT 61/12/80 6T0Z 'TZ LSNONY TIVA ONILIAMYVW - INTMAWI IINGEd HDIAYES TYLSOd S N SHAITAANS HNILYIFIO 000" 0% L-07G-06G
09809 00°062°T 61/12/80 6T10Z/12/80 €LZ# IIMIEd TIVW YINE HEIIAYES TYLSOd 'S "N SHITAANS ONIIVIHAIO 000 0%.L-0%5-06G
#8809 €5°%2C 61/L2/80 610 JAIWAIIAS A3A¥/ALITIEYSIA/AAIT FAIT TYNOIIUN NOSIAVH ¥SIA WIEI 9NOT FONVEASNI 00€°9TL-075-065
8809 967661 61/L2/80 T0ES072000STYd WOTHAYd 6T0Z YIINALIAS TYINIQ ¥ITEA AONVINSNI TYINIA 00Z°91L-075-065S
78809 56768 61/L2/80 610¢ YHGWIAIIIS a3QY/ALITIIYSIA/FIIT HAIT TYNOILYN NOSIAVW /9¥SIA WNEIL LYOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-07G-065
69809 91" %2 61/L2/80 T/0T-02/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYIH THIHS ANTH SSOUD FNTd /9¥SIA WIEIL IMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-07S-065
89809 06°T 61/L2/80 T1/01-02/60-2000 HONVMASNI HITVAH THIHS ANTd SSO¥D dNTd /9YSIAd WEIL I¥OHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-07S-066§
69809 G9°2G8'T 6T/LZ/80 T/0T-0Z2/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYEH THAIHS ANTd SSOYD HANTIL AONYINSNI HITYAIH 000°9TL-0%S-066§
AONYNAINIVW 3 SNOIILWIHEAO 0%s 3dada

aNQd JAMAS 065 Pung

J09YD JIUNOury a23ed MUD 9DTOAUT 089 S0ToAUT IOPUSA ossQg 15 Isquny T9

11/8

:abeg

MOEHD ¥4Edvd
qazZIT™r0r
610C/1€/80 - 610

*HdAL MDOHHD

- arvd

/80 SHIYA 1Sod

dIHSNMOL SVWOHI ¥0d IL¥0dRa NOILNGIMISIA T9 HDIOANI

QHQmCEDA/mMEOQB H=(a

1dI4a -assn

Wd €5:1L0 6T0C/€0/60



€7802 0S5°STT’‘Z 6T/€1/80 026796 - SHITddns FONYNAINIVH MO0gANTIVS HONVYNALNIYA/ SYIVATT ~NOC0E6-0FG-T66G
7£8093 VLTGE 6T/£T/80 6102 XInL /TIOSdOL/SATIIEd HOVEL/SYH g IN ONI ISAN0 HANOLE FONYHNALNIYH/ SYIVddd *0€£6-075-16G
91809 8K T 6T/ET/80 610z X1IOL HONUYNAINIVW = .OIHIA HS J0 SI¥¥Yd OLNV YdUN AONENALNIYA/ SIIVdTT Lu0 0E6-07S-T6G
70803 99°82% 6T/€T/80 6102 1SNonv HAONYNAINIVH/ SYIVdTd I0dHd HWNOE HONVNALNIVH/ SYIVdHd 000°0£6-075-16G
£0809 GZ°0T 6T/ET/80 6102 X100 Mdd - HONYNAINIVH/SIIVAAY VINTY 3 INAWNIINOH 93E HONYNALNIVI/ SYI¥ddd 000 0£6-0FG-T6G
76L09 20°960°9L 6T/ET/80 6T0Z/TE/LO ZOIIYID €£€0L9 - AOYSN MYNIOYS A0 ALIC ALID FA¥IS Ol SSHENIAVII 00T°LZ6-075-T6S
76.L09 L9°8ST°€02 6T/£1/80 6T0Z/TE/LO IOIIVED €0L9 - HDYSO MYNIOVYS A0 ALIC YILYM ONISYHOUNd 000°LZ6-07G-T6S
GL8039 0v°s¢ 61/L2/80 98F69TE€ZG90C  HISSYMYLAYLLIII G9%6 - TIId XLITIIN 00 X9¥ANA SUAWNSMOC SEATLITILA 000°026-0%G5-T6S
G809 96 FLY 61/L2/80 6L.289€96202 ¥a SATIEIHS G128 - T1Id ALITILN 00 ZAODMANA SYHAWNSMOT SHILITILIN 000°026-0%5-16S
GL803 0% °sc¢ 61/L2/80 L708GL62720C ¥ ¥90 020¢ - T1Id XLITILN 00 XDYMHENZ SUHIWASNOC SETILITILA 000°026-0%5-165
GLB8GY £87967¢ 6T1/LZ/80 05998090C1I¥v0C ad WYHYID N LO9TT - TII9 ALITILIN 00 ADYENHE SYHWASNOTZ SEILITIIN 000°026-0%5-16S
L6L09 0v°62 6T/ET/80 PST6GHSVTLOT Q¥ SEAQAD 0GE€ZT - TIId XIITILN 00 X99ENT SYANNSNOC SHILITIIN 000°026-07G-T65
L8L09 Z8°LTT 6T1/€1/80 82Z9€¥ HOIAYAS ENOHAATHL IAN'EZT HNOHJdZTIL 000°068-075-T6S
16809 0L°88% 61/L2/80 TLPTOE 6T/€2/L0 - SATAWYS MA HDIAYAS HMYT NITHINON SADIAMAS TYNOISSHAIOId 000°LT8-07G-16G
T€809 6€°06L7GT 6T/€T/80 G8EL6T W ATAIY IV SNATYD HHIL - dMI SYWOHL “ONI dno¥9 JgHADIAS SEOIAYIS TYNOISSHAIOTd 000" LT8-07S5-16G
LT809 0L°88% 6T/€1/80 TL909¢€ 61/60/L0 — SATANYS MA HOIAJHS MMVT NIAHI:ZON SHDIAYAS TYNOISSHAOUd 000" LT8-0FS-T66G
LT809 0L"88% 6T/€T/80 0L909¢€ 61/62/90 - SETINYS MQ HOIAJHES TIVT NITHIEON SEDIAIIES TYNOISSTAOTd 000°LT8-07G-T6G
L1809 0L"88% 6T/€T/80 69909¢€ 6T/TT/90 ~ SHTAWYS MA HOIAYIS IMYT NIFHIEON SHOIAYIS TYNOISSTIOEd 000" LTI8-0¥G-T6S
21609 98" LTS 6T/L2/80 99% ¥ AONENALNIVIA NMYT ISNONY¥ ILONYLSNOD AHTIVA-IUL SHOIAIAS CALIVIINOD 000°0T8-07G-T6G
07809 00°6¢ 6T/€T/80 6GGTS Mdd - SWEOJING HYOLS d¥dM M¥OM FHL SIMOJ INAQ 000°ZVL-07G-T16G
19809 0S°LTT 61/12/80 6102 ‘Tz ISNONY TIVH ONILEIMEYH — INIYAWI IIWNAE  ADIAYAS TYLSOd "S N SEI-ddNS ONILVIAJO 000°0¥L-0¥G-T6S
09809 00°052’T 61/12/80 6102/12/80 €/z# LINGEd TIVW dT0€ HADIA¥HS TYLSOd S ‘N SHITAdNS ONIILVIZAO 000°0FL-07G—-T6S
78809 £6°¥2C 6T/L2/80 6102 YHEWALIIS G3AY¥Y/ALITIEVSIA/TATIT HATT TYNOILYN NOSIAYW VSIA WIHL DNOT HAINYINSNI 00€°9TL-0%G-T6S
8.809 966671 61/L2/80 T0E£G072000SIY NAINIYd 6T0Z JAAWALIAS TYILNAQ ¥I1TAd HONYANENT TY.INAQ 00Z°9TL-0%G-T6S
78809 G5°68 61/L2/80 6102 YIIWALJTS a’3a¥/AIITIEYSIA/FATT HATT TYNOILUYN NOSIAVW /9¥SIA WIZIL IJCHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-0%G-T6S
69809 9T %2 6T/LZ/80 T1/0T-0Z/60-€£000 NOISIA/HLIIYAE THIHS FINTI SSO¥D FNTHd /dVSIAd WIEIL IMCHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-0%S-T6G
89809 06°T eT/L2/80 T/01-02/60-2000 AONVINSNI HITVAE THIHS HATd SSO¥D dNTd  /9YSId WIzl I¥CHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-07G-T6S
69809 G9°2S3°T 6T1/L2/80 T/0T-0Z/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYHE TIIHS TNTd SSO¥D HNTLD AONYINENI HITYIH 000°9TL-0¥S-T6S
EONYNAINIVHA 3 SNOILLVIAIO 0FS 3dag

9z ¥ET’S NOIIVMISINIWNAY 96 3dad Iod 2301
91609 06°L0T €1/L2/80 610¢C ¥AJJOH — TYMIANTY JTHSUAIGWIK JFd INIANOIIANT dHLYM SANA 3 ATHSYAIWNAR 000" 708-9€5~-T6G
£3809 00°0LT €1/L2/80 FGOV69T00L dOH - TYMIANTY JdIHSYHEIWIW 0Z20C/6T0C  STEOM YHIVM NVOTIHWY SAA ¥ dIHSYTAWAN 000" 708-9£6-16G
T1809 0z v0L’'z 6T/€T/80 6102-2 Z# INEWNAAIOV YAIYM TV Id ‘HOIIH ‘AINIDOW SEDINIES T¥OAT 000°Z08-9€5-16G
£€809 Ly %6 6T/ET/80 £G£0926G08 SEIT1ddNs HDIJAIAC AOVINYAQY SHTAVLIS OIJdA0 SAITIANS ONILVIAJO 000 GPL-9€G-T6G
15L09 0S8°€L 6T/€1/80 96098€9VEE Mdd - dG2GZ - VMHDOAY HALSAS SSENISNG SACYYd OIAA0 SAITAANS ONILVIAIO 000°SFPL-9€G-T66
TT609 8€°0¢€ 61/.2/80 9TGHPFESSO8 SHZTddNS TDOIAAC AOVINYAQY SITIVIS SEITAdNS ONIIVIEIO 000 0% L-9€6~-T6G
12809 0G LIT 6T/€1/80 TCO-LT6L800 Mdd - SAZTAANS HOIAAO0 HIIAIO SSHYIXT INTHd SEITAANS DNIIVIZJO 000 0FL-9€G-T65
78809 8L 1¢ 61/L2/80 6102 JIHILIIS a’dy¥/XLITIEYSIA/TATIT FATT TYNOILUYN NOSIAVW VSIA WMIL HNOT EONVINSNI 00€°9TL-9E€G6-T6G
81,809 GO"€ELT 6T/L2/80 T0ES0FZ000SIY WOINIYd 6T0Z YIANALITS TYINIA ¥ITAA ASNYMASNI TYLNAQ 00Z°9TL-9€G-T16G
78809 T9°0L 6T/L2/80 6T0Z dAANALATS A3dY¥/ALITIEVSIA/IAIT EAIT TUNOILIVN NOSIAYW /9VSIA WIHL LIOHS/NOISIA J0T"9TL-9€G~T66S
69809 LG 6T 61/L2/80 1T/01-CZ/60-£000 NOISIA/HITYEH THAIHS FNTE SSOYD INTE /d¥SIQ WIEL LIOHS/NOISIA JO0T 9TL-9€5-T6S
69809 OL"TSG'T 61/L2/80 T/0T-0Z/60-£000 NOISIA/HITIVEH TAIHS dNTd SSOID HANTd HONYINSNI HLIVIH J00°9TL-9€G-T66
NOILVYISININGY 9¢6 1dag

L£°9Z8 000 3deg I04 T®3IOL
T£80¢ 00°0L~ 6T/€1/80 £8E€L6T YNONH/TOIINOD MUYNIODVS - dMI SYWOHL "ONI dNO¥D ¥dCIdS EINIONI 3 TOYINOD MUNIOVS IPT°662~000-T6G
9380¢ €1° 896 61/L2/80 G0ZL9Z9 Z# - WAINE¥d dWOD SUIM¥OM  SYAM¥OM TYJIDINAWN IW VSNIJWOD SNYWM¥OM O INd DGL°TEZ-000-T6S
LT60S Sy°Z8 61/L.2/80 6T02/L2/80 T1222T0-NIOY :3UNODDE ZOJ puniaI gdn ISNd ¥ NIV ‘NYWHOIM ATAYAVd SINNODOV 000°202-000-16S
z.80¢ 6L°G 6T1/L2/80 6T02/0€/L0 6£8800-00d0 :INQOODVY ¥Od ANAAHT €N AN YANTId ATAYAVd SINNODOY 000°20Z2-000-T16S
000 3deqa
aNNI 93LVM T6G pund

26°G25 611 aNnd ¥IMES 065 Punid Iod Telol
aNnd JEIMAS 066 pung
J}02YD IUNOWY 231Bd JUD S0TOAUT *089(Q 90TOoAUT JIOpUsA osag ToH IaquInN IO

T1/6 :ebeg

ADEHD JYAdYd UJAL FADHHD

JAZITYNALOL

- dI¥d

6T0Z/T€/80 - 6T10C/T0/80 S€ELYA LSOd

JIHSNMOL SYWCHI ¥0d Id¥0ddd NOIILETILSIA 1D HIDIOANI

dtysuroy], sewoyl :dd
HIAIEQ :xI°8sn
Nd €S:T0 6T02/€0/60



9T %25 'GT¥ ANQA X¥I €0L pung Iod Te3of

9T 725 'STh 000 3ded xod TE30L
70609 657069721 6T/L2/80 6102 FHIWAAS 6T1/61/80-6T1/60/80 - SINIWAVd X¥I NSYAIL AILNAOD MUNIOVS dS AINNOD MUNIOYS OI ANd 00%°222-000-€0L
52809 66°8L5°96 6T/£T/80 6T0C JIWAQS 61/80/80-6T/LZ/L0 - SINIWAYA XVYI NSYIEL AINNOD MUNIOVS HS AILNAOD MYNIOVS OL ENd 00%°222-000-€0L
£0609 08°G8E'LOT 61/L2/80 610 JAWNANS 61/61/80-6T1/60/80 - SINAWAVA X¥l NSYAYL ALNNOD MUNIOVS dl ALNAOD MYNIOYS OL ENd 000°222-000-€0L
2809 98°0918L 6T/E€T/80 6102 JIHHAS 61/80/80-61/L2/L0 - SINAWAYd XYL NSYTIL ALNNOD MYNIOVS ¥l XINNOD MUNIODVS O =Nd 000°222-000-€0L
08809 9£°989 61/L2/80 6T02/L2/80 0TZ-%0-£-ZI-8Z Punay Xl ums 6107 NO LICEND HINWNIMNVEA ATIYAYd SINNODOY 000°202-000-€0L
0.809 95712 61/L.2/80 6T02/L2/80 6TE-€T-€-2T1-8Z PUNISY XBJL UNS 6107 QLT INIWISHANI ¥OIHOYI ATAYAYd SINNODOY 000°Z0Z~000-€0L
000 23daa
aNQd XY¥YI £0L pung

06°288'%9 aNnd FSNITI TYJIDINAW 96G PUNd I0d TRIOL

06°288'%9 000 3deq z04 Te3OL
90609 Z8° 18T 61/L2/80 16625 Z TAAAT - FAONYNALNIVH 93M TYANNY YSHYS SHOIANEAS TYNOISSHIONd 000" LT8-000-966G
£1809 FT1°699 ‘%9 6T/E€1/80 6T0Z ANAL SHOIAYAS ALSYM AITOS ANAL OV ALSYM NYOIHOIW dIW LOVIILNOD ESNATI 000°808-000-96G
98809 76" 1€ 61/L2/80 G0ZL929 Z# - WOIWEYd dWOD SYTEM¥OM  SYEMYOM TYAIOINAW IW ¥SNIJWOD SNVIRMOM OI INd 06L"1€£2-000-965
000 3dag
aNnd AsSnAAd TYdIDINAW 965 pundg

9T°€£02’8LE aNQd ¥AI¥M T6G PUnd Iod Tel0[

GY 686 'TT TOYINOD T¥IIdYD 006 21deg Iod Telol
T€809 06°.22'T 6T/€1/80 P8EL6T WA FOVTTYM/Y¥d SATIAIHS - dMI SYWOHL “ONI dNo¥9 ¥ADIdS SINANIAOYAWI TYLIAYD 000" PL6-006-T66G
L0809 G6°T9L°0T 6T/€1/80 T-8T0TZHDS99G69ZT WILYM ADYVTTYM/SATAIHS - dAML SYWOHL ONTHONTEL SHAFA SLNARAAOYAWI TYLIAYD 000" ¥L6-006-T66G
TOYINOD TYIIAYDO 006 3deq

80°€£52°09¢ FONYNAINIVH 3 SNOILVYHEJO 0FS 23ded I0d TeIOL
66809 06°LOT'T 61/L2/80 Z0ZLTT AAOTD M - OAS ¥ALYM TIVLSNI VYAYOXA SYFHIOYd AdHOY SNOTIILOANNOD dALOVILNOD 000" 6€£6-075-T66G
66809 06°L82°'T 61/L2/80 T0ZLTT SYWOHL N - DJAS ¥AIVM TIYLSNI VYAVYOXE SYHAHIONE FAHOY SNOTIOANNOD QALOYEINOD 000" 6£6-076-166G
z9809 00700092 61/L2/80 000§ IA¥AS JALYM INIANIOTIAEA SNATEO HHIL  ‘ONILVAVOXE NVDIYIWNY SNOIIDANNOD JILOVIILNOD 000°6€£6-075-165
68809 00°GL 6T/L2/80 LGT6T9T - MOMMI WA TYIAOM AFHO S6 ~ MOJL DIAMAS YHAMOMMM § IMIW ASNAAXA TTOIHAA 000°8€£6-075-T65
€6809 L9°260'T 61T/£1/80 18862509 TACA TISAIA/SYD ONI XdM ASNAdIXA FTOIHIA 000°8€£6-075-T6G
G7809 00°86% 6T/€T1/80 PHIP8T MAd - FONYNAINIVA ATOIHIA LSHMHIMON HYIL NALLOL ASNHIAXA ATOIHAA 000" 8€£6-0%5-T6G
G%809 8" €2 6T/€1/80 CHT8T Mdd - FONYNIAINIVW ATOIHAA ISIMHINON #MIL NALLOL ASNAAXH ATOTHIA 000" 8E€6-0%5-T6G
91809 G8°€Z 6T/£T/80 6T0Z ATNL HONYNAINIVH ATOIHAA HS 0 SI¥Yd OLOY Yd¥YN ASNAIXE ATOIHIA 000°8£6-07G-166
90609 187 18T 61/L2/80 16629 Z TIAIT - AONYNAINIYW 9aM TYANNY YSHYS SINIAWATIOY FONYNITLNIVH 000°9€6-0%5-165
61609 L6°26 61/L2/80 95868 Mdd - EAYTE/9d90d LJAHS 91§ TIYMAUVYH TIHITHOM FONYNALNIVI/ SYIVdET 000°0€£6-07S-T6G
71609 26" 6 61/L2/80 6T0Z ISNONY SYIVdAY/TONYNIILNIVIN SMAOLS S AONYNALNIV/ S9IVddTT 000°0E£6-07S~-T6G
£1609 00°0¢€ 61/L2/80 6€926%780T Q¥ YATIIW N GG - HAONYNALNIVH NMYT NMYTWIHD NITIONIL HONYNILNIVH/ SYIVdTT 000" 0€6-07S-T66G
£T609 00°62 61/L2/80 89GZ6%80T  MU¥d ALINAWWOD - FONUNALINIVIA NMYT NMYTWIHD NIZEONYL AONYNALNIVH/ SUIvdHad 000°0£6-075-T6G
£1609 00°0¢ 61/L2/80 GGPZ6780T IO ¥ATTIIN TS - FONUNALNIVA NMY'T NMYTHIHO NIFIONYL FONUNILNIVR/ S9I¥dEd 000 0€6-07S-16G
£1609 067 LE 61/L2/80 8LEZ6FB0T WA SATATHS GTIZ8 ~ AONUNALNIVIA NMY'T NMYTWIHD NIFZIONIL AONYNALNIYH/ SIIYdTT 000" 0€6-0¥5-T1665
01609 SL°€ 6T/L2/80 2699¢ Mdd - SAEM IWSMOOT QddANOd S NYIS HONYNALNIVH/ SIIYdTd 0007 0€£6-0%5-T665
66809 0076812 61/L2/80 GLILTT @9 HOINQ - ¥IVd"Y NIVIWGALYM YAYOXE SMIHILOYI HAHOA FAONYNHALNIVH/ SUIVdTT 000°0£6-07G6-165
66809 0672621 6T/L2/80 PLILTT AOVTIYM 8L69 - WIVAEY NIVWMALYM VAVOXH SUYAHIONE HAHOH HONYNHALINTIYH/ S IYdTT 000°0£6-075-T66G
L8809 00°2ET 61/L2/80 Z8%1Z0S IAY¥YES HHELYM SNAHYD HHI - STYIYILVW JATVA ® AdId NYDTIHDIW HONYNALNIVH/ SIIYdHad 000°0€£6-07G-T66G
L8809 0070081 6T/L2/80 6LYTZ0S YAIYM SNEEYD HHI - $AX0d 990D 6°C HATVA 3 HAId NYOIHDIR HONYNALNIVH/ SHIVdTS 000°0£6-055-T66G
L8809 00°02L 6T/L2/80 8LFTZ0S A¥ES ¥IAIYM SNATMD HHI - SEX0D 9¥ND FATVA 3 FATd NYDIHOIH HONYNALNIYH/ S9IVdTd 000°0£6-0%5-T65
L8809 00°00€ 02 61/L2/80 €ZETZ0S IAYNES JHALVM SNAFYD HHI - STYIMALYA HATYA 3 FdId NYDIHDIKW HONYNILNIV/ S9I¥dTd 000" 0£6-0%5-165
HONVYNAINIVH 3 SNOIIVYHEdO 0%S adaa
aNQd dAIYM T6S pund
S09YD 1UNOury 23ed IJUd 80TOAUT *0sa@ 9D0TOAUT IOPUDA osad 1o IsqunN 9

11/0T

:a9beg

ADEHD ¥HdV¥d HEJAL ADHHD

6T0C/TE/80 - 610

qAdZITH™NO0L

- dI¥d

/80 SHLYA 1SOd

dTHSNMOJ, SYWOHI ¥04d I¥0d3. ~OIILNEIMISIA TD ADIOANI

drysumol, sewoy] :g9q
IqIEa :assn
Nd €51y 6T0C/€0/60



9£°9L6'GSH’'T

ispund TTY 704 T210L

9T %25 ’GT¥ aNnd XYI €0, pund
06°288°%9 aNnd FSNATd TYdIDINAW 966G Dung
9T°'€0C’8LE aNnd 9ELY¥M T6S bung
26625 ‘6% T aNNA dEMAS 065 PUnd
TT1°025°L aNQd X¥VHEAIT TLZ pund
IT1°215708 zoyany juswdoTeoasq wmolumod 8%z PUNA
ZE£°806°8T HOITOd-AIHAYS OITdNd LOZ Pund
16°€20°21 ANINYAEd THII-ALHAVS OITdNd G0Z pund
19°69¢€‘9z2¢ aNAJd ONIIVIAJO TYIENED TOT PUmnd
9T 016°C aNOd ONIYYEITD 00T Pung
:sTR20L pundg
3D9y) Junoury 23ed YD 290TOAUT *0S8(Qg 9DTOAUT IOpUSA osaqg I I2CquUINN 19

IT/11 :abeg

MOHEHD ¥Hdv¥d :ddJAL MOEHD - dINd
qIzZ I TVNINOL

6T0Z/T€/80 - 6T0Z/T0/80 SdIVA LSO
JIHSNMOI SYWOHI ¥O0.d I¥OdT¥ NOIILNFINLSIA T ADIOANI

drysumo], sewoy] :dd
HIATHA :a9s()
Wd €5:T0 6T0Z/€0/60



09/03/2019 01:51 PM CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR THOMAS TOWNSHIP Page: 1/2

USEr: JRREDRE , FROM 04/01/2019 TO 08/31/2019
DB: Thomas Township
FUND: ALL FUNDS

CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

Beginning Ending
Fund Balance Total Total Balance
Acrount Description 04/01/2019 Debits Credits 08/31/2019
1 /100 CLEARING FUND
001.000 59 11,464.04 6,187,339.82 6,188,739.06 10,064.80
Fund 101 GENERAL OPERATING FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1,498,070.15 1,583,844.87 2,463,302.53 618,612.49
002.010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 0.00 1,002,636.41 0.00 1,002,636.41
002.350 CASH CHASE BANK 10,760.25 6.58 0.00 10,766.83
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 853,758.95 8,447.72 500,000.01 362,206.66
003.175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 1,000,000.00
003.375 CHERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS HUNTINGT 750,000.00 0.00 0.00 750,000.00
003.400 CERTIFICATE OF DEP CHASE BANK 231,022.73 3,463.64 0.00 234,486.37
GENERAL OPERATING FUND 3,843,612.08 3,098,399.22 2,963,302.54 3,978,708.76
Fund 103 CHRISTOPHER THOMPSON FAMILY FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 145,415.54 0.00 0.00 145,415.54
Fund 205 PUBLIC SAFETY-FIRE DEPARTMENT
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 643, 935.64 64,955.27 212,490.53 496,400.38
Fund 206 FIRE APPARATUS
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 712,809.06 6,713.92 8,887.14 710,635.84
Fund 207 PUBLIC SAFETY-POLICE
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1,200,283.78 128,460.40 454,609.02 874,135.16
Fund 246 ROAD REVOLVING FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 128,981.39 1,389.36 0.00 130,370.75
r )175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 610,966.47 0.00 0.00 610,966.47
ROAD REVOLVING FUND 739,947.86 1,389.36 0.00 741,337.22
Fund 248 Downtown Development Authority
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 63,735.85 25,556.78 81,618.77 7,673.86
Fund 265 P.S. DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 10,357.04 0.00 0.00 10,357.04
Fund 271 LIBRARY FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 577,779.70 49,196.23 138,522.41 488,453.52
003.271 CD LIBRARY 08/2016 .50 205,340.00 0.00 0.00 205,340.00
LIBRARY FUND 783,119.70 49,196.23 138,522.41 693,793.52
Fund 590 SEWER FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1,151,367.21 494,925.04 1,055,633.72 590,658.53
002.010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 0.00 501,318.21 0.00 501,318.21
002.200 RESERVED CASH SYSTEM EXPANSIO 31,500.23 57,576.42 0.00 89,076.65
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 937,517.80 1,996.23 500,000.00 439,514.03
002.386 CHEMICAL BANK SYSTEM EXPANSIO 117,933.00 0.00 0.00 117,933.00
003.175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 1,500,000.00 500, 000.00 0.00 2,000,000.00
SEWER FUND 3,738,318.24 1,555,815.90 1,555,633.72 3,738,500.42
Fund 591 WATER FUND
001.100 CLEARING CASH 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00
o )000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1,189,497.60 998,250.30 2,062,506.15 125,241.75
¢ /010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 0.00 250,659.10 0.00 250,659.10
002.200 RESERVED CASH SYSTEM EXPANSIO 51,343.99 15,000.00 0.00 66,343.99
002.375 CASH HUNTINGTON BANK 233,097.14 12,974.78 0.00 246,071.92
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 41,766.08 1,030.58 0.00 42,796.66
002.386 CHEMICAL BANK SYSTEM EXPANSIO 266,176.00 0.00 0.00 266,176.00



09/03/2019 01:51 pM

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR THOMAS TOWNSHIP Page: 2/2
User: DEIDRE
DB: Thomas Township FROM 04/01/2019 TO 08/31/2019
FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
Beginning Ending
Fund Balance Total Total Balance
Account Description 04/01/2019 Debits Credits 08/31 /2019
002.387 CHEMICAL BANK BUSINESS CHECKING 505,120.54 1,680.006 3,409.49 503,6¢ .1
002.390 CASH FIRST STATE BANK 244,944.39 457.99 0.00 245,402.38
003.175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 1,259,905.50 0.00 12,646.006 1,247,259.44
003.375 CHERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS HUNTINGT 250,000.00 0.00 0.00 250,000.00
WATER FUND 4,044,151.24 1,280,052.81 2,078,561.70 3,245,642.35
Fund 596 MUNICIPAL REFUSE FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 678,175.10 1,662.53 293,006.07 386,83L.56
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 302,943.93 1,013.85 0.00 303,957.78
MUNICIPAL REFUSE FUND 981,119.03 2,676.38 293,006.07 690,789.34
Fund 610 CONSTRUCTION WATER/SEWER/MISC
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 25,178.20 0.00 0.00 25,178.20
Fund 703 TAX FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 0.00 1,705,574.97 1,199,247.28 506,327.69
TOTAL -~ ALL FUNDS 16,943,447.30 14,106,131.06 15,174,618.24 15,874,960.12



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Director of Public Works, Rick Hopper

AGENDA TOPIC: Accept the resignation of Dana Stemple as an after-hours, part-time
custodian.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC:

Dana Stemple has submitted a letter of resignation from her position as an after-hours
part-time custodian. Dana has served Thomas Township well for nearly ten years. This
has been brought to the Personnel Committee.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: Resignation letter.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by
supported by to accept the resignation of Dana Stemple
as an after-hours, part-time custodian.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No







TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC:  Approve the creation of a'second part-time receptionist position.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The Personnel Committee is recommending that
Jennifer Holtman, part time receptionist, be reassigned three out of five days per week to
provide support to the Township Assessor. In addition, a new receptionist would be hired
to cover those three days and to provide some extra support during vacations and peak
times.

The Township Assessor is in need of some dedicated clerical support. The expectations
and requirements of the State regarding local assessing have greatly increased over the
past five to six years with the intention of improving consistency and professionalism
throughout the State. The result is that there is a lot more paperwork to complete and
steps to adhere to in order to stay in compliance with the State.

Meanwhile, we have been encouraging and supporting our receptionist, Jennifer Holtman,
with acquiring not only a stronger knowledge of assessing, but to also obtain State
certification. She successfully obtained her first certification level earlier this year and
has been providing some clerical support for the Assessor when she has the time after her
regular duties. The reasons for investing in her training are to have another person
available to answer assessment related questions when our part time assessor is
unavailable, she could be helpful in the event that the Assessor left and to develop her as
a possible future replacement in the long term picture. With a part-time Assessor, there
are many times that customer have to wait to meet during her working hours. By having
Jennifer provide more assessing support, she could help answer customers’ questions
during the assessor’s absence.

On the days that she is assisting the Assessor directly, Jennifer would work from a new
workspace set up in the old Board Room. That way she would not be pulled into other
assignments.



Page 2 of 2
September 9, 2019
Part Time Receptionist Position

o MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: None

e POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

o SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by
supported by to approve the creation of a second part-time
receptionist position.

e ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No.




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
Thomas Township
County of Saginaw, Michigan

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a regular meeting of the Thomas Township Board of Trustees will
be held on September 9, 2019, at 7:00 p.m. at the Thomas Township Public Safety Building,
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609, at which time and place a public hearing will be held
on the following: Amendments to the Thomas Township Sewer Rate Schedule F and Sewer
Quarterly Ready to Serve Charges.

Proposed Five Year Plan for Quarterly Ready To Serve and Commodity Charges for Sewer:

FYE3/31

QUARTERLY SEWER RTS 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
5/8inch $ 1550 $§ 1621 $ 1698 S 1780 S 18.67
3/4inch $ 1550 $§ 1621 $ 1698 S 17.80 $§ 18.67
linch S 4651 $§ 4864 S 5094 S 5340 S 56.00
1.25inch $ 4651 S 4864 S 5094 S 53.40 S 56.00
1.5inch $ 5116 § 5350 $ 5604 S 5874 S 61.60
2inch $ 9611 $ 10052 | S 105.28 $ 110.36 S 115.74
3inch $ 17052 $ 17833 | S 186.78 S 19579 $ 205.35
4inch S 38756 $§ 405.31 'S 42451 S 44498 S 466.70
6inch $ 77511 S 81061 S 849.02 S 889.97 $ 933.40
8inch $1,395.20 $1,459.10 | $1,528.23  $1,601.94 $1,680.11
10inch $2,170.31 $2,269.72 | $2,377.25  $2,491.91 $2,613.51
12 inch $2,728.39 $2,853.36  $2,988.54  $3,132.68 $3,285.56
Commodity Charge

per1,000gallonsused S 442 $ 462 $ 484 S 506 S 5.29

Proposed Charges will become effective 30 days after the date of publication of this notice, and
subsequent adoption by Resolution of the Thomas Township Board of Trustees on September 9,
2019.

Written and/or Oral comments will also be received at the Thomas Township Office through the
date of the hearing and should be sent to Thomas Township Manager, 249 North Miller Road,
Saginaw, MI 48609.

Thomas Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to any individuals with disabilities
who plan to attend this public meeting. Persons interested in such services need to contact the Thomas Township
Manager's offices at 249 N. Miller Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609, by phone at 989-781-0150, or by fax at 989-
781-0290 at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting. In the case that advanced notice for accommodations is
not possible, every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate the disabled.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk
Thomas Township






TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager
Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director

AGENDA TOPIC: 2018/2019 Annual Audit

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Robert Klaczkiewicz from Smith & Klaczkiewicz, PC will be
presenting the results of the annual audit of the financial statements. The Audit
demonstrates that we are in good financially position with no major problems relative to
our financial activities. We have received an unqualified opinion (which indicates there are
no material misstatements or errors in accounting procedures.) The audit is in compliance
with all current GASB statements.

MATERIAL ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:
None, the audit was previously issued.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION:
Accept/not accept audit as presented

SUGGESTED/REGUESTED MOTION:
Motion by supported by to accept the 2018/2019
audit as presented.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




Aharcsed .

ol S

' =t EE g .

=g . ===, S =
e B O L

| pm el e Sl

. BN EmE #ML - -

I .T.r —. . ..._ F .1 m“-h
L .—.I_.- u.- H.IL. 1r.r .. ..I T..
tme= S "=k & .EN S". "= g =
- e ERIN LS . === = e
. ‘L n
J S g = 1M1= . :
N .. I .. n

AL e -
A=, amrrre=gag

o o e L -

= s P e e mm
| e L™ ]
- =R Y Y. W



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC:  Approve Resolution 19-16 to adjust sewer rates and ready to serve
costs for the next five years.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Municipal Analytics out of Ann Arbor, Michigan
completed a study of the financial position of the Township’s Sewer Fund and determined
what rates should be charged over the course of the next five years to ensure the solvency
of the Fund and to provide adequate funding for the anticipated expenditures and capital
projects during that same time period. The Board previously approved sewer rate
changes based upon their study; however, there was an error in one of the assumptions in
the study. Basically, Municipal Analytics used the AWWA standard for water meter
flows when they should have used the flows as determined by the Township Engineer in
previous studies. The impact of this change is minimal in terms of rate costs, though it is
necessary for accuracy and fairness purposes.

The revised report is included with this memo for your review. The rate table in the
proposed resolution represents the correction. The new rates will go into effect the first
of October and will therefore be billed starting in October.

Current Proposed Rates
5/8 15.00 5/8 15.50
3/4 15.00 3/4 15.50

1 45.00 1 46.51
11/4 45.00 11/4 46.51
11/2 49.50 11/2 51.16

2 93.00 2 96.11

3 165.00 3 170.52

4 375.00 4 387.56

6 750.00 6 775.11

8 1,350.00 8 1,395.20

10 2,100.00 10 2,170.31

12 2,640.00 12 2,728.39




Page 2 of 2
September 9, 2019
Resolution 19-16, Sewer Rates

o MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Resolution 19-16
and Sanitary Sewer Rate Study.

e POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

o SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

supported by to approve Resolution 19-16 to adjust sewer rates and
ready to serve costs for the next five years.

® ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: Yes.




RESOLUTION 19-16
TOWNSHIP OF THOMAS
SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION FOR ADJUSTING SEWER RATES
AND THE QUARTERLY READY TO SERVE CHARGES

At a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Township of Thomas, held on the
9th day of September 2019 at 7 o’clock p.m. Michigan Time.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by , and
supported by

WHEREAS the sewer rates and charges for Thomas Township are set and
charged by resolution and ordinance; and

WHEREAS the Thomas Township Board of Trustees has determined that sanitary
sewer rates and charges should be adjusted over the next five years, so as to enhance the
financial integrity of the sewer fund and to assure that sewer services will be provided as
reasonably required.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the following rates and charges
shall be adjusted as follows:

1. The Commodity Rate is set forth in the proposed five year rate schedule
with annual rate increases implemented on October 1, 2019, for the first
year and April 1! of each sequential year thereafter.

2. The Ready to Serve Charge for sewer shall be charged on a quarterly basis
to all customers with regular, master and sprinkler meters based upon the
water meter sizes over the next five years as noted in the following
proposed five year rate schedule with increases implemented on October
1, 2019, for the first year and April 1* of each sequential year thereafter.



19-16 Resolution for Adjusting Sewer Rates
Page 2 of 2

Proposed Five Year Rate Schedule for Quarterly Ready To Serve Charges for Sewer:

FYE 3/31

QUARTERLY SEWER RTS 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
5/8 inch S$ 1550 $ 1621 $ 1698 S 17.80 S 18.67
3/4inch $ 1550 $ 1621 $ 1698 S 17.80 S 18.67
linch S 4651 S5 4864 'S 5094 'S 5340 $ 56.00
1.25inch 'S 4651 S 48.64 S 50.94 ‘ $ 53.40 S 56.00
1.5inch § 5116:'S$ 5350 S 56.04 $ 5874!S$ 6160
2inch $ 9611 S 10052 $ 105.28 $ 110.36 $ 115.74
3inch $ 170.52 ' $ 17833 ' $ 186.78 $ 195.79 ° S 205.35
4inch S 38756 S 40531 S 42451 $ 444.98 S 466.70
6inch S 77511 $ 81061 $ 849.02 $ 889.97 $ 933.40
8inch $1,395.20 $1,459.10 $1,528.23 $1,601.94 $1,680.11
10inch $2,170.31 $2,269.72  $2,377.25 $2,491.91 $2,613.51
12 inch $2,728.39 $2,853.36 $2,988.54 $3,132.68 ' $3,285.56
Commodity Charge

per1,000gallonsused $ 442 S 462 $ 484 $ 506 $ 5.29

3. That the notice of Public Hearing with the intent to adjust the sewer rates
and ready to serve charges was published in the Township View on
August 8, 2019.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSTAINED:

ABSENT:

The Supervisor declared the resolution adopted.

Robert Weise, Supervisor
CERTIFICATE

I, Edward Brosofski, the duly elected and acting Clerk of Thomas Township,
hereby, certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Board of
said Township at the regular meeting of said Board held on September 9, 2019, at
which meeting a quorum was present, by a roll call vote of said members as
hereinbefore set forth; that said resolution was ordered to take immediate effect.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk



Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service
Rate Study

m

Prepared for

Thomas Township,
Michigan

Submitted
May 2019
by Municipal Analytics

Miinicipal __—
< -Analytics

Insights and applications for better financial management




1550 Westfield Avenue
Ann Arbor, M| 48103
734.277.4454

May 29, 2019

Russell Taylor
Township Manager
Thomas Township
249 N Miller Rd
Saginaw, M| 48609

Dear Mr. Taylor:

We have completed our analysis of the revenue requirements for the Township’s sanitary sewer utility.
The primary goal of this study has been to determine the rates required to produce adequate revenues
to fund the Township’s wastewater operations, maintenance and replacement (OM&R), capital and debt
service requirements. The resulting recommendations for rates and financial management of the utility
are summarized in this report.

Municipal Analytics appreciates the opportunity to work with the Township on this study.

If you should have any questions about this analysis, please do not hesitate to contact me at 734-277-
4454, :

Very truly yours,
B i,
M Resrn

Jdhn Kaczor
Principal




THOMAS TOWNSHIP
SANITARY SEWER COST OF SERVICE RATE STUDY REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION ....cocmmimmremnemranmtassscascssesssssssnssanessas oo eseeessesessesssssssss s eessessseese s
L1 BACKGIOUNM oottt st sss s st sesesee st s oo

1.2. Description of WasteWater SYSTeM ...........uuwuimemeimmiueesmssssssssmsemss oo eooeoooeoeoeoeoeeeeooeoee

1.3.  Scope of StUdY....couvuervireeeeeeeeeerenn TR A rar e ae ANy AR A R e s

SECTION 2. ANALYSIS ........ccveennns

2.1e RALE MOGEL sttt st s e e e eee e
2.2, OPerating BUABET.......cccuuiiieiirmimmne ettt st seeeseeeee oo
2.3, CUSTOMEN BASE w..cconrceerennreneesssnnssssmsasssssssssisssssssisiessbasssdimseosssssssnmemeessosessseseseeesseeseeeesses oo
24, EXISHNG DL .ottt eee oo
R 1T R ————————
2.6, Cash Balance and RESErVe TArGEtS...............wcvrureiemmmmiummemereoeseesoreessssessoesos s oeoeoooeoeeeoeoeoeoeeseen
2.7 ASSUMPEIONS ettt st ettt seees e 4
2.8.  Anticipated Capital IMPrOVEMENES ...........u.uueuuuruumriemsmimnsssess oo eeeessss oo
2.9. BOITOWING. .ottt s s esssssss sttt et eeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeee ..

3.1, BUAGET FOIECAST covmnurrarnssssesssssssassssnsassronsssssssessessnisisnsscsisintssanssdsssins 45554558 saamammmmsmmenesmnemmemsenenennn .
3.2.  Revenue Required from Rates .......ccoueevvrvvreemmissoo, Fes s e A R s e S e
3.3, RATES ROQUITRU ....vvvuuceiicsususessssssssisiussincossiissasassinissssssisisasssssosecesssassesssssmmmmmmmmmsssssssesssssenesnness..
3.4, IMPAct 0N Cash RESEIVES .......ccoivrrrivmmimnieviisiasessssssesseesossise s esecnesssss oo oo oo
3.5, AMEIMALIVE SCENAIIOS w.ovovvvvsesn ettt s oeeeeeeeeseseeseeeeee
SECTION 4.  CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS .....rvveveeerereerensessssssssemsessssosoooesesoossoessseoso .
AL RS AAOPLION ..ottt et e
4.2, IMPACE ON CUSTOMENS.....oovtiiiiiieiirinsiinssitasssa e sesssssssssesseseeseseessssee oo oo eeeseesesee e

4.3.  Future Action Required..... mumssmsssimassmins it i . RO OR .



SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION

This report presents a recommended rate structure calculated to fully fund the Township’s wastewater
utility operations in future years. In summary, the objectives of this study were to:

® Determine the true total cost of providing sanitary sewer services

* Evaluate the rate impacts of capital projects and financing alternatives

* Develop a long-term financial plan to ensure the utility remains financially stable

® Develop a long-term rate track to smooth out rate adjustments and minimize rate impact on
customers

® Explore appropriate connection charges to be assessed on new utility service connections.

With support and input from Township staff, we have prepared a rate strategy that meets the project
objectives and ensures financial stability of the Sewer Fund.

1.1.Background

Thomas Township owns and operates a public wastewater collection system, serving approximately
3,400 customers. The Township contracts with neighboring Saginaw Charter Township for treatment of
waslewater,

Operating and maintaining public utilities requires regular investment in infrastructure and qualified
employees to ensure the efficient and safe provision of utility services. As costs and operating demands
change, it is essential that the utility’s rates be periodically evaluated and adjusted. Through this
process, rate equity is assured, and the financial health of the enterprise fund can be monitored and
maintained. The Township last performed a rate study in 2007.

In recognition of the importance of updating and maintaining rates sufficient to fund this vital
community service, the Township engaged Municipal Analytics to undertake a cost of service rate study
to identify longer-term expenditure trends, cash reserve needs, capital funding capacity, and other
financial conditions of its sewer utility.

1.2. Description of Wastewater System

The municipal wastewater collection system is owned and operated by Thomas Township. The
wastewater collection system is comprised of a network of primarily gravity sewer mains and some
force main. Fourteen lift stations are used to move wastewater through the gravity mains.

The Township contracts with neighboring Saginaw Charter Township for wastewater treatment,

1.3.Scope of Study

To gain an understanding of Township’s sewer tinances and operations, we reviewed the sewer fund
budget, financial reports, billing records, capital needs, past reports, current rates, utility ordinances and
organizational documents. The study focused on determining the revenue required to fully satisfy the
cash needs of the wastewater fund. Revenue requirements were then considered in light of the
Township’s customer base and user charge system, and recommendations were made regarding the
rates required to fund operations, maintenance and replacement (OM&R), capital and debt service

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 1



expenditures. The Township has been provided a working Utility Financial Analytics tool to maintain
rates in future vears.

SECTION 2. ANALYSIS

Determining adequate utility rates requires a number of financial and customer inputs, assumptions,
policy considerations and customer impact analysis. These inputs have been integrated into a
comprehensive rate model, developed in Excel spreadsheet format. In this section, each of these
components is addressed, to provide a framework for the developed rates presented in Section 3.

2.1.Rate Model

To calculate sewer revenue requirements and the resulting rates needed to fund operations, we have
prepared an Excel-based rate model. The model encompasses the financial and customer data needed
to prepare a thorough rate analysis. The 15-year financial plan is driven by a number of assumptions and
integrates the anticipated capital improvement investments expected in the coming years. Outputs of
the model include summary charts and tables displaying the interaction between assumptions, rates,
cash balances, capital investments, debt service and other metrics. Using the model, the rates outlined
in Sectioh 3 were developed and tested. Several alternative rate options were also evaluated. The final
rate recommendations were reviewed with the Township prior to completion of this study. The model
has been provided to the Township for ongoing future use in setting rates.

2.2. Operating Budget

Sewer fund cash expenditures have averaged about $1.12 million per year for the past several years.
The largeést single expense item relates to the wastewater treatment contract with Saginaw Township,
followed by other repairs & maintenance, labor and administrative fees. Actual Sewer Fund
expenditures for fiscal years ending 2016-2018 are summarized below.

Actual Actual Actual
FYE3/31 2016 2017 2018
Administration
Labor " 88564 910797 101644
Administrative Fee 92,987 93,917 94,856
Other Administration 6,547 19,379 8,027
Operations & Maintenance
Labor " 1682537 176330 7 154241
Sewage Treatment Fees 431,749 408,377 422,162
Other 0&M " 208899 " 320798 " 283643
Capital Control 191,962 2,531 (3,320)
Debt Service - - -

1188961 1112411 1,061,254

As seen in the table below, operating revenues are composed primarily of user charges, which are
shown as Usage and Ready to Serve.

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 2



Actual Actual Actual

EYE3/31 2016 2017 2018
Revenues
License & Permits 240 160 140
Usage 1,144,697 1,104,643 1,059,023
Capacity Fee 28,000 21,000 7,000
Ready to Serve 250,899 246,946 252,421
Connections 30,324 - -
Penalty 10,257 9,601 10,315
Interest Earned 3,725 4,925 20,560
Equipment Rental 6,435 4,069 3,573

Stark Road Special Assessment - -
Sale of Fixed Assets % - -
Reimbursements* 97 - 2,568

Total Revenues 1,474,674 1,391,344 1,355,599

2.3. Customer Base

The Township sanitary sewer utility serves approximately 3,400 active customer accounts. 95% of
customers are residential, 4% are commercial, and a small number of customers are classified as
industrial, governmentﬂl, churches and schools.

The number of customers is assumed to increase by 20 each year for the 15-year forecast period
considered in this study.

While industrial customers comprise less than 1% of the total customer base, the volume of industrial
wastewater is 35% of the total volume of the Township. Residential volume is about 53% of the total,
and commercial volumes represent about 10%.

2.4. Existing Debt
Thomas Township has no existing sewer debt.

2.5. Rate Structure

Sewer customers are billed a quarterly fixed ready to serve (RTS) charge and a commodity charge per
1,000 gallons of metered water. The minimum bill includes an RTS charge based on meter size. Sewer
RTS and commodity rates currently are: '

* Quarterly RTS charge (by meter size):

5/8 inch $ 15.00
3/4inch $ 15.00
1inch $ 45.00
1.25 inch 5 45,00
1.5 inch S 49,50
2 inch 3 93.00
3inch $ 165.00
4 inch $ 375.00
6 inch $ 750.00
8 inch $ 1,350.00
10 inch S 2,100.00
12 inch S 2,640.00

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 3



® Sewer commodity rate: $4.25/1,000 gallons

Rates were last increased in 2007.

2.6.Cash Balance and Reserve Targets

According to the latest audited financial statement of the Township, dated March 31, 2018, the Sewer
Fund had a cash and investments balance of $3,654,064. Thomas Township does not currently have a
formal cash reserve policy. In lieu of a formal policy, the rate model uses the following reserve levels as

cash reserve targets:

* 90 days O&M expenditures, less depreciation
e 125% of the current year debt service payment
® 20% of the net asset value of the sewer system

When these targets are applied, the target cash reserve target level for 2018 was $3,134,981, which

suggests the Township has approximately $519,000 that can be applied to future capital or rate

stabilization. The Township is in a healthy cash position, which will lend stability to future rate

requirements.
2.7. Assumptions
The 15-year financia! outlook of the sewer operating fund is based on several assum ptions, as outlined
below:

FYE3/31 2020 2021 2022 2025 2024 025 2026 2027 0 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033
General inflation 20%  20% C20%  20%  20%  20%  2.0%  20%  2.0% 2.0%  20%  20%  20%  2.0%
Salaries-FT 2O 20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  2.0% 20%  20%  20%  2.0%
Wages-Hourly S20% 0% 30%  20%  20%  20%  20%  2.0%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  2.0%
Health Ins 00%  BO%  B0%  BO%  80%  80%  80%  80%  8O%  BO% 80X  80%  80%  80%
H.S.A. 30%  30%  3.0%  36%  3.0% C30%  30%  3.0%  30%  3.0%  3.0%  30%  30%  3.0%
Vision 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Dental S Lo% 0% L% 1O% 10% 0%  10%  10%  10%  10%  10%  10%  1.0%  10%
LTD 20% - 20%  20%  2.0%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  2.0%  2.0%
Retirement 20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  20%  2.0%  20%  2.0% 2.0%:
Utilities 40%  40%  40%  40%  40%  40%  40%  40%  A0%-  4.0%  40%  40%  40%  4.0%
Administration 2.0%  20%  20%  2.0%  2.0%  20%  2.0% 20%  2.0%  20%  20%  2.0%  20%
Sewage Trtmt 30% 30k 30%  3.0%  30%  30%  30%  30%  30%  30%  3.0%  30%  3.0%  3.0%
Bond interest rate 325%  3.50%  375%  4.00%  4.00%  425%  425%  4S0%  4.50%  47SH  47S%  5.00%  5.00%  5.00%
Bondissuancecost (i of funds)  3.00%  300%  300%  300%  3.00% 300% 300% 3.00% 300% 300% 300%  00%  3.00%  3.00%

Each line item of the budget has been assigned an assumption, which were reviewed and affirmed as
reasonable by the Township’s utility management team.

In developing the model, alternative assumptions were tested. The chosen assumptions are believed to
be the most likely outcome, although it would be very unlikely to have actual future values exactly
match the assumptions. In forecasting future costs and revenues, it is important to consider trends more
than actual values. Since we cannot predict the future, it is important to review and update actual and
estimated future trends each year and make adjustments to the rate structure if needed.

2.8. Anticipated Capital Improvements

The Township regularly invests in maintenance and improvements to the wastewater collection system,
Typically, capital projects have been funded using cash reserves. Looking to the future, the Township is
anticipating a significant project, which may be better financed with some degree of debt. Debt

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 4



financing can help moderate the impact on rates. The recommended fundin
$6 million project in 2028 is 50% bonding and 50%
significant capital project anticipated in the near fu
Other capital projects and equipment purchases ar

Wastewater CIP

Project
Pick-up Trucks
New Building Construction
Lift Station #2 (Van Wormer) Rehabilitation
Lift Station #6 (Riirr dnd State) H.epl.wxme_nt
Lift Station #10 (Greensway) Rehabilitation
Lift Statkon # 8 (River and Dice} Replecement
Liftstation 1 13 (Apple Mountain) Rehaliitation
Lift Station #4 (Madaling) Generatar
Lift Station #4 {Madeline) Rehabilitation
Bucket Lift Truck Replacement
Dump Truck Replacement
Average Capital for future yrs
Cash for new collection majn
Band for new collection main

TOTAL

Total capital investment in the sewer system for the next 15
The level and timing of capital investments in sewer fund as

Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
Cash
bond

FYE3/31

Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum
Minimum

2020

50,500

14,179

64,679

27,044
500,000

319,225

31,092

877,361

g strategy for the expected
cash reserves, as seen in the table below. The other
ture is construction of a new Administration building.
e estimated to average about $143,000 per year.

Milllons

Sewer Fund cIp

® Cash Financed = Debt Financed

$8
o

$4

$2

so b o S — : T
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 ]

Alternative capital funding strategies are discussed later in this report, in Section 3.5.

2.9, Borrowing

The proposed capital funding strategy is intended to minimize
portion of the anticipated $6 million collection mai
$3.1 million (including issuance costs), and we hav
vear bond term. The estimated annual debt

SECTION 3. RESULTS

Using the Utility Financial Analytics Tool developed specifically for Thomas Township,
described variables and assumptions were integrated into a 15
budget. The annual expenditures were then divided hy the nut
rates required each year going forward. The results of this ana

subsections.

service payments would be about $237,500.

the impact on rates by borrowing a
n project in 2028. The Township’s estimated bond
e assumed the interest rate would be 4.5% for a 20-

the above
-year forecasted cash-based operating
nber of billing units to determine the
lysis are summarized in the following

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2033, 2032 2033
28,667 30413 32,265 33,233 34,230 35,257
50,000
384,435
50,500
100,425
130000 130000 130,000 130000 130000 130,000
3:.000,000
3,000,000
50,500 413,152 100425 30,413 50000 32,265 5,130,000 163,233 130,000 164,230 130,000 165,257

-year period is estimated to be $8.5 million.
sets is summarized in the following chart:

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 5



3.1. Budget Forecast

Each line item in the sewer operating budget was forecasted using the assumptions discussed in section
2.7, above. The resulting 15-year budget forecast is presented below:

Budget  Estimate Estimate Estimate  Estimate  Estimate Estmate  Estimate Estimate  Estimate  Estimate Estmate Estimate Estimate  Estimate
E3/3 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 Anumption
Baypriyes
Ucerise & Parmits - * - - r = * = . - . . . . «  Eetoout
Usage L0000 1163308 1216277 1,2734B8 1331407 1391401 1455865 1520543 1589197 1656340 1693092 1,727.491 1760470 1,786,155 1802547 Custom
Capacity Foe 15000 38000 8 38000 38000 38000 38000 38000 38000 38,000 38000 38000 38000 38000  3H000 Custom
Ready to Serve 0000 AL 267 263341 208431 314487 30D 37782 365651 383975 392468 400,757 409,410 418450 421502 Custom
Connection . - - . . - - - . - - - . = loout
Pamally 10100 10068 1000 10,126 10,079 10,073 10575 10088 10079 10,079 10080 10,082 Wegm 10,080 10080 At d prioryrs
Inkerast Enrned 3,500 3500 3,500 3500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 350 3,500 1500 No change
Equipmant Agntal 4,200 4200 4200 4.200 4,200 4,200 4200 4,300 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 4300 Na change
Sk Aoad Special Assessment 9980 9950 9980 9980 . . - - . - . : - - Mochange
Sale of Fived Ausety - - - - - - . . - . - . - . = hvgdprioryr
Reimbursemants” 193,000 - = L] L) = = . - = - - = = = Teroout
Total fuvanues LE0TI0 141,257 155,208 1623635 LEESEI6 LIGLOBL LG4LEN) 192114 200965 209091 2161340 2384020 2,05659 2260383 2,286218
n. .
Administration
Salaries Full-Time 67650 69003 70383  7L791 73,227 74691 76185 77,709 79263 #0898 82455 84,114 85797 87,512 89263 SalarienFT
Wages Full-Time Clerical 8 S S Lo . i i - - - o ry g +  RalariesFT
Sick Day Pay-Off 1,046 1,088 1,109 1132 1,154 1177 1,201 1225 1249 SaladlesFT
Wages Part-Time Hourly 8,276 8,956 9,135 9317 9,504 Wajes-Haurly
v 17,355 17906 18264 1Bf629 Wages-Hourly
2,715, 8026 8,187 Cuatam
26,580 31,003 33483 Healthim
Health Savings Account. 4,485 4,758 4,901 HiA
Vislon/Short Term Disability/Life 1,001 1,002 1,063 Viian
Dental Insurance ’ 2,825 2,882 2,911 Cuntal
insurance Long Term Disability 261 266 Wagei-Mourly
. iby 3 11,362 11589 Salasies-FT
1,159 1192 1,206 Solusies FT
2,760 2815 2872 Ganeal inflation
1592 185 169 173 Gentralinflation
101,669 105,776 10289 110050 112251 134,496 Administration
832 219 883 901 919 937 956 5 General inflation
! 1,182 1,230 1,255 1,260 1305 1331 General inflation
Membership & Dues 2,603 2,708 2,762 2,818 2874 2,932 Gamera] inflation
Contractad Services 1,231 1,281 1,306 1,332 1,359 1386 Ganeral (nflation
Professional Services 300 300 300 300 a0 300 No chango
Legai Notices 300, 300 300 300 300 300 Ho chariga
Education & Training 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 No change
Operations and Maintenance — B
Wages Full-Time Hourly 93600 95472 97381 99329 101316 103302 105409 10757 103647 111,861 123503 Splarins:FT
Wages Pagers 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1350 1250 Nochangs
Wages in Lieu of Health Ins. 1,500 1,500 1500 1500 1,500 1,500 1500 Ho change
Wages Part-Time Hourly 24000 24720 25462 26225 27285 27831 28387 28BS Wages-Hourly
Wages Overtime 8,487 8742 9,095 9,277 9.462 9551 Wages-Houtdy
FICA Emplover Coatribution 10035 10257 (10484 10899 11113 11,331 11553 Custam
Health Insurance 19973 WSM 23297 27,173 29347 31695 34230 Health Ina
Health Savings Account . 4326 4458 4589 4,869 5,015 5165 5320 HSA
Vislon/Short Term Disabillty/Life %44 952 982 1,021 1,063 1,084 Vislary
Dental Insurance 242 2448 2473 2,522 2,513 2599 Oéntal
Insurance Long Term Disability 281 2856 292 304, 310 316 322 LT
Pension Emplayer Contribution 12295 1288t 12,792 13309 13575 13846 14123 15505 SalarinsFT
Worker's Compensation 2,448 ra97 2547 2,650 2,703, 2757 2,812 3167 SalaesFT
Operating Supplies 2,346 2353 2441 2,539 2,590 3035 Geawral inflation
Uniforms 3,825 1502 4,140 4,223 4848 General inlation
Contracted Services 7140 2283 g 7729 7,883 9236 Geneeal Inflation
Professional Services 35000  $5000 35000 35000 35000 35,000 Mo change
Emplayment Physicals 250 i 292 - 390 367 B8O, Heaith s
Telephone 3,060 313 3,164 3,247 3312 3378 3,558 Genaral inllation
Wireless Communications 1824 1656 1689 1,723 1,758 1,793 1m General lnflation
Insurance General Liability 23748 228 24707 25201 25705 26,219 30,720 General inflation
Utilities 67600 70304 73116 76,041 79082 82,246 112,559 Utilies
Sewage Treatment Fees 434400 509232 524509 540,244 556,452 573,145 726,043 Sewoge Trimz
Repairs/Maintenance " a0’ 921007 1292007 92600 7 100600 97600, No change
Miss Dig Services 520 531 541 552 563 574 673 Ganaral Inflation
Maintenance Agreements 54610 5712 5,837 5,953 6,072 6194 1257 - General inflation
Vehicle Expense £ 8415 8583 8,755 8930 9,109 9,291 10886 General inflation
Gas & 0ll 11,500 14730 11965 12204 12,048 12,697 12,951 15374 General Infiation
Contracted Cannections 3,000 2,060 3 3,184 3,207 3312 3378 1338 Genaral inflation
Miscellaneous 100 1337 98 489 581 701 542 550 Avy d grior yrs
Education & Training 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 750 Mo change
Depreciation 460,000 - - = - N - N . - . . - - = Detoout
Capital Contral . B .
Capital Outlay 24,100 64679 877361  SO500 413152 100425 30413 50000 32265 3,130,000 163233 130000 164230 130000 168357 Cusiom
Capital Improvements 236,000 Custom
Debt Service
Sewer Debt Service - . . - - - . 237,547 237,547 237,547 237,547  231.547 Custom
Total Expenditures LETZSIL 16L503 2110905 1309339 1741837 1A2GEM0 LIIMA 1051325 LGLEM  AGOS314 1915500 1923207 L9SOSTD 2,000,605 2,090,449
et Revinues {Expenditures) [Raro3l) 223748 (559.295) 312808 _ (56,221 335773 443,775 _ATATES _S47079 [2507,021) ISJE0 260782  MISTH0 250780 | ds5, 780

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 6



3.2. Revenue Required from Ratess

Revenue from rates should be sufficient to cover the cash needs of the utility fund, less any non-rate
revenues. Additionally, the cash reserve targets need to be considered, and revenue requirements need
to be adjusted to account for excesses or shortfalls in cash reserves. As seen below, the recommended
rates are expected to be sufficient to cover the cash needs of the utility for all years except the years in
which exceptionally large capital improvements are anticipated. In those years, the Township will draw
on its cash reserves rather than increase rates. The use of or increase in cash throughout the forecast
period has been considered when developing the recommended rate strategy. The cash reserve chart
shown in section 3.4 illustrates how cash could be accumulated and drawn down to help stabilize rates
while also maintaining adequate reserve levels.

Sewer Fund Revenues & Expenses ~—cashin ——cash out

6,000,000

4,000,000 A\
2,000,000 ‘-I—Qvﬂ"-&:__._;/ \
S0

139 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33

3.3. Rates Required

After determining the revenue required from rates, the billing units of the system were used to calculate
the quarterly RTS charges and com modity rates needed over the 15-year study periad. Additional testing
and analysis were performed to arrive at a “smoothed” rate strategy, as illustrated below. The impact
on typical residential ratepayers is expected to be 4.5% per year th rough 2028, after which time rate
increases are expected to slow to 2%. Of course, future rate requirements may differ from the
forecasted rates in this report, due to increasing costs, unexpected emergency repairs or new
regulations.

Est Quarterly Sewer Bil| = Sewer RTS Wi Sewer Comm ~=e=Total

5/8 Inch Basis; 15 Units; In Township
$150.00 _ ll
sgsss  S8ass  $937g  $97.99 510251 $107.14 $111.94
$100.00 {—$78 518 i ! _ - YR
$50.00
s 4

2018 . 2019 2020 2 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033
Sttt

The estimated rates required through FY 2033 are detailed in the following chart. These are estimates
only, and sewer fund financial needs should be re-evaluated annually to ensure adopted rates are set at
levels adequate to meet ongoing cash needs of the fund.

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 7



018 383 0z w2z 5T o] 15 2026 ETEE] 028 ) 2030 i 02 103
[SEWER RTS
Mater Ratio t.'n.lum
58 inch 5 15.00 ‘'§ 1550 & 1621 & 16.98 % 17.80 § 18.67 5 19.51 § 2045 $ 2140 $ 2237 § 2276 § 2313 4 2352 § 23.93 § 24,36
#4inch s 1500 § 1550 5 1621 § 1698 5 17.80 § 18.67 % 19.51 § 2045 3 2140 § 2237 § 22,76 § 2313 8§ 2352 § 2393 S 24.36
Tinch $ 45.00 & 46.51 5 4864 § 5099 § 53.40 § 56.00 § 58,53 § 6135 § 6420 $ 67.10 § 68.27 § 69.35 % 7056 § 7179 $ 73.08
1.2% insh ] 4500 § 46,51 § 48.64 § 50.94 § 53.40 & 56.00 & 58,53 % 61.35 § 64.20 $ 57.10 § 68,27 § 69.39 .§ 7056 § 779§ 73,08
LSinch 5 49.50 § 51.16 % 53.50 § 56.04 % 58.74 % 61.60 § 64.39 § 6749 § J0.62 S 7381 5 75.10 & 7633 $ 7762 § 78.97 § 80.39
2inch s 93.00 § 96.11 $ 100.52 3 105.28 $ 11036 § 1574 & 12097 § 126,79 % 13268 $ 13868 35 14109 § 143,40 & 14583 $ 148.37 5 151,03
Jinch .1 165.00 § 17052 § 178.33 % 18678 5 195.79 % 20535 § 214.62 5 22495 § 23540 § 24605 § 25032 § 25443 5 258,73 § 263.23 267.95
A nch 5 375.00 5 387.56 § 40531 § 42451 § 43458 %5 466.70 § 487.77 § 51125 § 53500 § 559.20 § 56891 % 578.25 § 588,02 $ 598.25 ¢ 608.98
Ginch & 75000 & 77811 § 810.61 % 84902 § 88997 3§ 933,40 % 97558 § 1,022.50 5 1.070.01 $ 111839 $ 1,137.83 § 115649 S 117603 $ L1965 s 1,217.96
4 inch § 135000 5 139520 § KARAM0 3 1,528.23 § 1,601.94 § 1480,11 5 1,755.08 5 L#05 5 19260 S 201310 § 2,048,09 § 208169 $ 211686 $ 2153.70 $ 219232
10 ech $ 2,00000 § 2,17031 § 2,269.72 % 2,377.25 § 249191 % 261351 5 273153 §  LBs3OL % 2,99602 $ 3,131.43 $ 318591 £ 323818 $  3,292.89 $  3,350.20 3 3,410.28
12inch $ 2,640.00 5 172830 § 245136 5 2odEs4 5 3,132.68 § 328556 $ 343392 5 3,599.21 § 3,76643 $ 393673 $§ 400515 $ 4,070.85 $ 413963 $ 421168 $ 428721
CUHIM‘I!! ('hlsc:! 5 425 5 442 5 452 5 484 5 506 5 520 5 358 & 578 § 604 5 630 § 643 3 457 & AG0 £ ars 4 .85

The rate strategy de'vveloped through this study is a proactive approach to ensuring rates gradually rise
to meet funding needs of the sewer system. To meet the operating and debt service needs of the Sewer

Fund, the Township should adjust rates each year.

3.4.!mpact on Cash Reserves
The cash reserve needs of the Sewer Fund, illustrated as the black line in the chart below, are expected
to increase when annual debt service requirements beginning in 2029.

To meet the rising costs and cash needs of the fund over the following 15 years, the Township should
plan to increase its cash balance each year through 2027, at which time the cash reserved should be
sufficient to fund about half of the $6 million capital project planned in 2028. The gradual accumulation
then reduction of cash is intended to minimize the long-term impact on ratepayers.

Sewer Fund Cash Balance wt Estimated Cash
—Target Cash Balance

56,000,000

4,000,000
2,000,000 -
50

3.5. Alternative Scenarios

The rate and financial analysis results summarized above reflect the funding alternative that balances
the need for capital investment and the desire to minimize customer rate impacts. Two primary
alternative scenarios were tested, which considered funding the 2028 collection main project entirely

with cash or entirely with bonding.

As seen in the summary dashboards below, the impact on customers would vary conSiderany if the
Township chose to borrow the full $6 million or if it chose to build sufficient cash reserves to fully fund

the project with cash.

The first dashboard below illustrates a scenario in which the Township bonds the full amount. In this
scenario, rates would increase about 2.5% per year. However, the Township would not be able to meet
the target debt coverage ratio, and the cash balance in the fund could fall below the minimum range.

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 8




Est, Quarterly Sewer Bill N Scwer RTS W Sewer Comm m=—xTotal

5/8 inch Basis; 15 Units; In Township
$150.00

$107.25  $107.92  $112.63

$93.20 $95.51 $97.86 $10220  $102.77

88.77 $90.94
$100.00 - 84,53 536.64 s

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2025 2030 2031 2032 2033
Sewer Fund Revenues & Expenses  ==cashin == cash Out Sewer Fund Cash Balance st Estimated Cash
= Target Cash Balance
3.000,000
2,000,000 Q s
1,000,000
$0 - - - - - e
19 20 21 2 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33
e T —
— — — -
Sewer Fund Debt s Principal W (nterest II Sewer Fund CIp # Cash Financed Debt Financed {
e Target Cov == Coverage Ratio sg =
$500,000 - 150% e
$400,000 !_ lé 2
100% |}
$300,000 2w
20000 ] 2 | B
$100,000 - 711 ] h d
$0 — y T =t 0% 0 S G - ——————
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 3 31 2 33
=Naro: benerate S6M in € BIve
Est. Quarterly Sewer Bill B Sewer RTS ' #8 Sewer Comm =~ =~=—=Total
5/8 inch Basis; 15 Units; In Township
$150.00 . $13646 513655 313650 $13655 813658
’ $10g31  Sh1aze TN .
82,3 so732  Sl0270
$100.00 - s
$50.00
s
| 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 0 2031 2032 2033
Sewer Fund Revenues & Expenses e Cash In  ===—Cash Out Sewer Fund Cash Balance == Estimated Cash
=~ Target Cash Balance
fs10.000,000 510,000,000
45,000,000 :A: $5,000,000
S0 ——— ——— ——— - S0 J
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33
- = --
- s == —=— = — - - q
Sewer Fund Debt 881 Drincipl —erest I[ Sewer Fund CiP € Cash Financed  @'DebtFinanced |
e Target Cov = Coverage Ratio $8 — L <
$1 j SENVS | I
sl | - - SG |
61 e e | I "
i s
% I |
$0 1 S
S0 — - — — 0% $0 - .— e e
]3202122232452627282930313233 192011227324?52627282530313233

Thomas Township | Sa nitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 9



In the second scenario, rates would have to increase about 5.5% per year through 2028, then rates
would remain unchanged for the foreseeable future. The cash reserves would fall to about 25% of the
target cash balance in 2028, then quickly rebuild as revenue from rates exceeded expected expenditures
for some time.

SECTION 4. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

At the conclusion of the financial study, the Township Board is being provided with the findings and
recommendations of the analysis as described in this report. Township administration was provided the
Excel-based rate model for ongoing rate monitoring and calculations.

4.1.Rate Adoption

The Township is encouraged to adopt a rate increase in 2019, which would be in effect through the end
of the 2019-20 fiscal year. The recommended rates for adoption this year and the following four years
are:

EYE3/31: 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

QUARTERLY SEWER RTS

5/8inch $ 1550 § 16.21 $ 16.98 $ 17.80 $ 18,67
3/4 inch $ 1550 § 1621 $ 16.98 S 17.80 $ 18.67
1inch $ 4651 $ 4864 $ 50.94 $ 53.40 $ 56.00
1.25 inch $ 4651 § 4864 $ 50.94 $ 53.40 $ 56.00
15inch $ 5116 $ 5350 $ 56.04 $ 58.74 $ 61.60
2inch $ 9611 $ 10052 $ 10528 $ 110.36 $ 11574
3inch $ 17052 $ 17833 $ 18678 3 195.79 §  205.35
4inch $ 387.56 & 40531 § 42451 S 44498 S 466.70
6inch $ 77511 $ 81061 $ 84902 $  889.97 $  933.40
8inch $ 139520 § 145910 $ 152823 $ 1,601.94 $ 1,680.11
1@inch $ 217031 $ 226972 $ 237725 $ 249191 § 261351
12inch $ 272839 § 285336 $ 298854 $ 313268 § 328556
|Commodity Charge: § 4.42 5 4.62 5 484 5 506 % 5.29

While the Township may elect to adopt a multi-year rate increase, rates should be reviewed and
adjusted each year to ensure revenue sufficiency.

4.2, Impact on Customers

The proposed rate schedule will result in an average increase in customer sewer bills of about 4.5% per
year for the next five years. A typical resident currénvtly pays about $78.75 per quarter for sewer service.
Over the next five years, the quarterly bill is estimated to increase as follows:

Customer Impact Estimator-TOTAL 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Units (1000 gal) 15 Comm 5 63.75 § 66.32 S 69.34 S 7260 S 75.90 S 79.32
Meter Size 5/8inch RTS S 15.00 S 15.50 § 16.21 § 16.98 S 17.80 $ 18.67

In Village or Out?  In Township Total/Qtr $ 7875 $ 81.82 $ 85.55 § 89.58 $ 93.70 $ 97.99

% change 0.0% 3.9% 4.6% 4.7% 4.6% 4.6%

The Township’s largest customer, HSC, can also expect to see an average 4.5% increase, as illustrated in
the estimated rates and charges summarized below:

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 10



Customer Impact Estimator-TOTAL 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Units (1000 gal) 20,000 Comm $85,000.00 $ 88427.14 $92,453.54 $ 96,802.36 $101,204.94 $ 105,765.29
Meter Size 4inch  RTS $ 37500 § 387.56 $§ 40531 S 42451 § 444.98 § 466.70
InVillage or Qut? In Township Total/Qtr $85,375.00 $ 88,814.70 $92,853.84 $ 97,226.87 $101,649.92 $106,231.99

% change 0.0% 4.0% 4.6% 4.7% 4.5% 4.5%

4.3. Future Action Required

The Township is encouraged to annually update and review the rate model to ensure revenue
requirements will be achieved for at least the next five-year period. As necessary, rates should be
modified to meet the cash needs of the operating budget and the cash reserve targets of the sewer
fund. At a minimum, rates should be adjusted annually to reflect the inflationary cost increases
associated with operating the sewer utility. To satisfy the funding needs of the capital improvement
plan, rate increases will likely need to exceed inflation. Adopting multi-year rate schedules may help
ensure future Boards remain committed to the funding strategy identified in the report. However, the
Township should not simply adopt a multi-year rate schedule and disregard annual Sewer Fund financial
reviews. Rates should be adjusted based on the most recent financial position of the fund, even if that
means revising a previously adopted rate plan.

Thomas Township | Sanitary Sewer Cost of Service Rate Study | 11




TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC:  Approve Resolution 19-17 to amend the Fee Schedule (Schedule
F) for the 2019/20 Fiscal Year to include the new sewer rates.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The proposed resolution would amend the Township’s
Fee Schedule to incorporate the proposed sewer rates as determined by the Municipal
Analytics as a result of their study completed on behalf of the Township. The new rates
would go into effect on October 1, 2019.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Resolution 19-17
and amended fee schedule.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by
supported by to approve Resolution 19-17 to amend the Fee

Schedule (Schedule F) for the 2019/20 Fiscal Year to include the new sewer rates.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: Yes.




THOMAS TOWNSHIP
RESOLUTION 19-17
September 9, 2019

AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION 19-02 REGARDING FEES

The foregoing resolution offered by Board Member and seconded by Board Member

WHEREAS, the Thomas Township Board deems it necessary to charge fees for certain services and
licensing in order to recover costs associated with those services; and

WHEREAS, Schedule F approved on April 1, 2019, due to the amendments made to the sewer rates and
ready to serve charges, passed by the Board on September 9, 2019, and

WHEREAS, various ordinances as cited in Resolution 19-02 require that the Board from time to time by
resolution set fees for certain services;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that fees as listed be adopted to comply with the appropriate

ordinance requirements and will become effective as of October 1, 2019. Publication was made on August 8,
2019, with Board Action on September 9, 2019.

Water and Sewer Department Fees
Schedule F (see attached)

Upon roll call vote, the following voted

Aye:

Nay:

Absent:

Abstain:

The supervisor declared the resolution adopted.

Robert Weise, Supervisor



19-17 Fee Schedule F Amendment

/-ﬁage 2 of2

CERTIFICATE

I, EDWARD BROSOFSKI, the duly elected and acting Clerk of Thomas Township, hereby certify that the
foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Board of said Township at the regular meeting of said Board
held on September 9, 2019, at which meeting a quorum was present, by a roll call vote of said members and
hereinafter set forth; that said resolution was ordered to take effect with all billings after October 1, 2019, or as
noted in said resolution.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk



SCHEDULE F 2019
THOMAS TOWNSHIP WATER AND SEWER DEPARTMENTS

97-G-22 Article IT Sec. 4 Fire Line Connection Equal to quarterly water
ready to serve charge
97-G-22 Article IIl Sec. 5SE Licensing Fee $ 25
Annual Renewal $ 20
Article IV Sec. 3 Monitoring, inspections, Actual costs of labor,
surveillance, review of materials and contractors

accidental discharges

Article V Sec. 1 A Water Capacity Charge

5/8",3/4" & 1" meter $ 1,250
Duplex $ 2,500
1 1/4" meter $ 1,700
1 1/2" meter $ 1,875
2" meter $ 3,750
3" meter $ 5,625
4" meter $ 7,500
6" meter $18,750
8"  meter $22,500
Article V Sec. 1B Sewer Capacity Charge
3/4" connection (basic res. unit) $ 1,800
Duplex $ 3,600

All others use Schedule A unit factors to determine fees

Article V Sec. 2A  Water Connection Fee

1" connection $1,850

Duplex 1" connection $3,700

All others Actual cost for meter, contractor supplies, connection supplies, and
township labor. Connections over 70' are to be figured by DPW
superintendent.

Installed Meter Pit

with 1” Connection $ 900

All others $900 plus actual cost for meter fittings, connection supplies, and

Township labor. Cost to be determined by DPW Superintendent.

Meter Costs 5/8” Meter $146.01
1” Meter $211.00
11/2” Meter $423.60



2” Meter  $566.09

3” Meter  $1,875.85

4” Meter $2,799.07

6” Meter  $3,902.45

8”7 Meter  $5,517.01
10” Meter $15,035.37

Article V Sec. 2B Sanitary Sewer Connection Fee $ 1,800

Article V Sec. 3 A Ready to Serve Charge Water (Resolution 16-12)

5/8" meter $ 14.42 per qtr
3/4" meter $ 1442 per qtr
1" meter $ 40.37 per qtr
1 1/4" meter $  77.86 per qtr
1 1/2" meter $ 11535 per qtr
2"  meter $ 178.79 per qtr
3" meter $ 317.21 per qtr
4" meter $ 720.94 per qtr
6" meter $ 1.441.88 per qtr
8" meter $2,595.38 per gtr
10” meter $ 4,037.25 per qtr
12” meter $5,075.40 per qtr
2” FL $  87.43 per qtr
3” FL $ 131.08 per qtr
4”  FL $ 174.34 per qtr
6” FL $ 436.50 per qtr
8” FL $ 524.32 per qtr
Multiple Units $  14.42 per gtr
HSC (Resolution 18-06) $ 524,229 per qtr

Non-resident charges shall be 125% of these charges

Article V Sec. 3 A Ready to Serve Charge Sanitary Sewer (Resolution 07-11)

5/8" meter $ 15.50 per qtr
3/4" meter $ 15.50 per qtr
1" meter $ 46.51 per qtr
1 1/4" meter $ 46.51 per qtr
1 1/2" meter $ 51.16 per qtr
2" meter $ 96.11 per qtr
3" meter $ 170.52 per qtr
4"  meter $ 387.56 per qtr
6" meter $ 775.11 per qtr
8" meter $ 1,395.20 per qtr
10” meter $2,170.31 per qtr

12” meter $2,728.39 per qtr



Non-resident charges shall be 125% of these charges

Article V' Sec. 3B Water Consumption Rate (All water usage) (Resolution 16-12)
$3.35 per 1,000 gallons. HSC Rate $2.35 per 1,000 gallons. The wholesale water rate for
2018 is $1.78 per 1,000 gallons for Township owned properties.

Non-resident charges shall be 125% of these charges

Article V' Sec. 3C Sanitary Sewer Service (Resolution 07-11)
$4.42 per 1,000 gallons of water (based upon water usage excluding sprinkler meters)

Non-resident charges shall be 125% of these charges

Article V Sec. 8B2 Late Charge (Penalty)

Late charge for water/sewer bills not paid by the 25th day of the month after the period of
service is 5%.

Article V Sec. 3C 3 Industrial Sewer Discharge surcharge

1. BODS5 .30 per pound or actual, whichever is greater
(discharges over permitted limitation on average per month)

2. Suspended Solids .30 per pound or actual, whichever is greater
(discharges over permitted limitation on avg. per month)

Article V Sec. SA Meter Relocation Fee
$40.00 plus cost of materials

Article V Sec. 5B Meter Replacement Fee
$40.00 plus cost of meter

Article V Sec. 5C Meter Testing Fee
$40.00 plus cost of shipping and testing

Article V Sec. 5D Cross Connection Testing
Township costs

Article V Sec. SE Turn on and Turn off Fees (Normal business hours)
$40.00 to turn off and $40.00 to turn on water service

Turn on and Turn off Fees (overtime) $60.00 per hour
Article V Sec. SF Special Metering Services

$44.00 per hour + commodity
$58.00 per hour | commodity



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager
Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Consider approval of the Five Year Financial Forecast and Capital
Improvement Plan for fiscal years 2019/20-2024/25.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Annually, the staff and the Board update the Township’s long
term financial guide known as the Financial Forecast, along with the Capital Improvement
Plan. The combined Financial Forecast and Capital Improvement Plan (FF/CIP) document
has been previously distributed. We have made several basic assumptions regarding
various budgetary line items with respect to future changes in order to prepare this
document. Needless to say it is challenging to pull out the crystal ball each year and try to
predict the future of everything from insurance costs to what we will be paying for
electricity or for water meters in six years. We do our best each year to try to research as
much as possible about future markets, product changes, relevant trends and whatever else
may be affecting a particular line item in the future. Please let us know if you have
concerns or questions about specific items.

MATERIAL ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:
Financial Forecast and Capital Improvement Plan

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION:
Approve, Amend, Deny or Table

SUGGESTED/REGUESTED MOTION:
Motion by supported by to accept the Capital
Improvement Plan & Financial Forecast as presented.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




| o il
B
n = I.I IILh u u
u I.- I u u I. a
= iy l S L
u L I II1
.I. .- I-. u N § BN EE . u
i i m=a = s e g
I u u u H NN
. = WIS TER G --'--l-—'r-l..l..tl-"l'l.--
. H . I u u - u u u H N N
I u u -I. u a n .... !
‘ u ‘.- u .- : I u AN BN u u
.- L -I-I - - L -
M m PR e, .
P g kR ) L.
I u I. .I .II L ‘. u
d1l &N =5 ==
. -
1 1 I;rl II. .-_.I. u
-l = u u u
.. .1 [ ] u [ - _— N
il .-IH F EEE -l.l u




TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager
Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve short-term transfer in the amount of $25,000 to the DDA

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: As we expected, the impact of the Michigan Tax Tribunals Dark
Store approach of valuing big box stores such as Meijer and Home Depot as if they were
vacant caused the DDA’s cash balance to be insufficient to cover expenditures for the
balance of the fiscal year. The Dark Store approach reduced the property tax revenue that
was originally used in the calculations of the DDA's ability to pay the Streetlight Bond. The
final bond payment was due and paid in August however the DDA did not have sufficient
funds available to make the payment and continue to cover normal expenditures for the
remainder of the fiscal year. To keep the fund solvent a transfer in the amount of $25,000
was made to the DDA from General Fund. This transfer will be reimbursed prior to the end
of the fiscal year with the distribution of the December 2019 tax collection.

MATERIAL ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:
None

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table

SUGGESTED/REGUESTED MOTION:
Motion by supported by to approve the transfer of
$25,000 to the DDA from General Fund

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




a n u o N . I_III L L ‘III uhl Ir .,L -Ih

= = =52 = = snm = ks mm s "= "THE: & - = N
a1 = i B: e BB =" n . LN
== " 1 — . u N gr ags = = - . aE = .
- .
. - = - . s mm . -
L = = === =B . ’ s "R s - "

I“ ="rUrT"EaamaEari.raErerrTmaaseTe.T

e o e o il

i
R g e e e LR L L

T A T R
i m "mll am = i . n - Ml |
1 B BFrs""rr«m"

= Sl ara. !




POLICE DEPARTMENT

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

o MEETING DATE: September 9,2019

o SUBMITTED BY: Al Fong, Chief

e AGENDA TOPIC: Approve the purchase from Axon Enterprise, Inc to replace the
seven current Taser conducted electrical weapons (CEW) with new Taser’s and adding an
eighth Taser for $11,688.

o EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Axon had recently put a five year useful life
recommendation for all Taser weapons. This is only a recommendation and not an
expiration date. The reasoning given was that because the Taser is composed of hundreds
of individual electronic components and several printed circuit boards and their
associated interconnections, these wear out over time and may not operate as expected.
Weapons that are more than five years old are 2x more likely to fail in the field.

With this said, Axon will not extend the $10 million liability insurance to customers that
have Taser that are older than five years with worn out components. What this means is
that if an officer uses a Taser that’s over five years old and the suspect suffers a serious
injury or death due to the Taser, the Township may be liable. Axon will take apart that
Taser and will inspect it with a fine tooth comb and if they find even one tiny component
that’s worn out, the liability insurance would not apply.

Axon is the sole supplier of the Taser of which the Police Department currently uses.
Funding is coming from an anonymous local family foundation and the cost will not have
a negative impact on the budget.

o MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Copy of quote
from Axon.

e POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

o SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported
by to approve the purchase from Axon Enterprise, Inc to replace

the seven current Taser conducted electrical weapons (CEW) with new Taser’s and
adding an eighth Taser for $11,688.

e ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No.

8215 Shields Drive eSaginaw, Michigan 48609-4820 #(989) 781-1300 *FAX (989) 781-6059
www.thomastwp.org



Q-222807-43677.584SS
Issued: 07/31/2019
Axon Enterprise, Inc.

17800 N 85th St.
Scottsdale, Arizona 85255

Payment Terms: Net 30
United States Delivery Method: Fedex - Ground
Phone: (800) 978-2737

SALES REPRESENTATIVE
Stephanie Sapp

SHIP TO BILLTO Phone:
Al Fong Thomas Township Police Dept. Email: ssapp@axon.com
Thomas Township Police Dept. 8215 Shields Dr. Fax:
8215 Shields Dr. Saginaw, M| 48609 PRIMARY CONTACT
Saginaw, M| 48609 us Al Fong
us Phone: (989) 781-1300

Email: afong@thomastwp arg

Hardware ; _ : _
11002 BLACK X26P CEW, HANDLE 8 1,065.00 1,065.00 8,520.00
11004 WARRANTY, 4 YEAR, X26P 8 331.00 331.00 2,648.00
22010 PPM, STANDARD BATTERY PACK, X2/X26P 8 65.00 65.00 520.00
Subtotal 11,688.00
Estimated Shipping 0.00
Estimated Tax 0.00
Total 11,688.00




— _"ﬁ

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019
SUBMITTED BY: Chief Michael Cousins
AGENDA TOPIC: Painting Exterior of the Fire Station # 2.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: In our Capital Improvement plan, we budgeted
for the painting of the exterior of Fire Station #2. This preventative maintenance
is intended to maintain our building in good condition. Station #2 exterior has not
been painted for some time and is showing some signs of its age. This will also
ensure we have a perfect paint match from the ‘old” side of the building to the
addition we put on a few years ago. This coat of paint will give it a fresh new look
and help maintain our facilities. Bids were sent out to all vendors on our
Township’s paint list. We received three bids in return. I am recommending the
bid is awarded to the lowest bidder, A&A Painting in the total amount of
$7,830.00. This project was budgeted for and is in line with our Capital
Improvement plan.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: Bid tabulation sheet
SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

supported by to award the contract for painting
the exterior of Fire Station #2 to A&A Painting in the amount of $7,830.00.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No



BID TABULATION WORK SHEET
BID PROJECT: Exterior Painting Fire Station #2
DATE: August 29,2019 TIME: 9:10 am EST

THOSE ATTENDING BID OPENING:

NAME COMPANY REPRESENTING
Michael Cousins Thomas Township Fire Dept.
Sherri Simerson Thomas Township Fire Dept.

BID TABULATION WORK SHEET

DETAILS
COMPANY NAME BID PRICE
Dependable Painting LLC $11,000.00
Murray Painting $20,378.00
A & A Painting $ 7,830.00

Low bid and the company we recommended is:
A &A Painting @ $7,830.00



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Chief, Mike Cousins

AGENDA TOPIC: Purchase of Ten (10) Zoll Plus Automatic External
Defibrillator’s from BioMedical Solutions in the amount of $8,975.00

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: I have proposed a concept whereby an
Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) would be strategically placed in various
members private vehicles. Upon notification of a cardiac arrest event (person
not breathing) the members carrying this equipment would respond directly to
the scene to initiate the AED. In times like these, when someone is not
breathing and does not have a heartbeat, time is critical. Studies are showing us
it is imperative to have an AED on site and being used within four minutes. By
having AED’s placed throughout our Township and allowing our medically
licensed members carry this device, we are considerably improving the
likelihood of saving a life. The AED would still be owned and maintained by
the fire department. This model of AED is the same unit we carry on all of our
other fire and rescue trucks. By keeping all units the same will make it
logistically easier to keep like supplies in stock. We are also mandated to print
out reports from the AED after it has been used, which will also support having
the same units compatible with our current software.

This plan has the full support of the Saginaw Tuscola Medical Control
Authority.

I am proposing we fund this project through the established Public Safety Trust
Fund held by the Saginaw Community Foundation. This anonymous family trust
fund was established for projects just like this. The intentions were to fund
various projects within the fire and police departments, that would have an
impact on our residents. This fund is spent in rotation between the two
departments. I have spoken to the family members and have gained their full
support for this project. Knowing their sister whom this is in honor of, I know
she would love to see this tool used in saving lives.



I have attached three quotes for ten (10) AED’s. The low bid for this is from a
company called BioMedical Solutions Inc. This bid is for $8,975.00 which is
what I am asking for. The plan for equipping our responders with an AED has
been brought before the Public Safety Committee and they also support this
plan.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Three
quotes for the purchase of Ten (10) Zoll Plus AED.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

, supported by ' , to
purchase ten (10) Zoll Plus Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) for

$ 8,975.00.00.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No










FIRE DEPARTVIENT

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Chief Al Fong and Chief Mike Cousins

AGENDA TOPIC: Purchase a copy machine from Boss Business Solutions in
the amount of $3,688.00 for the Public Safety Building.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Our current copy machine is several years old
and the maintenance costs are becoming increasingly greater along with
continuous problems. Both the police and fire departments have budgeted for this
replacement in our capital improvement budgets. We did explore and bid this out
to compare prices between purchasing versus leasing a copy machine. We ended
with a purchase that would actually save us money. We sent out bids to all the
vendors on our Township’s copy machine vendor list and received five bids in
return.

The lowest qualified bid was Capital Communication Systems from Lansing in
the amount of $3,569.00. I am recommending we exercise our Townships right to
reject this bid as they do not meet the minimum specifications we requested. The
next lowest bid is Boss Business Solutions with a bid of $3,688.00 and they do
meet the bid specifications. We are recommending the purchase of the copy
machine to Boss Business Solutions which will provide us a very nice overall
package and is within our budgeted amount.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by
supported by to purchase a copy machine for the
Public Safety Building in the amount of $3,688.00 from Boss Business Solutions.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




BID TABULATION WORK SHEET
BID PROJECT: Purchase copy machine for the PSB
DATE: August 29,2019 TIME: 9:05 am EST

THOSE ATTENDING BID OPENING:

NAME COMPANY REPRESENTING
Michael Cousins Thomas Township Fire Dept.
Sherri Simerson Thomas Township Fire Dept.
Cliff Leibold Boss Business Solutions
Jeff Dupuis Brady Business

BID TABULATION WORK SHEET

DETAILS

COMPANY NAME BID PRICE
Toshiba $4,800.00
Brady Business $5,243.00
Midland Office Solutions $4,700.00
Boss Business Solutions $ 3,688.00
Capitol Communication Systems $ 3,569.00

Low bid and the company we recommended is:
Boss Business Solutions @ $3,688.00



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019
SUBMITTED BY: Chief Mike Cousins

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve text amendment 19-G-01, Title 3, Chapter 6, Section 1,
prohibiting the ignition, discharge and use of consumer fireworks during prescribed hours
of each day; to prescribe penalties and to provide for the public health, safety and general
welfare.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: We have an adopted ordinance which outlines the days
and times when fireworks can be ignited, discharged or used within Thomas Township.
State Law dictates which days this can occur. Local jurisdictions have no control over it.
The State Law was recently amended with new dates and times. The local ordinance
needs to be amended to reflect the dates and times within the State Law. Those dates and
times are as follows:

December 31st until 1:00 a.m. on January 1st

The Saturday and Sunday before Memorial Day until 11:45 p.m. on those days only.
June 29th to July 4th until 11:45 p.m. on each of those days.

July 5th, if it falls on a Friday or Saturday, until 11:45 p.m.

The Saturday and Sunday immediately before Labor Day until 11:45 p.m. on those days
only.

Outside of the days and times noted above, fireworks cannot be discharged after 10:00
p.m. based on our local noise ordinance. This has been reviewed and approved by the
Township Attorney and the Public Safety Committee.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Text Amendment
19-G-07, Title 3, Chapter 6, Section 1, Prohibiting the ignition, discharge and use of
consumer fireworks during prescribed hours of each day; to prescribe penalties and to
provide for the public health, safety and general welfare.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.
SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

supported by to approve Text Amendment 19-G-01,
Title 3, Chapter 6, Section 1, Prohibiting the ignition, discharge and use of consumer




fireworks during prescribed hours of each day; to prescribe penalties and to provide for
the public health, safety and gencral welfare.

® ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? Yes



ORDINANCE NO. 19-G-01
AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING THE IGNITION, DISCHARGE AND USE OF
CONSUMER FIREWORKS DURING PRESCRIBED HOURS OF EACH DAY
THOMAS TOWNSHIP
SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 6 OF TITLE 3, "PROHIBITING THE
IGNITION, DISCHARGE AND USE OF CONSUMER FIREWORKS DURING
PRESCRIBED HOURS"; TO PRESCRIBE PENALTIES AND TO PROVIDE FOR THE
PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE.

THOMAS TOWNSHIP, SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN ORDAINS:

AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 6, TITLE 3 REGARDING CONSUMER FIREWORKS

Section 1.

That Chapter 6, "Prohibiting Ignition, Discharge And Use Of Consumer Fireworks
During Prescribed Hours" of Title 3, "Public Health And Safety" of the Thomas Township Code
is hereby amended to read as follows:

DEFINITIONS:

Section 3-6-1, As used in this Ordinance:

a. "Consumer fireworks" means fireworks devices that are designed to
produce visible effects by combustion, and are required to comply with the construction,
chemical composition, and labeling regulations promulgated by the United States Consumer
Product Safety Commission under 16 CFR parts 1500 and 1507, and that are listed in APA
standard 87-1, 3.1.22, 3.1.3, or 3.5. A consumer fireworks does not include low-impact
fireworks.

b. "Person"” means an individual, agent, association, charitable organization,
company, Limited Liability Company, corporation, labor organization, legal representative,
partnership, unincorporated organization, or any other legal or commercial entity.

C. "National Holiday Time Period" means the following days after 11 a.m.:

a. December 31 until 1:00 a.m. on January 1;

b. The Saturday and Sunday before Memorial Day until 11:45 p.m.
on each of those days;

C. June 29 to July 4 until 11:45 p.m. on each of those days;

d. July 5, if it falls on a Friday or Saturday, until 11:45 p.m.;

e. The Saturday and Sunday immediately before Labor Day until
11:45 p.m. on each of those days.



GENERAL PROHIBITION:

Section 3-6-2. Except as provided in Section 3, no person shall ignite, discharge or use
consumer fireworks within Thomas Township on any day between the hours of 10:00 p-m. and
11:00 a.m. the following day.

EXCEPTIONS:

Section 3-6-3. This ordinance does not regulate the ignition, discharge, or use of
consumer fireworks after 11 a.m. during National Holiday Time Periods as defined in Section 3 -
6-1 c above.

PENALTY:
Section 3-6-4. Violation of this Ordinance is a civil infraction.

(a) Any person or other entity who violates any of the provisions of this
Ordinance is responsible for a municipal civil infraction as defined by Michigan law and subject
to a civil fine of not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) plus costs, which may include all
direct or indirect expense, to which the Township has spent in connection with the violation. In
no case, however, shall costs of less than nine dollars (89.00) or more than five hundred dollars
($500.00) be ordered. A violator of this ordinance shall also be subject to such additional
sanctions, remedies, and judicial orders as are authorized under Michigan law. Each day a
violation of this Ordinance continues to exist constitutes a separate violation.

(b) Any person or entity who violates any of the provisions of this
Ordinance and who has been issued a municipal civil infraction violation notice as defined by
Ordinance 97-G-01 and who admits responsibility therefore within the time specified thereon
shall ay a civil fine and costs at the Thomas Township Municipal Ordinance Violations Bureau
in accordance with the schedule of civil fines and costs in Section 9 of Ordinance 98-G-01 which
is incorporated herein by reference.

REPEALER:
Section 2.

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance arc hereby repealed.



PUBLICATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE:

Section 3.

This ordinance or a summary of its regulatory effect shall be published in a newspaper of
general circulation in the Township, within 30 days after adoption. The ordinance shall become
effective 30 days after such publication.

Adopted by the Township Board of Thomas Township at a regular meeting said Board
held on September 9, 2019.

Robert Weise, Supervisor

CERTIFICATE

[ hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly adopted by the Township Board of
Thomas Township as Ordinance 19-G-01 at a regular meeting of the Board held on September 9,
2019.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk






DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Rick Hopper, Director of Public Works

AGENDA TOPIC: To Award the 2019 Municipal Parking Area Sealcoating Project to
Yeager Asphalt.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: This year, all respective departments budgeted to complete
parking area sealcoating and restriping of the Township’s asphalted areas. A Request
for Quotes and sealed bids were sought from twelve different sealcoating companies.
Three were returned for consideration. Yeager Asphalt submitted the lowest overall
quote to complete all areas in the amount of $ 30,184.70. As part of Yeager’s bid, they
also quoted a 10% discount if all of the areas they bid are accepted and awarded.
Considering the 10% reduction, this places the overall cost at $ 27,165.80.

Yeager Asphalt is a local company that has completed other projects for our Township
before. They have always provided a quality product in a timely manner. The project
would be funded from the various department’s budgets and cost centers as they
pertain to their particular department. All Department Heads have pre-approved this
expenditure.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Yeager Bid, Bid Tab

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, not approve, amend or table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to award the 2019 Municipal Parking Area Sealcoating Project to
Yeager Asphalt in an amount not to exceed $ 30,184.70.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




00'6€6's  $

0985201 $
00°000'£L€ S| 0000T'e S| 00006°cE S| €z'99T's2 S| oLver’os $ | 00499 s|oLzis’'or | esereor | 0ooTZZ S| €80Ty S VIOl
5 < - 3 - $
00008t $ | 00°00S S | 00°00€2 S| SL7e9't S| osLv6'e S | 09°£6€ S | 000557 S | 009e€’e S | 00052 S | 00980°€ 3 Aeigr
00°009°CT S | 00°009 S| 0000021 $ | 05'SECE S| oo'ses’e S| 00°Lg9 S | 00'8S6C S| oo'sot's S | 0000€ S | 00°s08°L S eaJe 3upjJed play [[eqios > ied saqoy
00000y S | 00°00S S | 00°00S'e S| 6L919'C $ | 05°L06C S| 0S'£09 S | 0000gz S | 000549 $ | 00'00€ S | 0070S¥'9 S eaJe gupjled xa|dwod 132205 Hyueq SHaqoy
0000F'T S 00°00%'T S| 08°0£9T S| 00C18't 3 2 00ZI8T  $|0000sT S| |0000ST 3 Aempeoy-3jied 5,190y
00009'T S | 007002 S | 00'00v'T S| 8TSLY'T $ | 076£9T S| 000stT S| 0Z68Y'T S| o9eetrT $ | 00109z s| o€zt S T uones ally
00°'00F S ] S | 0000V s | ozzos S | 00'8SS $ | 00'0ST S | oo'sov S | 00°St9 S | 00°0ST S | 00°s6v S Juip|ing |eddiun Basy Supiieg FUVYE] |
0000S'T S| 00002 $ | 00'00€E'T S| o9evL'T S| 006t $|0SLLe S| 05999t S| 00'v69T S | 00°00T S | 00v6Y'T S Yied Aeg
00'00T‘a  $ | 00°00S S | 000097 S| s919v's ¢ | 09'8909 S| 05499 S | 0o TOv'S S| €289L6 $ | 00°00€ S| €T89r'6 S Aayes oqnd
00006 ¢ ] 0000T $ | 00°008C S | 08'866C S| 0ozeg's S | 00'0ST S | 00z8t’e S | 00965V S | 000ST S| 009Ky S SHOM JlIqnd
0000LY S| 00'00S S | 00002y S | 06'Zv8 $ | 00'18€'s S | 0009 S| 001SL'Y S | 00'9e#'s S | o0'00€ S | 0091’8 S Sup|ing [ediunpyy
Buneod
Suiding auge 1UNOISIP %0T IWVLOL Juidinzs feas/Buyy IvLOL Suiduae 3uneod
o jeas/3uny xoesd ) s v_oEu. - T 1ess/8uy yoea)
leydsy Ajjjenp Yeydsy sadea, yeydsy JN




t) You as contractor, warrant all painted areas of all parking
areas for a period of | year after completion. Re-striping of
markings may be required, for any reason as deemed fit by
Township. Such re-striping shall be completed at the
earliest opportunity available,

u) Seal coating and restriping work shall be completed after
5:15 PM Monday through Friday; however, it is preferred
that these services be completed on a weekend(s).
Regardless, as contractor shall have all parking areas

available for public and employee use no later than 6:30
AM of a normal busi k day.

v) Seal coating and restriping work for the Library shall be
completed on a Sunday.

. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
Bid Form
Thomas Township Crack fillin ing, Asphalt Sealcoating and Lot Restriping
Project

Company

Name: J/{GU\U‘ Agg'w.“— Ine.

\J L

Company,

Address: Po. Eﬁx (89 (-‘o-f"'ﬂ”,fm MT
o870y

ontact e:  AMick Contact Phone
Number (485 ) Y8Y-Gors

E-mail_p “ck @ Yeauerospha (4 . om Fax  Phone
Number( 866 ) \733.5&';'

i .
Return Sealed Quote to prior to s:00 pv, avGusT 23, 2019

Thomas Township Public Works

Label as *Parking Lot seai coating and re-striping project, uttention Rick Hopper”

249 North Miller Road
Saginaw, MI 48609

Mg_b.gt#_l.,MunjgipﬁL&udeiugﬂiN_MﬂstBgﬂ_(m
A)

Crack Filling and Sealcoating S (7; 7;{’ .00 N




Restriping % (ﬂ 3 ©.00

AREA TOTAL
COST g 535 | .00

Parking Lot # 2, Public Works Building-251 Miller Ct.,

(Area B)
Crack Filling and Sealcoating S 2.4 ’ 8 2
Restriping § /50 y 00
AREA TOTAL
COST b3 3 2 3 32 e

Parking Lot #3 Public Safety Building-8215 Shields Dr.,
(Area C)

Crack Filling and Scalcoating b3 5; ‘7/0 ’ .00
Restriping s (ﬂ(l 7— 5 o
AREA TOTAL
68.
COST (J } 0 so

Parking Lot #4, Day Park, 700 S River Rd., (Area D)
Crack Filling and Sealcoating $ /, (l ¢ @.SO

¥

Restriping $ 2 7 7- so

AREA TOTAL

1,977 00

Parking Lot #5, Municipal Building -249 N Miller Rd., (front

parking area, Area E)
Crack Fllling and Sealcoating [ yo g .o

Restriping $ / 50~ 00




AREATOTAL

COST s 55 8.00

ire Station #2 — 9970 Di - (Area F)
Crack Filling and Sealcoating S /'; Vg?' 2 =

Restriping $ / 5-0’ o

ARFEA TOTAL

cosT § 463?.20

Robert’s Park- Park entrance road from Miller Rd to
west edge of parking lot #3, (Area G)

Crack Filling

Only $ _/r gl .00
Roberts’ Park-Soccer Complex Parking area, (Area H)

Crack Filling and Seatcoating S 2{500 .00

Restriping 3 d 07.5s0

AREA

TOTAL $ 0?! g0 7. SO

Robert’s Park-Softball field parking lots #2 & #3 (Area
]

5 K . oa
Crack Filling and Sealcoating L) 0?. 9

Restriping s & 3 7 00

AREA TOTAL

COST $ 3,5"5'00




Thomas Township Library-8207 Shields Dr.

Crack Filling and Sealcoating 3 '?;, 5.-5—.0 -0
Restriping s 3 9 7- 5—‘0
AREA TOTAL

CosT s .?;, 797 0o

TOTALS

Total for Crack Filling and Seal Coating
$_ 26,517 70

Total for
Restriping $ 3}(, LL.s50

/0% pv?(0@ﬂ+ $or e ! sCa‘Jea( (O

'4
Totul ! 27,165 £0

o

The Thomas Townstip Board of Trustoes reserves the right to secept ar reject any or all bids, 10 wave informalities or errors in the bidding
Arosess, and th accopt any bid deamed 1o ba in the bes st of the Tt hip, including beds not proposed for the lowest amount spbmitod 1
further undersiand thai if selocted, the mczensiul hidder must provide ecoptable prool uf Lisbulity insurances i the amount of §1,000,000,00
with Thomas Tt hip as an add 1 b fon i

Dok Mg

Signature Date

2




THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Dan Sika, Community Development Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Rezoning Request for parcel #28-12-3-26-3002-000; commonly
known as 8000 Gratiot Road,to rezone from B-4 and R-1 to B-3.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Dr. Dwight McNally, owner of the Gratiot Animal
Hospital appeared before the Planning Commission and requested that the vacant land to
the west of, and behind the former Shooters Building be rezoned from B-4 and R-1 to B-
3 zoning. Dr. McNally stated that he intends to purchase the property and to build a new
facility for his business which he has outgrown. He stated that he would like to stay in
the Township and that this property was of a size and the location he needed to construct
a new larger building for his business.

The reason that Dr. McNally must rezone the property is that the current zoning does not
specifically allow for veterinarian type businesses where as the B-3 zoning does. At the
public hearing Dr. McNally stated that he would be appearing before the Planning
Commission in the near future to present his site plan for the new building. Dr. McNally
also stated that he was intending to install a 10’ tall berm along the south property line
within the first 100°, and along the west property line that abuts the residential homes.
Dr. McNally stated that he was intending to be a good neighbor and wanted to protect the
residential areas currently abutting the parcel. This was not a condition of the rezoning
but it was a significant gesture by Dr. McNally. The Planning Commission held a public
hearing to review the proposed rezoning and is recommending approval because it is
consistent with and follows the Township Master Plan. The request was sent to the
County Planning Office and to the Township Attorney for review. At this time, the
rezoning request is before the Township Board for final approval.

RECOMMENDATION: 1t is recommended that the parcel be rezoned as requested
based on the review by the Planning Commission which showed that the rezoning was
consistent with the Master Plan Future Land Use Map, which is the guide for the
Township whenever a rezoning request is made. In addition, during the public hearing by
the Planning Commission, the applicant agreed to install a significant buffer as part of his
Site Plan Review, in addition to what the Planning Commission may require. This was




proposed by the applicant in order to protect the neighboring residential properties which
cutrently have no berm at this time.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Current zoning
map, Future Land Use Map from the Master Plan, copies of Ordinance sections for B-4,
R-1 and B-3 zoning districts. An aerial view of the property.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: To approve/deny the requested rezoning of
parcel #28-12-3-26-3002-000 from its current zoning of B-4 (Area Wide Business
District) and R-1 (Residential One-Family District) to B-3 (Business Corridor District)

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion by , supported by

, to approve the rezoning of parcel #28-12-3-26-3002-000 from its
current zoning of B-4 (Area Wide Business District) and R-1 (Residential One-Family
District) to B-3 (Business Corridor District).

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No




28-12-3-26-3002-000

Rezoning Request

Map Publication:
08/28/2019 2:20 PM

2001t
FetchGiS \4

Disclaimer: This map does not
represent a survey or legal
document and is provided on an
"as is" basis. Saginaw County
expresses no warranty for the
information displayed on this map
document.




Future Land Use

Legend

Future Land Use
Agriculture

l Commercial
l Industrial

"0 Open Space ! Conservation
B Public / Semi-Public

Low Density Residential

Medium Density / Multi Family Residential
" High Density Residential

I —__=——— . Creatzd 5/26/2016




Legend

! A-1 Primary Agriculture & Conservation Development
A-2 General Farming Open Space and Conservation Development

B-1 Professional Business
s Corridor Business
B-4 Area-wide Business
" B-5 Exclusive Business
! E-1 Environmental Areas
l M-1 Limited Manufacturing
R-1 Single Family Residential
R-2 Medium Density Residential
B R-3 High Density Residential
B MHP Mobile Home Park

L —— === Created 5/7/2019







THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: Dan Sika, Director of Community Development

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve Demolition of 7329 Gratiot Road.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: For over a year, the Township Building Department has
been working with the owner of 7329 Gratiot, Mr. John Duquette to correct some very
significant and dangerous building problems with a rental unit on the parcel.

The Township Building Inspector was contacted by the renter at the time to inspect the
house and at that time he identified many significant and dangerous problems within the
home. The owner was contacted to correct the problems but did not fully comply and the
home continues to be an unsafe structure with many building problems as well as



Page 2
September 6, 2019
Demolition of 7329 Gratiot Road

electrical issues. The Township Building Inspector was forced to try to seek a remedy through
the courts by using the Dangerous Building Ordinance. The process was stopped due to a
Bankruptcy filing on the part of Mr. John Duquette. Mr. Duquette has since signed an agreement
with the courts to have the home in question taken out of the Bankruptcy process allowing the
demolition of the home and the cost of which placed on his property tax bill. The Township
Attorney Otto Brandt worked with the Courts to secure the necessary agreements to have the
home removed. At this time, the Township Board must approve the cost of the demolition as
well as the Asbestos Survey that was necessary to identify any contaminants before demolition.
Mead & Sons submitted the low bid to demo the home in question for $7,800.00 and AKT
Peerless performed the Asbestos Survey for $975.00 for a total $8,775.00. Mead & Sons have
made all of the necessary arrangements to demo the home so the removal should be within two
weeks of Township Board approval.

° MATERIALS ATTACHED: A copy of the Request for Proposal from Mead & Sons. A
copy of the asbestos abatement statement of cost. A copy of the Court Order waiving the
stay and waiver to remove the home from the Bankruptcy and to give Thomas Township
approval to have the building demolished

° POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, reject or amend the bid received from
Mead & Son for demolition and the AKT Peerless Asbestos Survey cost for the house
located at 7329 Gratiot Rd.

* RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion by , supported by

» to approve awarding the contract to demo the home and for the
Asbestos Survey for the house located at 7329 Gratiot Road for a total cost of $8,775.00
which will be placed on the property tax bill for the parcel if not paid.

° ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No




REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

Attn:
Qualified Demolition and Asbestos Contractors
Description:

Submit a lump sum proposal for an Asbestos Abatement and Demolition of the residence at 7329
Gratiot Rd, Saginaw, M| 48609. Tax Role #28-12-3-25-4029-000. Sealed bids should be mailed to Mr. Dan
Sika, Director of Community Development, Thomas Township, 249 N. Miller Rd., Saginaw, M| 48609 by
1/17/19 at 2pm. Bids will be opened at 2:05pm at the same location in the conference room. Bid
envelopes should be labeled “7329 Gratiot Demolition bid.” All questions can be referred to Mr. Jim
Gray, building Inspector, Thomas Township at (989) 781-0150. Full asbestos survey available upon
request.

Details:

e Single family wood framed home
¢  Year built- not known

e Ranch
o  Aluminum siding
e 968sq. ft.

* Full basement

* Perform an Asbestos Abatement as determined necessary from the supplied Asbestos Survey.

¢ Raze and properly dispose of the residence. Remove the entire foundation systems. Remove the
basement walls and floor. Fill in any excavated and open areas with clean sail until level with the
adjacent grade.

¢ Filland rough grade any areas disturbed due to the demolition with clean soil.

¢ Proposal shall«statey number of calendar days to complete the project. The demolition proposal
shall be in accordance with the attached Thomas Township Building Department demo policy
and guideline. '

¢ Any surplus from the demolition shall be paid over to the person(s) lawfully entitled there to.

General Conditions

Proof of Worker's Compensation and Liability Insurance will be required from the successful contractor.
Liability policy will need to have $1,000,000 of coverage and include the township as an additional
insured.

The bidder shall visit the site and fully inform themselves prior to the bidding as to the existing
conditions and limitations under which the work is to be performed.

Thomas Township Board reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to waive informalities or errors in
the bidding process and to accept any bid deemed to be in the best interest of the township including
bids that are not for the lowest amount.



MEAD & SONS CONTRACTING, INC.

_judd ' TRUCKING & EXCAVATING
el 3330 SCHUSTROAD :

FILL DIRT - BLACK DIRT SAGINAW, MICHIGAN 48603 / PHONE 792-4600 WATER LI
SAND - STONE FAX (989) 792-6644 SEWERS
SNOW PLOWING . FOOTINGS
DEMOLITION '

Att;

Dan Sika Jan 13,2019

Director of Community Development
Bid

Scope of work includes the following Complete Demolition & Asbestos
and hazardous martials in house Located at 7329 Gratiot

*Basement Foundation and walls floors to removed
*Basement to be filled with clean fill dirt
*Driveway to Remain
*4” of top soil on All Disturbed arcas
*Drive way approach to remain
*All work will be done to Thomas Township
Specifications
*Number of days to complete Asbestos and Demolition 6 Days

Mead & Sons Contracting Inc. Will take out demo permit

Total Bid- $7.800.00



Asbestos Profile for MEAD DEMOLITION, LLC (C45018) Page 1 of 2

Asbestos Program

) MIOSHA
(/AsbestosProgram/)

_Contractor Profile for MEAD DEMOLITION, LLC

Name and Address

Name

MEAD DEMOLITION, LLC
Address

3330 SCHUST ROAD
SAGINAW, Mi 48603
Phone

989-792-4600

License Information

Licence Type ID# Status Expiration Date

Type | (1 - 4 employees) C45018 Apprvd - Full 12/13/2019

Q New Search (/Asb}estosProgram/Contractor/ContractorSearch)

Back to Top MI.gov (http://www.michigan.qov)

Asbestos Program - Verify and Search (/AsbestosProgram/)

Asbestos Program (http:/Amww.michigan.gov/lara/0,4601,7-154-11407 1533 15369---,00.html)

Contact US (http://www.michigan.gov/lara/0,4601.7-154-11407 15333 15369-41708--,00.html)

Policies (http://www.michigan.gov/policies)

Copyright 2019 State of Michigan

https://w2.lara.state.mi.us/AsbestosProgram/Contractor/ContractorProfile/45018 1/18/2019



e ———

BAKTPEERLESS COPY nvoice

214 JANES AVE P: 989-754-9896

SAGINAW, MI 48607 F: 989-754-3804 Ei:)\:zleb;ro?l, 2018 =

Dan Sika Plense reforence 1his invaice no, on
Thomas Township pon

249 Miller Road Four remittance.

Saginaw, MI 48609

Project Manager Sean Robinson
T i Total Due This Invoice (see breakdown below): $975.00 B
Project 13952800 7329 Gratiot Road, Saginaw, M1
Pro Services for the Period: C p 0
Billing Group: t Asbestos Survey Activities
Professional services rendered and project casts incurred to conduct an/Asbestos Survey at 7329 Gratiot Roa Saginaw, Michigan, Approval given by
Dan Sika, dated December 21, 2018.
Phase 150 Asbestos Survey Activities
975.00
Total Phase $975.00
Total Billiug Group $975.00

%% Invoice Amount i 575.05

All invoices shall be payable within 30 days of the invoice date. Any payments not received within that period shall bear interest at the
rate of 1.5% per month. A surcharge of 3% will be applied for credit card transactions.

ACH Payments:Beneficiary Account: AKT Peerless Environmental Services, LLC; Huatington Bank; 101 N WASHINGTON
STREET, SAGINAW MI 48607; ABA ROUTING #072403473; ACCOUNT #01388362854

Asbaste = 39"’*‘3 e~

Wema @ 732 oot

AKTPestless Enviranmantal Services, LLC.
ACCEPRTS:




TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEFETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: John Corriveau, Parks & Recreation Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Installation of metal roof on pavilion at Roberts Park.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: This agenda item is to replace the metal roof on the large
pavilion at Roberts Park. We were able to remove the old metal roof and have the
pavilion ready for the new metal roof to be installed. The old metal roof had different
colored metal roof sections and had several holes in it. We looked at possibly repairing
and painting the old metal roof, however we could not get a warranty on the paint to last
more than 5 years and the cost was prohibitive. We have done a very good job at keeping
our parks looking the same as in building structure and colors and this will complete the
transformation of the pavilion to being part of Roberts Park. I sent out thirteen bid
requests and received three back.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Bid Tab Sheet

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported
by to approve the low bid of $11,972 from Beagle Construction for
the installation of the metal roof on the pavilion at Roberts Park.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




Bid Tab Sheet Roberts Park Pavilion Roof Bid

Roberts Park Pavilion Roof Bid

Beagle Construction $11,972
Gerald Bergman Inc $17,460
Allan Contracting $18,975
Alfano Construction No Bid

No Bid |
No Bid |
No Bid |
No Bid |
No Bid |
INSULEX No Bid [
No Bid |
No Bid |




TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2019

SUBMITTED BY: John Corriveau, Parks & Recreation Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Repaving of a section of Roberts Park Trail

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The trail section in need of replacement is located along
the north side of the ball diamond three’s parking lot. This trail section has several large
pieces that have falling apart and the grass is growing through it causing trip hazard
concerns. We have done our best to keep it up but the time has come to replace the
approximate 410 linear feet of trail. I sent out fourteen bid requests for this project and
received two back. )

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Attached bid tab
sheet.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by : supported
by to approve the low bid of $7,500 by Quality Asphalt for the
repaving of approximately 410 linear feet of trail at Roberts Park.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




Bid Tab Sheet Roberts Park Trail Repaving

Roberts Park Trail Repaving

Quality Asphalt $7,500
Yeager Asphalt $9,500
Black Jack Asphalt No Bid
Carrollton Paving No Bid
o 5 |
o 5 |
o 5 |
o5 |
o5 |
No 8 |
o 5 |




TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: September 9,2019

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC:  Approve proposed Consumers Energy easement for electrical
service to 6660 Gratiot Road.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Currently, Consumers Energy has an easement that
effectively covers all of the property that Thomas Township owns on Gratiot Road near
the Tittabawassee River. Years ago, these easements were referred to as blanket
easements and were fairly common. A utility company like Consumers Energy would
approach many property owners for easements when they were looking to run a new
utility line. Until they acquired all of the needed easements, they really could not
determine the line’s exact path, so a property owner would grant an easement that
effectively encumbered the entire parcel until the line was constructed. Once the line was
built, then a new specific easement would be drawn up te define exactly where the line
and easement were to be located, and then the blanket easement would be released.

In the case of these Township parcels, the blanket easements were never removed. I can
only guess why that is the case, but most likely, it was just an oversight as they really only
serve the purpose of providing electrical service to the Nature Center building. I have
been working with various Consumers Energy representatives for somewhere around five
years to get these removed and to reduce the easement footprint to the actual area needed.
This is not a pressing issue, but in the event that the Township decides to do any sort of
physical construction or improvements (i.e. driveway relocation) the existing blanket
easements could pose a problem.

I believe that we could deal with the challenges if we had to, but I would rather be
proactive and resolve the potential conflict now; rather, than waiting until the time when
we need to build. Especially, when we know that anything that has to be run through the
Consumers Energy legal department takes a minimum of one year to accomplish so it
seems.



Page 2 of 2
September 9, 2019
Consumers Energy Easement MI#00000045733

o MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Proposed easement
per agreement MI#00000045733.

o POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

o SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

supported by to approve proposed Consumers Energy easement for
electrical service to 6660 Gratiot Road.

e ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No.




INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING EASEMENTS

1) DO NOT SIGN ON THIS SHEET, EXAMPLE ONLY!
2) Sign whers indicated, with Legal Names in BLACK INK.
3) Type or Print names IN BLACK INK under ALL signatures, including notary’s signature.

“The State requires that printing be black ink on white paper for forms presented for
recording.”

4) Notary is to sign their name and stamp, type, or print remaining necessary information. Also
complete the acknowledgement using signing date In both places.

5) Any changes made to this document will be considered NULL and VOID. Any errors found
on said document upon receipt, will also be considered as NULL and VOID. if, for any
reason, changes need to be made, prior approval from the area Right-of-Way Specialist is
required.

6) If you have a relative that is a notary, they CAN NOT notarize this signature!

EXAMPLE:

Date: _ (date document is signed) Owner:

_(SIGNATURE)

Type or print owners name here
(Legal first name, Middie initial, Last name)

(SIGNATURE)

BOTH DATES MUST BE THE SAME!!

Type or print owners name here
(Legal first name, Middle initial, Last name)

Acknowledament
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me in __(hame of county) County, Michigan,
on (date document is signed) by (print owners names (as indicated above) and marital
Date ' Print Owner's Name(s)
status on these two lines)
(SIGNATURE)
(Type or print name here) Notary Public
. County, Michigan
Place Stamp & Seal in this location only Acting in County

My Commission expires:

Notary Stamp (place above Line)

T e N el e

ot .




EASEMENT FOR ELECTRIC FACILITIES

Master Tract# ROW000916058188
SAP# 1049691893

Design# SF-24148

Agreement# MI#00000045733

THOMAS TOWNSHIP, a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 249 North Miller Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609
(hereinafter "Owner”)

for $1.00 and other good and valuable consideration [exempt from real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCLA 207.505(f) and
from State real estate transfer tax pursuant to MCLA 207.526(f)] grants and warrants to

CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY, a Michigan corporation, One Energy Plaza, Jackson, Michigan 49201 (hereinafter “Consumers™)

a permanent easement to enter Owner's land (hereinafter "Owner's Land") located in the fownship of Thomas, County of Saginaw,
and State of Michigan as more particularly described in the attached Exhibit A to construct, operate, maintain, inspect (includins
aerial patrol), survey, replace, reconstruct, improve, remove, relocate, change the size of, enlarge, and protect a line or lines
electric facilities in, on, over, under, across, and through a portion of Owner's Land (hereinafter “Easement Area") as more fully
described in the attached Exhibit B, together with any pole structures, poles, or any combination of same, wires, cables, conduits,
crossarms, braces, guys, anchors, transformers, electric control circuits and devices, lacation markers and signs, commiunicalion
systems, utility lines, protective apparatus and all other equipment, appurtenances, associated fixtures, and facilities, whether
above or below grade, useful or incidental to or for the operation or protection thereof, and to conduct such other actjvities as
may be convenient in connection therewith as determined by Consumers for the purpose of transmitting and distributing
electricity. Consumers may attach additional lines outside the Easement Area, running laterally from a line within the Easement
Area to the North, South, East and West edges of Owner's Land, in which event the Easement Area shall include a 30 foot-wide
strip of land, being 15 feet on each side of overhead line and a 12 foot-wide strip of land, being 6 feet on each side of the
underground line each such lateral line.

Additional Work Space: In addition to the Easement rights granted herein, Owner further grants to Consumers, during initial
canstruction and installation only, the right to temporarily use such additional work space reasonably required to construct said
lines. Said temporary work space shall abut the Easement Area, on either side, as required by construction.

Access: Consumers shall have the right to unimpaired access to said line or lines, and the right of ingress and egress on, over,
and through Owner's Land for any and all purposes necessary, convenient, or incidental to the exercise by Consumers of the rights
granted hereunder.

[rees and Other Vegetation: Owner shall not plant any trees within the.Easement Area. Consumers shall have the right fromtime
to time hereafter to enter Owner's Land to trim, cut down, and otherwise remove and control any trees, brush, roots, and other
vegetation within the Easement Area. Consumers shall have the right from time to time hereafter to enter Owner's Land to trim,
cut down, and otherwise remove and cantrol any trees, brush, or other vegetation located outside of the Easement Area which
are of such a height or are of such a species whose mature height that in falling directly to the ground could come into contact
with or land directly above Consumers’ facilities.

Buildings/Structures: Owner agrees not to build, create, construct, or permiit to be built, created, or constructed, any obstruction,
building, septic system, drain field, fuel tank, pond, swimming pool, lake, pit, well, foundation, engineering works, installation o

Form REFORM/EAS2EL/MJL/2015
Revision: 2019.3 (CG)
Approved: 8/20/2019 (AJ)
Page 1 of 4



EXHIBIT A
Owner's Land

Land situated in the Township of Thomas, County of Saginaw, State of Michigan:

Legal Description: Proposed Easement Area 1 for Electric Facilities

Astrip of land 30 feet in width being 15 feet on each side of an existing overhead electric line located in the South 1/2 of the
Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 12 North, Range 4 East, being described as: Commencing at the Southeast corner of
Lot #1.3 of Wegner's Subdivision as recorded in L. 6, Page 33, Saginaw County Records; thence South 00°37'30" East, along
the East line of Wegner's Subdivision, 4.82 feet to the Point of Beginning of this centerline description; thence South
89°06'07" East, 122.00 feet; thence South 21°06'27" East, 214.43 feet; thence South 20°17'17" East, 244.21. feet; thence
South 00°07'45" West, 192.05 feet to Reference Point "A"; thence continuing South 00°07'45" West, 15.00 feet to the Point
of Ending of this centerline description. The sidelines of said 30 foot wide strip of land are to be extended and shortened to
meet at angle points, said sidelines to begin at the East line of said Wegner's Subdivision. Containing 0.55 acres of land more

or less.

Legal Description: Proposed Easement Area 2 for Electric Facilities

A strip of land 12 feet in width being 6 feet on each side of an existing underground electric line located in the South 1/2 of
the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Township 12 North, Range 4 East, being described as: Commencing at the Southeast
corner of Lot #13 of Wegner's Subdivision as recorded in L. 6, Page 33, thence South 00°37'30" West, along the East line of
Wegner's Subdivision, 4.82 feet; thence South 89°06'07" East, 122.00 feet; thence South 21° 06'27" East, 214.43 feet;
thence South 20°17'17" East, 244.21 feet; thence South 00°07'45" West, 192.05 feet to the Point of Beginning of this
centetline description; thence South 68°29'13" East, 121.80 feet; thence North 36°33'49" East, 17.77 feet; thence North
66 °08'55" East, 12.00 feet; thence South 75°03'55" East, 15.08 feet; thence South 15°00'03" West, 5.00 feet to the Point
of Ending of this centerline description. The sidelines of said 12 foot wide strip of land are to be extended and shortened to
meet at angle points and existing building. Containing 0.49 acres of land more or less. ‘

Parcel ID: 28-12-4-30-2022-000, 28-12-4-30-2001-000 and 28-12-4-30-2021-001

Also Known as 6660 and 6640 Gratiot Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609

Form REFORM/EAS2EL/MJL/2015
Revision: 2019.3 (CG)
Approved: 8/20/201.9 (AJ)
Page 3 of 4



any other type of structure over, under, or on said Easement Area, whether temporary or permanent, natural or man-made, without
a prior written agreement executed by Consumers’ Real Estate Department expressly allowing the aforementioned. '

Ground Elevalivii: Owner shall not materially alter the ground elevalion within the Easement Area without a prior writ
agreement executed by Consumers Real Estate Department allowing said alteration.

Exercise of Easement: Consumers’ nonuse or limited use of this Easement shall not preclude Consumers’ iater use of this
Easement to its full extent.

Ownership: Owner covenants with Consumers that they are the lawful fee simple owner of the aforesaid lands, and that they have
the right and authority to make this grant, and that they will forever warrant and defend the title thereto against all claims
whatsoever.

Successors: This Easement shall bind and benefit Owner's and Consumers’ respective heirs, successors, lessees, licensees, and
assigns.

Counterparts: This Easement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. It is not necessary that all parties execute any
single counterpart if each party executes at least one counterpart.

Date: Owner: THOMAS TOWNSHIP, a Michigan Municipal corporation

By: Robert Weise
Its: Township Supervisor

By: Edward Brosofski
Its: Township Clerk

Acknowledgment
The forcgoing instrument was acknowledged before me in ' _ County, Michigan,
on_ - by Robet Weise, Township Supervisor and Edward Brosofski, Township Clerk of

Date

Thomas Township. a Michigan Municipal corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

Notary Public
County, Michigan
Actingin __ : : County
My Commission expires:
PROPERTY OWNERS MAIL I REGISTER OF DEEDS OFFICE USE ONLY
SIGNED EASEMENT TO:
Michael Loper #230-D Preparer’s By: Return recorded instrument to:
Consumers Energy Company Cristi Banks 9/5/2019 Carrie J. Main, EP7-287
4141 Wilder Road Consumers Energy Company Consumers Energy Company
Bay City, Ml 48706 One Energy Plaza One Energy Plaza

Jackson, Ml 49201 Jackson, MI 49201

Form REFORM/EAS2EL/MJL/2015
Revision: 2019.3 (CG)
Approved: 8/20/2019 (AJ)
Page 2 of 4



EXHIBIT B

Easement Area

A 30.00 foot-wide strip of land, being 15.00 feet on each side of the centerline of the overhead line and a 12.00 foot-wide strip
of land, being 6.00 feet on each side of the underground line constructed on Owner's Land, the centerline to be located
approximately as shown in the attached drawing. ‘

| — |
|
| | Wearer's ~r3
' Subdivacn | |
. I:-. l_‘ kb Y ‘.'.‘.I!_"' ]
(] - — X -__\
. : I 1 11 ' “‘\\
M 30.00 faot-wide B !
' aasemant being 18.00 l st ’
] {aat on alther sids of T e '
canterline \ \ \j
|. Ny
I ' W 12.00 footwide |1 !
| \{‘.\ aassmant belng 6.00 ﬁ
L fect on sither side of
! ey canterline 'E
(fdl
|
,lg § o —— ——— e G it st M !
ll;g : - — '-‘MT - I
E:! » ::: B —— K
3 § o Savauts o N i o i Bt
gx " - ey . = g o r— :
" B i — " wlag ¢ v
) PRSI — e b Dbt s Ty op < Dy ]
LI L — e Lt P i e
] O-~a NP L S e \
) e et e ——— T ]
! W - m—ca = By ey ‘
| 1 3 Lo b
. _ [
I
|
]

Form REFORM/EAS2EL/MJL/2015

Revision: 2019.3 (CG)
Approved: 8/20/2019 (AJ)

/n“-u. e

- - Granct Road |W-46)

e

Page 4 of 4



.




